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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FRHRS

I addition to maintaining media thinking, a multimedia group must also adhere to the
n “forward-looking concept, all-round thinking, refined management, and steady progress”
and take the promotion of healthy and sustainable social development as its guideline to bring

the Group to new heights.

ERE—EZHERER THESZGEZE EZEF(ARMES 2EMELE B4
LEE BIAEE| YUEHHEREFABRRALH  THSEEELTSE -

Dear Shareholder,

2022 is an extraordinary year. The COVID-19 pandemic has
brought a profound impact on the global economy, and many
industries have been severely impacted. Although Hong Kong
has experienced social unrest and the COVID-19 pandemic
in the past few years, Sing Tao News Corporation, which
has a history of 85 years, has never halted its operations.
The Group has been continuously innovating and working
hard to promote the integration of print media and new
media, as well as enhance the user experience. To capture
the opportunities arising from today’s advanced technology
and digital transformations, we launched the all-new “Sing
Tao Headline” app early this year and achieved success in
the digital arena. We strive to make major breakthroughs in
employee thinking and business models to keep pace with
the times.
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2023 marks the 85" anniversary of “Sing Tao”, which is a
significant milestone in the social and media community
of Hong Kong. Over the past 85 years, “Sing Tao” has
witnessed the eventful history of Hong Kong and the growth
of its people through its development. Sing Tao News
Corporation has evolved from a local newspaper, Sing Tao
Daily, to a multimedia group that covers the world and
serves Chinese communities worldwide today. In addition to
maintaining media thinking, a multimedia group must also
adhere to the “forward-looking concept, all-round thinking,
refined management, and steady progress” and take the
promotion of healthy and sustainable social development as
its guideline to bring the Group to new heights.

On behalf of the Board, we would like to express our sincere
gratitude to our employees for their hard work and continued
dedication, to our customers for their trust, and to our
shareholders for their support. As the market environment
remains uncertain, we will continue to leverage our strengths
and implement strict financial management measures
to reduce risks and promote long-term and sustainable
development of the Group. At the same time, we will continue
to make breakthroughs, consolidate our presence in the print
market and strengthen our competitiveness in the new media
market, creating more value for our shareholders and the
Group.

“Innovation for change, professionalism unchanged!”
In celebration of Sing Tao’s 85" anniversary, we will continue
to uphold the philosophy of fairness and justice in our news
reporting. By adhering to the spirit of pragmatism and
innovation, and by telling Hong Kong’s story in a vivid and
positive way, the “Sing Tao” brand will be recognised and
renowned worldwide.

Choi Karson Ka Tsan
Co-Chairman

Kwok Ying Shing
Co-Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2023
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Major Events of the Year

FERELE

[l Leader of the Year 2021

2021 H AR &

The “Leader of the Year 2021” awards presentation ceremony organised by the Group on 20 September 2022. The winners of “Leader of
the Year 2021” are selected in recognition of their achievements in five categories, namely Commerce & Industry / Finance, Community /
Public Affairs / Environment & Conservation, Education / Professions / Technology & Innovation, Sports / Culture / Performing Arts and Young
Entrepreneur.

[2021 4 ¢ i S iR ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ_fffihﬂ T+ BIEFRIZRT o k2L
BT REMARNNGELEEW 2R AIIE/ erAEsl] - [HE/ 2/EFK /R
%ﬁﬁ@ﬂjFﬁﬁ/ﬁi/ﬂ&&ﬂﬁ@ﬂjFWE/XW/EﬁmﬂMH%
FFERER]

20'21

edC cr
of tl}tf
Yedl

Celebrating the “HKSAR 25" Anniversary”
55 25 8 « HREEE

To celebrate the 25" anniversary of the establishment of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, Sing Tao
News Corporation has launched four major celebration
activities with the theme of “ [B158 25 & » FHEEE 7,
including “The 25" Anniversary of the Establishment of
the HKSAR” news exhibition, “Sing Tao Charity Sales”,
“HKSAR 25" Anniversary Campaign Website and
Commemorative Book of “HKSAR 25" Anniversary”.

2022 REAFRTHEK L T HEAF - RNEE[
BEEBBAZTREFNHEATE ABFBEERK
Bt LAT[El 57255k %%E%ﬁLﬁi%ﬁmmﬁkﬂ
EE BE[EESEHFER]  [BARBME

B [BEAERLHBERY R[EH ﬁﬁ%ﬁ*”t
B8 -

06 SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED £ B EEEER AT



Metaverse Virtual Exhibition

TFEHRE

Sing Tao News Corporation collaborated with Zhejiang
University International Business School to host the
Metaverse (ZIBS) virtual exhibition. The exhibition hall
is divided into three areas with themes of “Corporate
Milestone”, “Hong Kong’s Return to Chinese Sovereignty
in 1997”, and the “25" Anniversary of the Establishment of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region”

EESFHEBREERNAREMNIASZHEKRBSHE
GEFITETTEHER - TFEHRERREEEFNHEHE
ErE REEsR=[E UEESHHEEEEERE] -
[o7FFERG R RIBEOR5E | AEEETRE -

Metaver

S‘Annwsrsqry

“Sing Tao Headline” app

[ESHEKF] BEAERX

The all-new “Sing Tao Headline” app was
launched on 3 January 2022. The app
offers a comprehensive platform that
allows users to access news, videos/live
broadcasts, personalisation functions and
practical daily-living tools.

[ESEE] EAER®N 20224 1 A3 H
ERX#E - R—EALEEE  FHEN |
58 EAMCERERER N IANGST )

& o

f? (&) A :7?

Major Events of the Year

FERELE

B world Cup 2022

2022F R &K

To bring the latest Football news to Hong Kong people,
Sing Tao News Group, Sing Tao Sports and The Standard
were committed to Central Market’s “World Cup for All”
event as strategic partners during the World Cup 2022.

Ro022FHAZHM EE8FHER EBRBE R (B
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Inter-School Debating Competition

2ERBR R E

The “37" Sing Tao Inter-School Debating Competition” was jointly
organised by Sing Tao Daily and The Standard; Sing Tao Daily also
partnered with Macao Speech and Debate Association in the “Hong
Kong Macau Secondary School Debating Championship 2022”.

EEE=ttEZEREBERWLE]A(ES B R RCEXER)
B B KEE R KRFVRRE S A [ 20228 R B 5 H
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Major Events of the Year

FERELE

[l Headline Daily

CEEBEH )

Headline Daily organised the “Headline No.1 Awards 2022” and “No.1
Car Awards 2022”. Its anniversary celebration included the “Headline
Daily-Superstar Quiz” and the “Headline Daily in 18 Districts” photo
game.

CCRIG B RS2 P [ 28 1§No. 1K 282022 ] 2 [No.1 /58 A #% 2022 | &5F
oA MEBERE - BEVAT  CEEBR) BRZEMETE -
BEIGEKEEERMEESI REREEKI BT H ZER -

The Standard

(CHERH )

The Standard was also active in organising

a number of events in the education/ East Week
student sector, including the “7" Story (EET Y

Writing Competition and 11" English
Writing Competition” awards presentation
ceremony, “Overseas Property Expo 2022”
and “International Schools Fair”.

East Week has undergone a significant branding facelift on its publishing
of the volume 1,000". To ride on this special moment, a chronicle booklet
featuring some of the best magazine covers and/or cover stories over the
two decades has been released. In addition, East week organised a range
of events including East Week's “Greater China Super Brands Awards 2022”,

T e W 2 T Bg N X
(CRXFEHRIBHERAE RBLRAMEE) “Hong Kong Service Awards 2022” and The 9" “Kids Drawing Contest”.

BREIFLEEAXHFAELERESE B

ﬁiﬁfﬁt%”ﬁi{% ——— » (RAT) AEREIREI,0008 BT UL FARREERE  TE5L
f52022] RTERERABE] - Y1, 00088 2 565 il o U ) 722 9 25 TE 5% B) 60 3 [ A oh 28 (B 55 2 B K 1

B 2022 [EEBBAL02 | RENEB2EREREHBLLE]
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[l Ohpama.com
[ Oh!E&15 |

JobMarket

{ JobMarket REEE S )
JobMarket Career launched a new platform of “Career Stories”, which
focuses on video content and regularly releases different kinds of short films
and programs to provide useful and interesting workplace information for
job seekers and employers. During the year, the Group’s recruitment media
business organised a series of events, including “The Employer of Choice
Award 2021” and the “JobMarket Recruitment Fair”.

(JobMarketsK B B #Z) i 2 FE S [FHER]  MREAR/E - B
HHRARBRE 2 REE - ARBEREIREEAMABRIBSEA
RER - (JobMarketsK Bk 35 ) B i 2 IE)EE) - B4F [ = B8 = K #2021
RIFEIZM] -

Major Events of the Year

FERELE

To respond to the School Special Vacation, Ohpama.com has launched a series of “Oh! Learn at Home” live programs swiftly
to support the audience, particularly parents and school kids. In addition, it was awarded as the “No.1 Digital Media of the Year
- Parenting” for the 5" year by Asia’s leading marketing inteligence “MARKETING-INTERACTIVE Magazine”. During the vyear, it
organised a range of events including anniversary events and the 2™ “International School Expo”.

AEBRNEMMNERENBRE [ONSHBIBEREERT T — RV ONERSEE |HESHE UG RXEREBER
REBREHNEE - B [OnB 15| E 4 F T F (2018-2022) % 35 1 TE 2 & 4 H & 2 55 (MARKETING-INTERACTIVE
Magazine) 1B & [ & EH THBHE | - RFER - [ONEH | ENZBEHERERATEMNEOL[F_EEERERABHEE ]S -

Sing Tao Overseas

EB#EH

Sing Tao Daily’s overseas offices have been an
integral part of overseas Chinese communities,
and have been enthusiastic in organising various
cultural activities, to foster a strong network with
readers and advertisers.

(EERR)EINIEE—BERHASHEAR
B EREE RSN E R RS E
B o S lERTETHER -
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Major Awards of the Year

FEFTERNE

Hong Kong News Awards 2022

2022 FEBHREFER
B Best News Reporting
BEFBERE
Winner 8% 1° Runner-up ¥
Sing Tao Daily ( £ & B k) Sing Tao Daily (£ & H#})
Topic & : Topic /& : .
NEBEIRE R SR

M Best News Writing
BREFNERE
( Chinese #1X#)

Winner B&

Sing Tao Daily (£ & B#R)

Topic =& :

PRESREINITRIZER [TRESMNBEILE]

MBS |
BRI TR
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Best Business News Writing
REQBNERE
B (English #x4)
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Winner BE 2" Runner-up &

The Standard (X R3R) The Standard (FXFHHR)

Topic £/ : Topic /& :

Red flags raised as world goes green Stemming the tide of greenwashing



Best Scoop
REBRFHE

1 Runner-up ¥
Sing Tao Daily (£ & B#R)
Topic £&:

FERREBERENM

2" Runner-up &
Sing Tao Daily ( £ & B#R)

BERBEEE T AR

Major Awards of the Year

FEFERE

Best Business News Writing

REEEHE R

(Chinese #X#)

A || | Croener
BEHAL TS

BREERE STHRGR [ |
EAIBIA I A R T

Best Business

News Reporting

BREKBIHERE
Merit B2
Sing Tao Daily ( £ & H ¥} ) Best Photograph
Topic =& : BEERF
18 ESG BRI & 37 (News #TEI#)
Merit £ &
Sing Tao Daily ( £ & Bk )
Topic £/ :

BRMSR

|

Best Photograph
REEFR
(Sports £ E4)
Merit E£

2" Runner-up & Sing Tao Daily ¢ & {& H 3R )

The Standard { X F2 k) Topic £&:

Topic £&: Merit B2 BRATE

You've got to be kidding! Sing Tao Daily { £ & H ¥Rk )

. Topic £&:

2 LI HeLRBRRSI

R{EEZERE .

(English 23 4) Best Science News

Reporting
B SENBHERE
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Major Awards of the Year

FEFTERNE

Hong Kong News Awards 2021
2021 FERRENE R

BRI

1§20 2021 FRYHEIEEEE 2022 F A1

Due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic, the 2021
awards announcement was postponed to 2022

Best News Reporting
RIEHERE

Winner &

Sing Tao Daily ( £ & A #R®)
Topic £/ :

E—F AW

2" Runner-up &

Sing Tao Daily ( £& B#®)
Topic & :
TR RS

Merit B2

Sing Tao Daily (25 B#®)
Topic & :
EERERT

M Best News Writing

BREFESE
(Chinese #X#)

Winner %

Sing Tao Daily ( £ & A#R)
Topic £/ :
TEBRFRZ 76 X
ERamELRE

1 Runner-up &

Sing Tao Daily ( 2% B#®)
Topic £ :
BHERXEFRAR
BRET [HE#R ]

Hmmﬂﬂ!ji RN R

12

Winner @&

Sing Tao Daily { £ & B &)
Topic =& :
EWERK

Merit B&

Headline Daily (& 1{&H })
Topic & :

REEB

Best Photograph

REE A

B (Features 1:544)

1° Runner-up ¥
Sing Tao Daily ( £ & B &)
Topic =& :

Best Photograph
BEEH
M (News #7E4)

2" Runner-up &%

Sing Tao Daily ( & & H#})
Topic /& :

SRARIT IR

Merit B2

Sing Tao Daily ( £ & B¥R)
Topic /& :

T
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2" Runner-up &

Sing Tao Daily £ & B ¥R )

Topic =& :
SEHER

Best Photograph
RIEEF

M (Sports BEE5#4)

2" Runner-up £&
Headline Daily (Z8{%& B k)
Topic =& :
BREFTIEBRMRIITA
B FEEEE

P55 I AR SR AR

1° Runner-up &

Topic =& :
Pl GR35

Sing Tao Daily ( £ & B¥R)



M BestBusiness News W Best News Page Design
Writing BREHERERET
BRI (Series 72
(Chinese XX #H) 2" Runner-up £&

2 Runner-up 58 Sing Tao Daily ( £ & A #)
Sing Tao Daily ( £ & B¥k) gg;;iﬂ

Topic £&: P

PSR P SPAC B 345 R

W= E IR

Major Awards of the Year

M Best News Page Design
BEFERERE
( Single Page & jz#d)

2" Runner-up &
Sing Tao Daily ( £ & B k)
Topic £/ :
IREREER

ERUER R

FEFERE

Best News Reporting

R T E HRE

2" Runner-up &%
Sing Tao Daily ( £ & H#R)
Topic =& :

Bz [44] 7

Best Arts & Culture
News Reporting
R E
FE®E

1° Runner-up &
Sing Tao Daily ( £ & B #R)
Topic £/ :

XAbERE 7

- HEFRALGS WANS BHEL

1% Runner-up ¥
Sing Tao Daily ( £ & B k)
Topic =& :

M+ Flips Al’s Finger out

2" Runner-up &%
Sing Tao Daily ( £ & H#})
Topic =& :
FENCE-TASTIC!

Best Headline
RIEEE
( English #x)
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Major Awards of the Year

FEFTERNE

“Focus At The Frontline 2021” The 22" Consumer Rights
Photo Contest Reporting Awards
CRTAR- 5 2021) FREAESFLE EotEHERE N ERER
Bl Spot News B Feature
REHE #E News Photography Award
Third Prize & Third Prize £E i 8 52
Sing Tao Daily (£ & A &) Sing Tao Daily £ & H ) Gold Award £ 3% Silver Award $R 3%
Topic =& : Topic £&: Headline Daily (581{&H %) Headline Daily (581{&H %)
BRI - 10 KiREEZS BEAEB T ARREHEE R Topic & : Topic £/ :
HEEIINRAEEES TR 28 5% R - EEEZ AR TEARL SRARIE PR Z R EERR
BEraE

Portrait
Sports A4
Bs Honorable Mention &£ Investigative
Honorable Mention &£ Sing Tao Daily (£ & H #) — ' Reporting Award
Sing Tao Daily £ & B¥R) Topic X : AERE
Topic 2 : B8 2021 ToERIRE § AR Merit Award &2
202141 A 16 B - apesEpse (HUSEMRZVAGEK—FE Sing Tao Daily (22 B )
BBEEL 320 KEBAKE PRASENRIBAFEERL Topic 8 :
BEAIE - Al ESREEEN S B
BRERLEESRE
Citi Journalistic Excellence
B Nature & Environment Awards 2022
B RERR S TEESE A4 &R 2022
Honorable Mention &£ O
Sing Tao Daily (28 H3k) 1° Runner-up &
Topic & : Sing Tao Daily (2 & B##)
2021 11 A 17 B 'ﬂm@/’éﬂa?ﬁ Topic &
EIREANBEIREEABRREE NFT e EEE RIDEKaH

Newcomer of the Year Honour
MEHBEENTR
Sing Tao Daily £ & B#R)

Reader’s Digest Hong Kong
Trusted Brands 2022
(REXHE) &BFEEmME 2022

Honorable Mention &£
Sing Tao Daily £ & H#R)

Topic =7 : g Finance & Media - Free Newspaper
20214 3 A 26 B - WFIHLWL SREEERE - RERE
i?g@ﬁi\ RERS Platinum Award H &%

Headline Daily {815 H )
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The 6™ Business Journalism

Awards

E P ELERNGE 3k

REFXFTERIHRBE
(Text X F#H)

Gold Award & 3%

Sing Tao Daily { £ & B#R)
Topic £&:

TS R55HRE

Silver Award $R 82
Sing Tao Daily { £ & B#R)
Topic £&:

TR RTRE

Major Awards of the Year

The Spark Awards 2022

Best Business News Series Reporting

E— T L K

EREEAN AOSME03 WS

ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂ#&%

M Best Result-Driven Campaign
BEERERE

Gold Award £
Ohpama.com [Oh! &8 |
Topic £/ :

/VINEHEE KOL

Best Media Campaign —
Creative

RERAISREEERS

Gold Award €%
Ohpama.com [Oh! &5 |
Topic =/ :

BT ABEIRIZ

S ARARARNA
FRGERRRSHERA
[ e

TR REA -
anan

e~

() EYERR

m«u

..'w"‘"-‘;"-
—_—

L

o aamannminn ] —mee 0

No.1 Parenting Digital
Media of the Year
Ohpama.com|[ Oh! &15 |

Il Digital Media

No.1 Local Newspaper of

the Year

Headline Daily (ZE{&H%R)

B Local Newspaper

Marketing-Interactive’s Media

Report 2022

No.1 Parenting Print Media
of the Year
Smart Parents (GF T )

Print Media Parenting
B Magazine

FEXERE

Best Promotion Strategy
RIESEEK

Bronze Award #i5%
Ohpama.com [Oh! &1 |
Topic & :

NINEYEE KOL

Best Custom Event
BREESTEEETE

Bronze Award #i5%
Ohpama.com [Oh! &1 |
Topic =& :

INEEE KOL

Best Media Campaign -
Experiential

RERREERE

Bronze Award $7#%
Ohpama.com [Oh! &1 |
Topic 7 :

VINEBER KOL

Best Brand Experience

RiEmiEiRER

Silver Award #R 8¢
Ohpama.com [Oh!
Topic £&:
ININEREE KOL

=t

Best Use of Influencer
BRAFEND

Bronze Award $@28
Ohpama.com [Oh! &5 |
Topic =& :

BT RABEIRIZ

Marketing Events Awards
2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The consolidated revenue of Sing Tao News Corporation
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (the
“Year”) amounted to approximately HK$815.0 million as
compared with approximately HK$834.8 million last year.
Loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$138.8 million as compared with
approximately HK$139.8 million last year.

Given the continued volatility and the unclear trend during the
Year, the Group’s treasury investment has been conducted
cautiously.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) did not
recommend the payment of final dividend for the Year. No
interim dividend was declared for the Year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources, Gearing Ratio and
Charges on Group’s Assets

The Group maintained a strong financial position with a cash
position throughout the Year. During the Year, the Group
paid approximately HK$20.0 million for purchases of items
of property, plant and equipment. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group had a cash balance (calculated with reference
to the Group’s cash balances and total borrowings, if any)
of approximately HK$472.0 million (31 December 2021:
approximately HK$527.0 million).

The gearing ratio, defined as long-term borrowings (including
non-current lease liabilities) to equity, was 1.4% as at 31
December 2022 (831 December 2021: 0.3%). As at 31
December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not pledged any
asset.

Capital Structure, Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange
Rates

The Group adopts a prudent approach in managing its
treasury function and uses different hedging methods to
minimise the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations on its
financial performance.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any

contingent liability or claim which the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) considered to be material.
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Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies

The Group did not have any significant investments, material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the Year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately
1,114 employees.

The Group remunerates its employees based on individual
and business performance. Competitive salaries and benefits
are paid to attract and retain quality staff. Other employee
benefits include medical insurance, discretionary bonus,
share options and provident fund schemes.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, Hong
Kong’s economy has fallen into deep recession. In 2022,
the fifth wave of the outbreak severely affected local
economic activities and social sentiment, hindering the
market recovery process and leading to a further blow to
the economy. Coupled with global geopolitical tensions and
the sharp tightening of monetary policies by major central
banks worldwide, Hong Kong’s economy recorded negative
growth of 3.5% in 2022. Currently, the global economy is in a
downturn, and the volatility of local stock and property prices
has put pressure on the asset prices of many citizens, further
reducing their consumption sentiment and weakening the
overall market.

According to admanGo’s advertising data, total local
advertising expenditure in 2022 was HK$28.1 billion, which
was similar to 2021. However, due to the impact of the
fifth wave of COVID-19 in Hong Kong, local advertising
expenditure recorded a decrease of 5.3% in the first quarter,
followed by a slight decrease in the second quarter of 2022.
Fortunately, local economic activities gradually resumed
normalcy after the easing of the epidemic and the relaxation
of social distancing measures by the Hong Kong Government
in April. Additionally, with the distribution of consumption
vouchers in April and August, as well as the relaxation of
overseas entry quarantine arrangements in Hong Kong in
July, advertising expenditure resulted in a slight increase in
the third and fourth quarters.
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The Group recorded a consolidated revenue of approximately
HK$815.0 million in 2022, representing a slight decrease from
approximately HK$834.8 million in 2021. Amid the severe
impact of the fifth wave of COVID-19 and uncertain economic
conditions, local consumption remains weak. Furthermore,
with the gradual relaxation of quarantine measures for
overseas travel, people are increasingly travelling abroad,
which has further weakened both local consumption and
the performance of the advertising market. In addition, the
volatility of the stock and financial markets has worsened
the sluggish property market and has further affected the
placement of advertisements across various industries.

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company
slightly decreased from approximately HK$139.8 million
in 2021 to approximately HK$138.8 million in 2022. The
related loss was mainly attributable to the reduction in
newspaper advertising income primarily due to the fifth
wave of COVID-19 in Hong Kong, as well as an increase
in expenditure for the enhancement of new business, the
purchase of newsprint, and increased printing expenses in
2022. However, the prudent control of production costs in
the Group’s media business, coupled with the wage subsidies
provided by the “2022 Employment Support Scheme”
under the Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong
Government during the year, helped alleviate the pressure on
results.

New Media Business Development

According to admanGo’s advertising data, advertising
expenditure on digital media (desktop computers and mobile
advertisements) recorded a total of a 7% year-on-year
(YoY) increase in 2022. Digital media advertising and
marketing activities grew at a rapid rate during the outbreak
of the pandemic, accounting for the largest share of local
advertising expenditure. Both readers and advertisers have
quickly switched to digital channels.
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Looking back on 2022, the Group continually promoted the
integration of print media and new media, and achieved
breakthroughs in the field of digitalisation. In January 2022,
the new mobile app, “Sing Tao Headline”, which incorporates
big data analytics and artificial intelligence technology, was
launched. The app not only serves general readers but also
our business partners and advertisers, forming an ecosystem,
strengthening the communication and the connection
among people and society. As of January 2023, this app
has received over 2,000,000 downloads. In the middle of
2022, the “Sing Tao Headline” app won the “Alibaba Cloud
Digital Transformation of the Year” award at the “Alibaba
Cloud Summit Hong Kong 2022” held by Alibaba Cloud, a
subsidiary of Alibaba.

In early 2023, the Group launched a brand-new “Sing
Tao Headline” website, to be followed by the optimisation
and upgrade of the “Sing Tao Headline” app. Through the
combination of desktop and mobile portal products, the
Group has provided readers with an integrated platform that
combines life, news information, video and sharing functions.
After the launch of the new “Sing Tao Headline” website and
app, the total number of views of the website continued to
rise significantly and reached nearly 10,000,000 views per
day by early 2023, recording a more than twofold increase
from the middle of 2022. Users can browse hot news, videos
and diversified live programmes anytime and anywhere, in
order to bring users and readers a more comprehensive and
exciting information platform and the best experience. In
addition, our “www.stnn.cc” ([ £ &3 B4 ]) covers Mainland
China, providing global information to Mainland readers.

Content on the Headline Daily’s website has been transferred
to the “Sing Tao Headline” website since February 2023. The
Headline Daily’s website will gradually fade out, and in the
future, readers may continue to browse news information
through the “Sing Tao Headline” website.

Following the launch of digital e-marketing activities that
combine different advertising platforms within the system,
the Group provides advertisers with tailored omni-channel
marketing solutions that are more efficient in helping
advertisers to achieve their advertising objectives through
coordination among platforms.
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Ohpama.com continues to provide parents with information
on parenting, education, family life, and more. At the same
time, it is committed to providing tailor-made marketing
projects and promotion strategies for brand agencies
and advertisers to promote online and offline promotions,
advertising and campaign effectiveness, the effect of which
is widely acclaimed. In 2022, Ohpama.com was once again
awarded the “Best Parenting Digital Media of the Year” by
Marketing-Interactive Magazine, marking five consecutive
years of winning this award. It also won multiple media
awards in the “Marketing Events Awards 2022” hosted by the
magazine.

In response to the special school holiday announced by the
Hong Kong Government in 2022, Ohpama.com designed a
series of “Oh! Learn at Home” live programmes that covered
sports, interests, games, parent-child handicrafts and
academics to cater to the needs of parents and students for
learning and activities at home. Ohpama.com and 24parent.
com have a combined total of nearly 760,000 followers on
Facebook and Instagram, making them the most popular
social media platforms for parents and children in Hong
Kong.

Newspapers

The Group continues to maintain its leading position in
the print media market and remains committed to creating
high-quality content and providing high-added-value
advertising services to expand the competitiveness of its core
media business. The Group’s newspaper business includes
Sing Tao Daily, a renowned international Chinese newspaper,
Headline Daily, the highest-circulated free newspaper in
Hong Kong, The Standard, a widely-circulated free English
newspaper, and the overseas business of Sing Tao Daily.
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According to Nielsen’s survey results in the fourth quarter of
2022, Headline Daily continues to be the newspaper with the
most readers in Hong Kong. With an extensive distribution
network, Headline Daily is far ahead of its competitors
in terms of circulation and number of readers, and firmly
ranks first among free newspapers in Hong Kong. However,
according to admanGo’s advertising data, total advertising
expenditures on free newspapers decreased by 15% YoVY in
2022 due to the impacts of the fifth wave of COVID-19, the
interest rate hike cycle and the volatility of the stock market.
As a result, the performance of local retail consumption and
property market remained weak, which led to the contraction
of advertising budgets of advertisers in all segments, and
inevitably a drop in the advertising income of Headline
Daily. Despite this, Headline Daily is actively expanding its
non-consumption goods advertising categories, enhancing
its online and offline joint advertising sales, and has already
unveiled a brand new look to readers in March 2023.

Sing Tao Daily is committed to providing high-quality content
in the spirit of reporting facts. It always actively focuses
on the needs of readers and maintains close contact with
them. Sing Tao Daily not only provides readers with in-depth
news and information to help them keep abreast of what is
going on in the world at any time, but also features content
related to daily life. Recently, it has improved the printing
quality and deepened coverage of topics such as finance and
technology. This has been well recognised and appreciated
by readers.

According to admanGo’s advertising data, advertisement
expenditure on paid newspapers recorded a YoY decrease
of 10% in 2022. Falling property prices and rising interest
rates led to a sharp decline in property transactions, causing
property developers to reduce their advertising spending,
which has directly affected the advertising income of Sing Tao
Daily. However, starting from 1 January 2022, Sing Tao Daily
increased its price to the market level of HK$10 per copy,
and the sales volume remained stable after the increase.
According to Nielsen’s survey results in the fourth quarter
of 2022, the number of Sing Tao Daily readers increased to
314,000.
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To meet the present requirements of national education in
secondary and primary schools, Sing Tao Daily’s “Sing Tao
Learning Platform” has launched the “National Education
Media and Information Literacy Implementation Plan” for all
secondary and primary schools in the school year 2022-2023.
Teachers and students learnt relevant knowledge through a
series of step-by-step learning modules on platforms, holding
of on-campus and online seminars, and arranging workshops.
Since its launch, over 30,000 teachers and students have
registered. Moreover, this plan will bring additional revenue to
Sing Tao Daily. Further, since 1 January 2023, Sing Tao Daily
has undergone a complete revamp to keep pace with the
times and bring a better experience to its readers.

Under the influence of the general environment in 2022, the
English newspaper market had inevitably suffered a blow,
but The Standard’s advertising income in the fifth wave of
COVID-19 had a minimal impact, with only a slight decline
recorded. On the contrary, according to the survey results of
Nielsen in the fourth quarter of 2022, the number of readers
of The Standard increased by 42% YoY. In response to
the changes in the pandemic outbreak in Hong Kong, The
Standard continued to enhance the electronic versions of The
Student Standard and Junior Standard to cater to the current
learning patterns of students. The number of subscribers
to the two student newspapers exceeded the total sales of
the physical versions and electronic versions in the previous
academic year. The education segment also generated
additional revenue through preparation of education guides
and related special issues. With the relaxation of gathering
regulations, local exhibitions gradually returned to the
market. Apart from online live seminars, overseas real estate
customers can also organise exhibition activities, hence
driving advertising revenue of newspapers and electronic
platforms.

In 2022, Sing Tao Daily’s overseas operations continued to
actively adjusting its businesses to cope with market changes
and the development of COVID-19. These measures included
changing its structure and strict control of costs. Benefiting
from the easing of the pandemic overseas, business and
people’s livelihood activities gradually returned to normal.
As a result, the annual revenue of overseas businesses
rebounded in 2022. However, the operating costs were under
greater pressure due to the surge in newsprint prices and
inflation.
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Magazines

According to admanGo’s advertising data, the magazine
market in Hong Kong recorded a 16% YoY decline
in advertising expenditure in 2022, while the Group’s
flagship magazine, East Week, achieved a 20% growth in
advertising income, far surpassing the market performance
and maintaining its position as the agency with the largest
share in the advertising market. With its in-depth and
comprehensive information, East Week has a wide range
of readers and its influence has been widely recognised. In
terms of readership, according to Nielsen’s survey results in
the fourth quarter of 2022, East Week achieved the highest
readership among all surveyed weekly magazines in Hong
Kong. Throughout the year, East Week completed various
special issue projects of commemorative books on the 25"
Anniversary of the establishment of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, generating additional revenue for
the Group and resulting in a notable increase in revenue.
East Week always keeps pace with time, comprehensively
upgrading and refining its content to provide readers with a
fresh look.

The Group also broke the traditional boundaries by merging
Sing Tao Motor, a supplement focusing on new car news
and offering professional insight, with Caz Buyer, a leading
magazine in terms of the used car market, into “Sing Tao
Motor CAZ”, thus enriching its content. To further strengthen
its digital media position, the editorial teams of East Week
and Caz Buyer will continue to explore fresh topics and
produce a wide range of content and exciting video clips on
online platforms regularly for boosting further the channel’s
activity and viewership. It is also worth noting that East Week
and another magazine, Caz Buyer, both reached their 1,000"
issue in 2022.

24 SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED £ B EEEER AT

M

RiFadmanGoE S HE BB~ — S - _FH B
IS ES R B16%MIRERKIE  MAEER
MNEEEF(EATD BESKRANTER R - 8£18
0% RBMBRE  EERFELETENE
EEZMHM - (CRATDEMAAZH  EEHER
HEeESR FEHNEERAKE -EEAEASS®E B
T§N|elsenf§::¢'f%§@i§§)ﬁ§%%% CRATHE
AERENMERTEATIPSBEEN - RFA - (X
ﬂ?'J>>m:ﬁ)Zy{I§ ER-t+RAFLSFTIEE

RAEEGREINM G - RRAEBTRER (R
ﬂ?‘J)ﬁﬁiHﬂI CREITARBGR - ARAR—F |

MEEE R -

ANEEBETHSERBINITRELAR  #T7
AKEFH —RAEIRFTEELS  EEEREHE
BfE) HE-_FEWME —HENBLUAN(Caz
Buyer$5%>> %éﬁ)ﬂ SEBRECAZ] - FRAEMN
LE - AE—SREEKGHEBHMA  (REATD X
{Caz Buyeriiﬁ“ﬂ%)ﬁ’]ﬁﬁiﬂl%ﬁ GRETRIE
AR ERLETEeEe T HEES TIERNAREY
RAE - BEIRFAEE /EE&J*&/%J?EHMV\\ (&
BETI)F{Caz BuyerEER)EN T - —FANK
A hiR1,00088#9 K B F ©



Recruitment Media

According to admanGo’s advertising data, the number of
recruitment advertisements in the Group’s recruitment titles,
comprising JobMarket, HeadlinedJobs, and The StandardJobs,
represents the largest market share of print recruitment
media. In 2022, the distribution points of JobMarket were
extended to include the East Rail Line and the Tuen Ma Line,
making a total of seven MTR lines. With full coverage of Hong
Kong, Kowloon, and parts of the New Territories, JobMarket
has established itself as the largest railway distribution
network in Hong Kong. According to the survey results of
Nielsen in the fourth quarter of 2022, the number of readers
of JobMarket increased by 55% YoY. In addition, JobMarket
and HeadlinedJobs have had over 170,000 and 28,000
followers on Facebook, respectively.

During the fifth wave of COVID-19, JobMarket actively
strengthened its partnership with overseas educational
institutions by selling advertisements on social media online
platforms and generating advertising income from overseas
educational institutions through video conferences, webinars,
and virtual fairs. As the Hong Kong Government relaxed
the anti-epidemic measures, recruitment activities were
relaunched in major industries such as catering, construction,
insurance, property management, banking, transportation,
airport and aviation logistics, and health care. As physical
education exhibitions are also gradually resumed as normal,
the online and offline sales portfolio of the JobMarket and
Headlinedobs recruitment pages are strengthened.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2023, the global economic environment
remains complex and volatile, with both opportunities and
challenges. After three years of epidemic prevention and
control, there are dawning signs of an end to the pandemic,
and the world is stepping into a stage of recovery. Most
of the quarantine restrictions have been lifted in Mainland
China and Hong Kong, and the long-awaited quarantine-free
customs clearance between the two places has been
officially implemented. This further supports the sustainable
development of the local economy, which benefits industries
to plan promotion strategies for the coming year, and it is
expected that local advertising expenditures will resume
growth.
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However, there are still many uncertainties and constraints in
the global macro trend. Under these conditions, we expect
the Hong Kong economy will resume positive growth in 2023
and open a new chapter in the post-epidemic era. However,
the road to recovery in Hong Kong still faces a number of
challenges. There is still a long way to return to the pre-
COVID level. In the face of the difficult business environment,
the Group will continue to maintain its capital and liquidity in
a prudent and cautious manner, focus on its core strengths,
provide high-quality content and a cost-effective advertising
platform to meet the needs of our readers and advertising
clients. This way, we are best positioned to cope with the
upcoming recovery and stand ready for the long term.

At the same time, 2023 marks the official 85™ anniversary of
“Sing Tao”, which is also a major milestone for Hong Kong
society and the media. To celebrate this event, Sing Tao
News Group will unite together and share the same vision,
aiming to create a wonderful celebration year in 2023 and
share this joy with Hong Kong people. We will take the
“Growing with Hong Kong” tour exhibitions to showcase Sing
Tao’s development history and Hong Kong’s history over
the past 85 years, which will be held in Hong Kong Island,
Kowloon and the New Territories. We believe that the event
will recall precious memories of all Hong Kong people.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok Ying Shing (58) has been the Chairman and
an Executive Director of the Company since 2021 and has
been redesignated as the Co-Chairman and remained as an
Executive Director of the Company with effect from 30 May
2022. Mr. Kwok is currently the chairman and an executive
director of each of Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. (“Kaisa Group”)
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1638)
and Kaisa Capital Investment Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 936). He is one of
the founders of Kaisa Group and has been the chairman of its
board and a director since its inception in 1999. Mr. Kwok is
primarily responsible for overall strategy, investment planning
and human resource strategy of Kaisa Group. Mr. Kwok is
also an executive director of Kaisa Health Group Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 876). Mr. Kwok has extensive experience in real estate
development, investment and financing management. He is
the father of Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting, the Vice-chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Choi Karson Ka Tsan (37) has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2021 and
has been redesignated as an Executive Director and the
Co-Chairman with effect from 30 May 2022. Mr. Choi is
currently the vice-chairman of Early Light International
(Holdings) Ltd. (“Early Light”), the founder and chairman
of Unique Timepieces Watches Group Limited and the
chairman of Fastwheel Motors Group Limited. Early Light is
the world’s largest toys manufacturer. Under the leadership
of Mr. Choi, Early Light has developed diversified businesses,
including the industries of toys manufacturing, shopping
mall development, property rental and management, luxury
watches retail, motors sales and maintenance, bioplastic
production and education. He is the deputy director of the
Committee on Population, Resources and Environment and a
member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. Mr. Choi also serves as
a member of the Court of the University of Hong Kong,
members of various government advisory committees and
leaders of social groups. He graduated from University of
Southern California, United States with a Bachelor’s Degree
in International Relations.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENGREERE

Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting (29) has been the Vice-chairman, an
Executive Director and the Co-Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company since 2021. Ms. Kwok was formerly an executive
director of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2168) from
April 2020 to December 2021. She was also the assistant
Chairman and the general manager of the Curriculum
Development Department of Kaisa Noying Education
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Ms. Kwok graduated from Durham
University in the United Kingdom with a Bachelor’'s Degree
in Business and Management in June 2016 and obtained a
Master Degree in Sustainability Management from Columbia
University in the United States in December 2017. She is the
daughter of Mr. Kwok Ying Shing, the Co-Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Cai Jin (36) has been an Executive Director and the
Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Company and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company since 2021. Mr. Cai
holds a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in
Accounting and Finance from the University of Hong Kong,
a master’s degree in Arts in International Journalism Studies
from the Hong Kong Baptist University and a doctorate
degree in Business Administration from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Cai previously took up key roles in
several listed companies in Hong Kong with around 15 years’
experience in media and finance. Mr. Cai is a guest professor
at the School of Accounting and Finance of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, an adjunct professor at the School
of Communication of the Hong Kong Baptist University and
the advisor of the International Business School of Zhejiang
University. He is also a committee member of the Media
and Communications Training Board of the Vocational
Training Council, a committee member of the Newspaper
Society of Hong Kong, a member of the Institute of Certified
Management Accountants Australia and a fellow member of
the Institute of Public Accountants Australia.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (68) has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2021. Mr. Wu
is the chief advisor to MUFG Bank, Ltd., the Chairman of the
China Oxford Scholarship Fund and an Honorary Professor
of Faculty of Medicine of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and Peking Union Medical College Hospital. Mr. Wu
was formerly a member of the Chief Executive’s Council of
Advisers on Innovation and Strategic Development of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, the chairman
of the Hong Kong Hospital Authority, the chairman of the
Bauhinia Foundation Research Centre, a member of the
Task Force on Land Supply of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, and a director of Fidelity Funds,
Agricultural Bank of China Limited and Guangdong
Investment Limited. He was a member of the General
Committee of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce
from 2000 to 2017, served as its chairman from 2010 to
2012, and is currently a member of its Council. Mr. Wu is
an independent non-executive director of China Resources
Medical Holdings Company Limited and is an independent
non-executive director of each of Power Assets Holdings
Limited, China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited,
CStone Pharmaceuticals, Venus Medtech (Hangzhou)
Inc., Ocumension Therapeutics and Hui Xian Real Estate
Investment Trust, all of which are companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. He is also the chairman and non-executive
director of Clarity Medical Group Holding Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange on 18 February
2022). Mr. Wu is an Honorary Fellow of Hong Kong College
of Community Medicine. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and an
Honorary Chairman of The Institute of Certified Management
Accountants (Australia) Hong Kong Branch.

Ms. Han Yonghong (46) has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2021. Ms. Han
is currently a professor, a Doctor of Law, a tutor to master
students, and the deputy dean of the School of Law of the
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies, the PRC. She is
also a visiting scholar at the University of Wisconsin-Madison,
the University of Central Lancashire in the United Kingdom,
and Ritsumeikan University in Japan. She graduated from
the Southwest University of Political Science & Law, the PRC
with a Bachelor’s Degree, a Master’s Degree and a Doctoral
Degree in Law.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENGREERE

Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew (44) has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2022. Mr. Fan
is a practicing certified public accountant in Hong Kong with
over 15 years of experience. He holds a Bachelor Degree of
Business Administration (Accounting and Finance) from The
University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor Degree in Laws from
the University of London. Mr. Fan is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a committee member of the tenth to
twelfth Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
the Zhejiang Province, the fourth and fifth Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Shenzhen, the tenth
and eleventh Vice Chairman of Zhejiang Province United
Young Association and a member of the fourteenth National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference.

Mr. Fan is currently an independent non-executive director of
Chuang’s China Investments Limited, Culturecom Holdings
Limited, Nameson Holdings Limited, China Aircraft Leasing
Group Holdings Limited and China Overseas Grand Oceans
Group Ltd., all of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Fan had been an independent
non-executive director of Fulum Group Holdings Limited from
October 2014 to May 2021, Sinomax Group Limited from
March 2014 to June 2020, Universal Star (Holdings) Limited
from April 2019 to October 2020 and Space Group Holdings
Limited from December 2017 to August 2022, the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
and Sanbase Corporation Limited from December 2017 to
January 2020, CNC Holdings Limited from January 2018 to
August 2020 and Omnibridge Holdings Limited from June
2017 to November 2020, the shares of which are listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

30 SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED £ B EEEER AT

WREACWMBE S _FREFRRARZEL
FNTEF - BAENBBRESHAN - BEA A
ERE HIFAELAZIHER (S LK) 2
TEURRAKRSEERELEN - BEEAEHAE
FAREHMAENEBCHMAECEEEE - |
NEFEARBAHESENIEAEFTEEZFE T
EZEeZE8 HwBRARBAHREEHFTYTEN
ERFRAEZECEE FTEEE+—ERIA
EFBACEERE  UARFBEARBAHEECES
+THEEEEZEEEE -

BEAERBAHLTHEEERSRAA  ELEES
EBERAR  EIEERERAR  PEREEES
EIZERERAFRIERFEEGINRFEEERARZE
VHERTEE (ZERRBRFER L) ¢
BEEER_T—NF+ARE_ZT=_—FHAAE
EREEEBRAERARZBIYIENTES KT
—MF=ZRE T _TFAARRBEEARAA
ZHEIYFRNTEE N E-NFNAE-_ZT_-F
FTRABEF (ER) BRAGBZENIFEHNITES
MR ZZE—+tF+ AT __F N \AREFE
EEZERBRAFRICEBILIFNTES (RFRF 2K
MERBRFAERE™)  TRZZE—+tF+=A
ECE - TF-AHAHEEREQARZE L IFNTT
BEE R \F—Az_Z2_FFN\AHIFEH
B EERIERBERARZBIIIERITEE RN
E—+FNAEZEEF+—ANAEREERE
RABZBIYIFERITES (RERAZRMH IR
RETRIZER L) o



SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Kwong King Lim (67) is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group’s China operations (Publications), the Chief
Executive Officer of Sing Tao Daily overseas region, the
Editor-in-Chief of Sing Tao Daily overseas, and a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kwong graduated
from the Department of Chinese Language and Literature of
Jinan University. He joined the Group in 2003. Prior to joining
the Group, he was the vice chairman of The Newspaper
Society of Hong Kong and held senior positions in various
media companies. He has extensive experience in editorial,
operations and administration.

Mr. Tong Kam Piu lvan (61) is the Editor-in-Chief of Sing
Tao Daily and The Standard newspapers. He has extensive
knowledge and experience in both English and Chinese
media industry in Hong Kong. Upon graduation from the
Hong Kong Baptist University in 1985, Mr. Tong started his
journalism career and worked for several English and Chinese
newspapers. He has worked in senior positions for two listed
companies in Hong Kong with businesses on the mainland.
He was stationed in Beijing and Shanghai from year 2000 to
2002. Mr. Tong joined the Group in 2002 and was appointed
as the Editor-in-Chief of The Standard in 2006. He was
further appointed as the Editor-in-Chief of Sing Tao Daily and
Headline Daily in December 2021, in addition to his position
in The Standard.

Mr. Ng Wai Kwong (56) is the Group News Director of Sing
Tao News Corporation, responsible for editorial management
of the Group and overseeing news resources. He joined the
Group in 2003 as the Deputy Editor-in-Chief of East Week.
Prior to joining the Group, he held senior positions in various
media companies and has extensive experience in editorial,
operations and administration.

BREEE

BRREEO)REAEENHEEBEE (TY)
FCEBBR)BINRITHRAR MBIMNRBRE - A
RARBZEMBRARZES BEEEXNER
RERX R -BR_TZ=FMBAEE  EME
AEHEA  BEABERELGREFR LEZH
BREEETBSEER  ERX K2 RTHHIEY
BREEEER -

BRELAEGCNREI(ES AR RCEXER)ER
AP XREXBRTERELELER -5
FER—NN\EFEEREREEER  ERMAR
WEHMEMERERRXKETNE - TEMEHN
B mBEEHAERTE £ XRHERMAER
EBWAIER EHARLERIAE  XES—RE
REPTAREEHEES - SLEHRRH - E=ZFHMH
BREILERE EBTE TERARER - SRER
“EE_FEABTHE MBAKE —TTAFE
E(ERXER)ERE 22— FEEZERAK
HESEEET(ESBHR) M(CREEHR) BREL

REAXTEGCORTESHEEEAR QA EEFN
HAaL BEREKREHEEREGEREIE - BR
“EE-FNAXKEEE(RATDEERE - 1©
MBAREHER  REEENZHREBNBERAAFE
TER  ARF KERTBOIEORELERKR

Annual Report 2022 FE$R & 31



iE
CORPORATE =
GOVERNANCE &

II.F ’D

B BAAR WMFRLE ]




The Directors believe that good corporate governance
practices serve as an effective risk management for the
Company and hence, the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) will benefit from the high standard of
corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and complied with the CG
Code throughout the review period with deviations from
certain code provisions of the CG Code specified and
explained below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for
dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries to all Directors who
have confirmed that, during the Year, they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2022, the Board consists of seven
directors including four executive directors (the “ED(s)”) and
three independent non-executive directors (the “INED(s)”).
Names and biographical details of the Directors, which
include relationship(s) between the Directors, are set out
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 27 to 31.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company. The Board reviews and approves the objectives,
strategies, direction and policies of the Group, the annual
budget and the management structure of the Company. The
Board also reviews the Group’s performance in light of the
Group’s objectives, business plans and budgets.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report
TREGHRSE

Liability insurance for the Directors and senior management
officers of the Company was maintained by the Company
with coverage for any legal liabilities which may arise in the
course of performing their duties.

The Board has delegated the responsibility of the day-to-day
operations of the Group to the management of the Company.

The Co-Chairmen of the Board are Mr. Kwok Ying Shing and
Mr. Choi Karson Ka Tsan, and the Co-Chief Executive Officers
(the “Co-CEO(s)”) of the Group are Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting and
Mr. Cai Jin. The roles of the Co-Chairmen and the Co-CEOs
are separate, and their respective roles and responsibilities
were clearly established and set out in writing. The Co-
Chairmen are primarily responsible for the management
and effective performance of the Board. The Co-CEOs are
primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the
business of the Group.

Two INEDs, Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony and Ms. Han
Yonghong, and one INED, Mr. Fan Chun Wah Andrew,
were appointed for a fixed term ending on 2 June 2023 and
29 May 2024 respectively with renewal option subject to
retirement and re-election by rotation under the amended and
restated bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”).

According to the bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
and are subject to re-election at the annual general meeting
at least once every three years. Bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws
provides that any Directors who are appointed to fill casual
vacancies shall hold office only until the first general meeting
of the Company after their appointment, and are subject to
re-election by shareholders of the Company.
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ATTENDANCE OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

In compliance with the code provision C.1.4, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development
(the “CPD”) to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has adopted its own policy on Directors’
CPD. During the Year, the Company encouraged all Directors
to attend or give speeches at training courses, seminars
or conferences which were relevant to their respective
duties and responsibilities at the Company’s expenses, and
provided relevant materials and updates for their viewing.
According to the records provided by the Directors, the
Directors participated in the following CPD programmes
during the Year:

ESEERLEMRAREXER

RETTARXCAA EESE2EFERR
BR((HEZEER]) AR EHENE MR
B -ARFEREENHEZERRBITRATH
BER - RAFEAR  ARAEBAEEEFHFELE
BB THBNEIIRE @GR N
ZERIRE AN EHERBERESN  BREA
AR ARARBIRAEFERM T AR F
HEHMEMARMMER - REEFREMEIIE
A RERAFERNRETUATHEZEHE
RIER :

Type of CPD programmes
BFESXRREEEER
Viewing online
video, materials

Attending training
courses, seminars

Notes or conferences or updates
HEEIRE BRAERE -
Directors Bz HaF MAERERE MREEHER
Executive Directors: HiTEE !
Kwok Ying Shing (Co-Chairman) SEK (HELE) 1 4
Choi Karson Ka Tsan (Co-Chairman) BNE(HELE) 2 4
Kwok Hiu Ting (Vice-chairman and BE= (B FERYETHAER)

Co-CEQ) v
Cai Jin (Co-CEQ) BT (HETHAR) v
Zheng Wei (CFO) BB (EREIEE) 4 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors: B U HHTEE :

Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony T 4
Han Yonghong Tk AL v v
Fan Chun Wah Andrew SBERE 3 4

The Board held three regular meetings instead of four
as required by the code provision C.5.1 for efficiency
consideration during the Year. The regular meetings were
held to consider and approve, among other things, the annual
results, interim results and annual budget of the Group.
The Board was consulted for every crucial decision and the
written resolutions were also circulated to all Directors to
obtain the Board’s consents.
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According to the code provision F.2.2, the Chairman of the BETAGEXF22 EEBERALFEARALZ
Board shall attend the Company’s annual general meeting fERBFAS([RREFAE]) - EFSEFEM
(the “AGM”). The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Kwok Ying EREEREMAET KRG E S - —FRBFEFE
Shing was unable to attend the AGM held in 2022 due to R o

other business commitments.

Attendance record of Directors in 2022 is set out below: TECEFERESEHNEELEDT

Corporate

Audit Remuneration Nomination Governance

Committee  Committee = Committee AGM

HHWZEEE REZEE CEERZEERRBFAE

Notes Board  Committee

Directors = iri3 g8 ERZEg
Number of meetings held T CREN

in 2022 FNE 3 3
Executive Directors: HITEE .
Kwok Ying Shing (Co-Chairman) — SPEEFL (B 5 - /&) 1 3/3
Choi Karson Ka Tsan BE(BELE)

(Co-Chairman) 2 212
Kwok Hiu Ting (Vice-chairman 8= (5% E#E &

and Co-CEQ) TH##) 3/3
Cai Jin (Co-CEOQ) 2L (BETHEZ) 3/3
Zheng Wei (CFO) B (ERIHE) 4 2/2
Independent Non-Executive BUHBHTEE -

Directors:
Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony HE B 3/3 3/3
Han Yonghong KA 3/3 3/3
Fan Chun Wah Andrew SBELE 3 2/2 2/2
Choi Karson Ka Tsan ZENE 2 11 11
Notes: Ba
1. Mr. Kwok Ying Shing, was redesignated as the Co-Chairman 1.

of the Board with effect from 30 May 2022.

2. Mr. Choi Karson Ka Tsan was redesignated from an INED to 2.

an ED of the Company and appointed as the Co-Chairman of
the Board with effect from 30 May 2022.

&) Mr. Fan Chun Wah Andrew was appointed as an INED of the 3.

Company with effect from 30 May 2022.

4. Mr. Zheng Wei resigned as an ED of the Company with effect 4,

from 25 August 2022.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a remuneration committee and
its terms of reference are available on both websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration
Committee comprised three members and a majority of the
members are INEDs. The Committee is chaired by Mr. Wu
Ting Yuk, Anthony, with Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting and Mr. Fan
Chun Wah Andrew as members.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management’s (if any) remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

(i)  to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives; and

(i) to determine, with delegated responsibilities, the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and
senior management.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during the
Year:

° approved the discretionary bonus for the EDs and
senior management based on their performances.

The Company adopted a remuneration policy to support
the strategies and long-term vision of the Group as well as
provides adequate incentive for Directors and Employees to
pursue long-term growth and success of the Group.

The remuneration of each of the Directors are set out in this
annual report on pages 142 to 145.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a nomination committee and
its terms of reference are available on both websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Nomination
Committee comprised five members and a majority of the
members are INEDs. The Committee is chaired by Mr. Kwok
Ying Shing, with Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting, Mr. Wu Ting Yuk,
Anthony, Ms. Han Yonghong and Mr. Fan Chun Wah Andrew
as members.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

(i) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service) of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board;

(i)  to assess the independence of INEDs; and

(iv) to review the Nomination Policy (as defined below)
and the Board Diversity Policy (the “BDP”) and make
recommendations on any proposed revisions to the
Board, and monitor its implementation so as to ensure
its effectiveness.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during the
Year:

° reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board, the Nomination Policy and the BDP;

o assessed the independence of the INEDs, including
those served more than 9 years and subject to

re-election at the AGM; and

° recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
Directors for Shareholders’ approval at the AGM.
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Nomination Policy

The Company’s nomination policy is constituted by the
provisions set out in paragraphs (i) and (ii) of the Committee’s
principal roles and functions above, as the key nomination
criteria and principles of the Company for the nomination
of Directors (the “Nomination Policy”). The nomination
procedures for the appointment and reappointment of
Directors are summarised as below:

(i) For appointment of Directors, the Committee shall
identify and upon receipt an appointment proposal,
evaluate such individual(s), having due regard to
the Nomination Policy and BDP, and assess the
independence of the proposed INED(s) as appropriate,
then make recommendation(s) to the Board. The Board
may confirm the appointment of such individual(s) as
Director(s) or recommend such individual(s) to stand for
election at a general meeting. Individual(s) appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall be subject to re-election by the
Shareholders at the next general meeting after initial
appointment in accordance with the Bye-laws.

(i)  For re-appointment of Directors, the Committee
shall review the overall contribution and service
to the Company of each retiring Director, having
due regard to the Nomination Policy and BDP, and
assess the independence of each retiring INED, then
make recommendation(s) to the Board. The Board
may recommend such retiring Director to stand for
re-election at the AGM in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted its own BDP. The BDP aims to set
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. Selection
of candidates on the Board will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective selection criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity. The Committee will
monitor the implementation of the BDP and review it annually
to ensure its effectiveness.
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As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven
directors. Three of the directors are INEDs, thereby promoting
critical review and control of the management process. The
Company has appointed two female directors achieving a
female representation in the Board.

As at 31 December 2022, the ratio of women to men in
the workforce (excluding directors of the Company) was
46:54. For details of gender distribution, please refer to our
Environment, Social and Governance Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Board has established a corporate governance
committee which comprises three members. The Committee
is chaired by Mr. Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony, with Mr. Choi
Karson Ka Tsan and Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting as members.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

()  to develop, review, implement and monitor the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the
Board so as to comply with the legal and regulatory
requirements;

(i)  to review and monitor the training and CPD of Directors;

(iiy  to review the contribution required from a Director to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Company;

(iv) to develop, review, implement and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to

Directors and employees; and

(v)  to review the Company’s annual Corporate Governance
Report.
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Summary of the work performed by the Committee during the

Year:

reviewed the Company’s 2021 Corporate Governance
Report;

prepared materials and updates relevant to the
Company’s business for Directors’ viewing in
compliance with the code provision C.1.4 on Directors’
CPD;

noted the revised Corporate Governance Code and
related Listing Rules; and

noted the consultation conclusion on listing regime for
overseas issuers.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee and its terms
of reference are available on both websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee comprised
three members and all of them are INEDs. The Committee
is chaired by Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony, with Ms. Han
Yonghong and Mr. Fan Chun Wah Andrew as members.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

(0

(ii

(i)

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor and
assessing their independence and performance;

to review the Group’s financial information and
compliance; and

to review the Group’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems and their
effectiveness.
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Summary of the work performed by the Committee during the
Year:

° reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021;

° reviewed the interim report for the six months ended 30
June 2022; and

° reviewed the internal audit reports including the review
and evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditor, Messrs. Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided to the Group are set
out below:

RAFEANZBEEN THERE !

il

o BEREE T F+-A=+—HLFE
ZIEATBERE

. EMHE T -_—_FXNA=tHIEA~NEARZ
RHISRE &

s EHANELME BRURAREEKRAI
ERAGEL 2 e B -

BB B &

FAR - ARBRINEZBM KRBT BT EL

BRAFMASERER  ERZMIEEZRBFOHDA
SNz BRAHEINMT

Fee payable

Services rendered RSz RBE EAER
HK$’000

FET

Audit services HEP R 2,400
Non-audit services* IERE R -
Total &5t 2,400

*

Including the fees for procedures on continuing connected
transactions of the Group and on preliminary announcement of
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and in
presenting balanced and clear interim and annual financial
statements, other financial statements and announcements of
inside information disclosures. The reporting responsibilities
of the external auditor are set out in this annual report on
pages 65 to 73.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the
risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives and ensuring that the Group establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Board through its Audit
Committee oversees the risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and reviews their effectiveness.

Management is delegated to design, implement and maintain
risk management and internal control systems appropriately
and effectively; to identify, evaluate, manage and control the
risks that may have potential and material impacts on the
processes of their operation; to monitor and mitigate risks by
executing appropriate controls in their day-to-day operations;
to respond promptly to and follow up the findings of any
significant weakness or failures in the risk management and
internal control systems; and to conduct risk management
and internal control self-assessment on a regular basis to
evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of controls that are
in place.

The Internal Audit Department is independent of the Group’s
operation and reports directly to the Audit Committee twice
each year. It independently reviews on the major operating,
financial and compliance control and risk management
system of the Group on an on-going basis and covered
all major operations of the Group on a rotational basis.
Significant internal control deficiencies will be reported to the
executive management, the Audit Committee and the Board
on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are
taken.

The risk management process is embedded into our daily
operations and is an on-going process carried out by different
levels within the organization. Systematic risk management
procedures have been established and implemented to
ensure that significant risks (including environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) risks) arising from our business and
the constantly changing business environment are identified,
assessed by considering the potential impacts and likelihoods
of their occurrence, and managed effectively by identifying
suitable controls and countermeasures. The Group adopts
both top-down and bottom-up approaches in relation to risk
management. It combines a top down strategic review with
a complementary bottom up operational risk assessment to
identify, evaluate and manage significant risks.
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The risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are featured with a defined management structure with
clear lines of responsibility and authority, underpinning proper
segregation of duties, complemented by monitoring and
reporting mechanism to ensure proper checks and balances.
Policies and procedures covering key business processes
are established and communicated to staff, and are reviewed
regularly to ensure continued relevance and effectiveness, and
for continuous improvement. The systems are designed to
assist in the achievement of corporate objectives, to identify
and manage potential risks, to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for reliability of financial reporting, compliance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations, and to safeguard
assets from inappropriate use. Such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

A review of the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems is conducted at least annually. The review is
conducted through the use of risk management and internal
control self-assessment questionnaires, management of key
business units and corporate functions systemically review
and assess the changes of significant risks and formulate
relevant controls and mitigation measures; evaluate the
effectiveness of key internal controls over their business
operations that are in place; and confirm the effectiveness
of the systems. The assessment covers all the major internal
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management functions. The review
also considers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budgets of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions, internal
audit as well as ESG functions. The Internal Audit Department
is responsible for the coordination and consolidation work
of the annual review, performs independent examination and
reports the results to the Audit Committee.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee with
the assistance of Internal Audit Department has conducted
an annual review of the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems, and considered factors including
but not limited to the changes of significant risks (including
ESG risks), the Group’s ability to cope with its business
transformation and changing external environment; the scope
and quality of management’s review on risk management and
internal control systems; the result of internal annual review
of the effectiveness of risk and internal control systems; any
significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and status of compliance with the Listing Rules.
The Board considers the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are adequate and effective.
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Although there were no significant control failings or areas
of concerns identified during the Year, the risk management
and internal control systems will be reviewed regularly for
continuous improvement.

The Company has adopted its policy and procedures for
disclosure of inside information including but not limited to
restricting access to inside information to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis so as to ensure the
disclosure requirement of inside information in compliance
with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

The Company adopted a whistleblowing policy which aims to
encourage all stakeholders of the Group to voice concerns
or report any actual or suspected improprieties associated
with the Group through a confidential reporting channel.
The Group will handle such reports with due care and
handle the concerns raised by the whistleblowers fairly and
appropriately.

The Company includes the anti-bribery provisions in the
employee handbook based on Section 9 of the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
provides guideline for practical guidance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Shum Ka Fai has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since 2021. He is a full-time employee of the
Group, has day-to-day knowledge of the Company and has
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
The Company sets out the Shareholders’ rights on:

(@) How Shareholders can convene a special general
meeting (the “SGM”)

Pursuant to the bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws and section
74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended)
(the “Act”), Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company with voting right
can submit a written requisition to convene a SGM
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

BEFALEBNEMERERRANEZMIH
B AREDEEHRS LT SCER R EE A

EERL -

A B

=l

ARBEHAREENEBERAE HFHBR LR -
BRENEREHIBAETEMNENEENSAR
HE - UERABHEENRERN G B BEMEST
EEFMHEHOIIMESL -

ARRDRABHRBE - WLBREESRB AN EE A
ERNEEBRESMREREMINERELNE
EARNENERIRUTETS AEEKER
RIEEREH YEaQF HEMEREERERN
HREE ©

~EARE Y B AR 5P (BB AP F£201F) F9
iR IEXMABETFM  WRHEHKIES -

REAME

ZEBREE T —FRETARRZIAFME -
BRAAEEZBEES  WARAMNBEEEAMR
B WE BT EMRRAEI2GEMEEEINNR
o

% SR A

ARBFNHBRR R -

(@ PBRIREAIA A FBRERIKE ([R5
R&l)

REBEQARMAAUEBERBRE-NAN—FQ
A (B ([RRDED £746 - HAAR
AEBEBRAT IR+ 22— TFRAEN
BRRARHETMERERBRRE I ANE AR
BRZAERLEPIIENEMEE -

Annual Report 2022 FE$R & 45



Corporate Governance Report

oo

46

XERHE

The written requisition must:
()  state the purposes of such SGM,;

(i)  be signed by the requisitionists (which may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists); and

(i) be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of the
Board or the Company Secretary.

Such SGM shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a SGM.

How to put forward proposals at Shareholders’
meetings

Pursuant to sections 79 and 80 of the Act, Shareholders
can submit a written requisition to move a resolution at
a general meeting (the “GM”) if they:

(i) represent not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all Shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the GM; or

(i) are not less than 100 Shareholders.

The written requisition must:

(1) state the resolution, accompanied by a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the

matter referred to in the proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at the GM;
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be signed by the requisitionists (which may
be contained in one document or in several
documents in like form);

be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of
the Company Secretary not less than 6 weeks
before such GM in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less
than 1 week before such GM in the case of any
other requisition, however, if after a copy of the
requisition requiring notice of a resolution has been
deposited at the registered office of the Company,
a GM is called for a date 6 weeks or less after the
copy has been deposited, the copy though not
deposited within the time required as referred to in
the above shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited for the purposes thereof; and

be accompanied by a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
giving effect thereto.

How Shareholders can propose a person for election as
a Director

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director
at a GM, please refer to the procedures available on
both websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

How enquiries be put forward to the Board

The Company has already adopted an effective and
efficient way of receiving enquiries from its Shareholders
through the corporate e-mail as well as its principal
office in Hong Kong and therefore, will continue these
channels of communication.
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Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary (whose
contact details are set out below). The Company
Secretary will properly forward the enquiries to the
Board for appropriate action:

The Company Secretary

Sing Tao News Corporation Limited
Sing Tao News Corporation Building,
7 Chun Cheong Street,

Tseung Kwan O Industrial Estate,
Tseung Kwan O, New Territories,
Hong Kong

Email: investor@singtaonewscorp.com

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy on 28
March 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”) which is available on the
website of the Company. The Dividend Policy aims to provide
relatively steady dividend payout ratio and sustainable returns
to Shareholders, linked to the Group’s earnings performance,
financial position, cash flows position, expenditure plans
and investments requirements as well as the business
environment and strategies, and future prospects.

The Board may determine and pay to the Shareholders
interim dividends as it considers appropriate, and
may recommend the payment of final dividends to the
Shareholders for approval at the GM, subject to any
restrictions under the Bye-laws and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay dividends,
the form, frequency and amount will depend upon the
operations and earnings, capital requirements and surplus,
general financial conditions, contractual restrictions, other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of
the Company, and other factors that the Board deems
appropriate.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors
and other stakeholders. These include the annual
general meeting, the annual and interim reports, notices,
announcements and circulars and the Company’s website at
www.singtaonewscorp.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year of 2022, the Company’s bye-laws was
amended and the new bye-laws was adopted by the
shareholders of the Company at the 2022 AGM. The
purposes of making the amendments were to reflect certain
amendments to the Listing Rules and the applicable laws of
Bermuda.

Consolidated version of the Company’s constitutional
documents is available on both websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the Year.

A fair review of the Group’s business as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
an indication of likely future development in the Group’s
business, can be found in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” set out on pages 17 to 26 of this annual report.

In respect of the discussion on the Group’s environmental
policies and performance, its compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations and relationships with stakeholders are
set out in “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
which will be separately published on the respective websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company in due course
according to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Group is committed to enhancing governance, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the
environment and giving back to society in order to fulfill social
responsibility and achieve sustainable growth. The Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

Principal risk and uncertainties of the Group can be found in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages
17 to 26 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s financial performance for the Year and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in this
annual report on pages 74 to 204.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of final

dividend for the Year (2021: Nil). No interim dividend was
declared for the Year (2021: Nil).
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, and of assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out on
page 208 of this annual report. The summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the Year are set out in notes 29 and 30
to the financial statements respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 (as amended), amounted to approximately
HK$1,137,914,000 (2021: approximately HK$1,138,608,000).

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$12,000 (2021: HK$30,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers represented less than
30% of the Group’s total revenue. The aggregate amount of
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

During the Year, none of the Directors or their close
associates or the shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Kwok Ying Shing

Mr. Choi Karson Ka Tsan (redesignated from an Independent
Non-executive Director to an Executive Director on
30 May 2022)

Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting

Mr. Cai Jin

Mr. Zheng Wei (resigned on 25 August 2022)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony

Ms. Han Yonghong

Mr. Fan Chun Wah Andrew (appointed on 30 May 2022)

According to the bye-law 83 (2) of the amended and restated
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), Mr. Fan Chun
Wah Andrew shall hold office until the next following general
meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2023 AGM”). According to the bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws,
Mr. Kwok Ying Shing, Mr. Choi Karson Ka Tsan and
Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting will retire by rotation, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the 2023 AGM. Details
of the Directors’ standing for re-election will set out in the
circular to the shareholders of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony, Ms. Han
Yonghong and Mr. Fan Chun Wah Andrew, and as at the
date of this report still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 27 to 31 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or in existence during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the Year.
The Company has maintained directors and officers liability
insurance cover for the Directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings of the Company every year. Other
emoluments are determined and approved by the Board
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance, and the results of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), were as
follows:

Interests in the Company

BX

EERESTRAENE

it

RZEZZF+A=+—H FFEEAEXRAES
TRABRARR RERBEE (TEERLEBEH
FETIEBH R BEIEG ([EH REEKG]) EBXV
) 2B RABERG S - MEREBEESKBEK
PIEE3B21E AN A B A T 187 M & id it Fr it S R 1%
EABARSGHBRAR (BRI BEHELEMR
BI([EWRB DM EETE 2 EMBEITAESRE
THEAFERHGHZESTAD (TORESFRD]) ASTTA
EARRNRINEEBARSHMARARMERDT

EARQBHERE

Number of ordinary shares and underlying shares held,
capacity and nature of interest
FEHEEERREBROEE SORESEME

Percentage of
the Company’s

Personal Corporate issued

Name of director Note interests interests Total voting shares

HEARERITHN

BREERGZ

EEnA &t AR DA ey Baot

Mr. Choi Karson Ka Tsan 1 - 125,000,000 125,000,000 14.20%
Yk

Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting 2 - 125,000,000 125,000,000 14.20%
HEEzt

Note: Biaz -

s The corporate interests of 125,000,000 shares held by Power
Giant Holdings Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. Choi
Karson Ka Tsan.

2 The corporate interests of 125,000,000 shares held by Vast

Resources International Limited, which was wholly-owned by
Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting.
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Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company had or were deemed to have any
interest and short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the share option schemes disclosures
in note 30 to the financial statements, at no time during the
Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2022, those persons, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had
interested or were deemed to be interested in 5% or more of
the issued voting shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, were as follows:
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Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

Capacity and ordinary issued

Name Note nature of interest shares held voting shares
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ERERRMOZ

=x it BORERNE MBEEZBER™E Bok

Power Giant Holdings Limited 1 Beneficial owner 125,000,000 14.20%
B EZRBR A A EnfEEA A

Vast Resources International Limited 2 Beneficial owner 125,000,000 14.20%
7R B R B R A A EnfEAA

Stagelight Group Limited Beneficial owner 81,959,500 9.31%
EnfEAA

Mr. Lin Ho Man & Beneficial owner 47,674,000 5.41%
EERESE ExnfEE A
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Note:

1. The interests of Mr. Choi Karson Ka Tsan, held through a
controlled corporation, duplicate with those disclosed in the
section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests” above.

2. The interests of Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting, held through a controlled
corporation, duplicate with those disclosed in the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests” above.

3. Mr. Lin Ho Man purchased additional 19,000,000 shares,
totally 47,674,000 shares on 31 October 2022.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company had not been notified
of any other interests or short positions being held by any
person in the shares and underlying shares of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Bastille Post Holdings Limited (“BPHL”) is a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Lo Wing Hung, an former executive
director of the Company (resigned on 3 June 2021)
(“Mr. Lo"). Mr. Lo, through BPHL, holds 70% interest in
BPCL. The Group indirectly holds the remaining 30% interest
in BPCL. BPHL and BPCL (together with its subsidiaries and
associates, the “BP Group”) are therefore connected persons
of the Company as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions
with BPCL and the BP Group (as the case may be):

1. On 11 December 2020, the Group and the BP Group
entered into a Group Master Services Agreement for
a term of three years commencing from 19 December
2020 and expiring on 18 December 2023 (the “Group
Master Services Agreement”) pursuant to which the
Group agreed to, from time to time, provide the BP
Group with various services, including but not limited to
the following categories:

(@) Sharing of administrative services relating to
accounting services support, office administration
support, human resources support, information
technology support, general company secretarial
support and legal support between the Group and
the BP Group;
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Provision of office space by the Group to the BP
Group to accommodate its employees;

Provision of advertising spaces by the Group to
the BP Group for its own use;

Provision of advertising spaces by the Group to
the BP Group (as an advertising agent) for its sale;

Distribution of books published by the BP Group
through the Group;

Provision of information technology system
services by the Group to the BP Group for the
development of websites, mobile sites and mobile
applications;

Provision of content being owned by the Group to
the BP Group;

Provision of editorial services (including art and
production) by the Group to the BP Group; and

Provision of marketing related services and
products by the Group to the BP Group.
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On 11 December 2020, the Group and the BP
Group also entered into a BP Group Master Services
Agreement for a term of three years commencing from
19 December 2020 and expiring on 18 December 2023
(the “BP Group Master Services Agreement”) pursuant
to which the BP Group agreed to, from time to time,
provide the Group with various services, including but
not limited to the following categories:

(@) Provision of advertising spaces by the BP Group
to the Group for its own use;

(b)  Provision of advertising spaces by the BP Group
to the Group (as an advertising agent) for its sale;

(c) Distribution of books published by the Group
through the BP Group;

(d) Provision of content being owned by the BP Group
to the Group;

(e) Provision of editorial services (including art and
production) by the BP Group to the Group; and

() Provision of marketing related services and
products by the BP Group to the Group.

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 11
December 2020, the pricing policy under the Group Master
Services Agreement and the BP Group Master Services
Agreement will be based on the nature of transactions from
time to time entered into between the Group and the BP
Group as follows:

(@)

58

relating to the transactions on provision of office space
by the Group to the BP Group, the Group will have
regard to the then prevailing market licence fee for
similar type and size of space in the nearby locations,
and/or consult reputable agents for benchmarks of
assessment for at least two comparables;
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(b) relating to the transactions on provision of advertising
spaces by the Group to the BP Group and by the BP
Group to the Group for its own use by way of booking,
the price will be determined by the business team of the
Group based on the then prevailing market conditions,
industry practices and rate offered to independent third
parties; and

(c) relating to the other transactions, the Group will from
time to time obtain quotations from suppliers and/
or make price enquiries for the same or similar type
of service for at least two comparables so as to offer
the same or more favourable terms in the Group’s
perspective, to the BP Group.

Proper internal control measures have been in place to
review, approve and access all these transactions.

At any time during the terms of the Group Master Services
Agreement, the BP Group Master Services Agreement,
the Renewed Group Master Services Agreement and the
Renewed BP Group Master Services Agreement, the Group
and the BP Group may enter into individual agreement(s) in
relation to any of the services contemplated thereunder upon
and subject to the terms and conditions thereof.

The Company set the annual caps for each of the following
categories of the transactions for the three years from 19
December 2020 to 18 December 2023 (both dates inclusive):

(@)  Provision of various services by the Group to the BP
Group; and

(b)  Provision of various services by the BP Group to the
Group.

) BFENBEIRABAKERAELHREER
2 Ay ¥R 5 [ (A AN AR B 1R 1 /R S BRE (F B
RHNXS EESHASEXEBEERL2E
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M EBHRREE &
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FTELHOHmER -
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Report of the Directors

ESTHE

During the Year, the approximate aggregate service fees NAREER - AEBE S IER S8 B WE = (418
received or paid by the Group and the annual caps in respect NBERBERRFEE FREWOT :

of each category of the transactions are set out below:

Approximate

aggregate
services fees for Annual cap for
the financial the financial
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2022

BE-—S=-=-—f HE-ZB=-=—f%
+ZA=+—ALk +=ZA=+—HL

HHREEZ HHREEZ
Category Al BMAERKEER FELR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEIT FHETT
Provision of various services AEERELTHREER
by the Group to the BP Group REESERE 975 10,000
Provision of various services ErfsmEEmArsE
by the BP Group to the Group RHEZERS 1,440 7,600
The Directors considered that the transactions mentioned BEERAR LEXFIZ20 Bl 2R B EFRAK
in sub-paragraphs 1 to 2 above will benefit the Group EERSEENRLEENLE EeaNREE LD
in maximising operational efficiency and management SEMZEM  UREEABEELEER FIRAR
effectiveness, enhance versatility in content production and R REE—FSEERAEENESEERRESAE
distribution, and provide increased exposure in the internet B HEEENEE -
related media business, to further strengthen the Group’s
operations and maximise the Group’s media business value.
Under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the transactions BE FMHAETNAE gt X FE1E2D R Bt
mentioned in sub-paragraphs 1 to 2 above constituted CRGBERANEBRRNEE 2IFERER S ([#
continuing connected transactions (“CCT”) of the Group BRAERS])  WERAFRER ZERIHNF
for the Year which require disclosures in this annual BEERAATEEHA-ZE-_EFE+-_A+—H2ZA

report. Details of such transactions were disclosed in the L hiEE o
announcement of the Company dated 11 December 2020.
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The Company’s auditor were engaged to report on the
Group’s CCT for the Year in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor have
issued a letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the Group’s CCT mentioned above in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules confirming that nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe the
CCT:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group; and

(i) have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual caps
disclosed in previous announcements of the Company.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the Group’s CCT for the Year and the Group’s
internal audit report, and confirmed that the Group’s CCT for
the Year were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements applicable for the CCT in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, there were no connected
transactions or CCT, which were required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules, entered into between the Company
or its subsidiaries and a connected person during the Year.

ARABZZEMBERBRESSTMASER BB
% 75 B2 2 1) 55.30005% [ /F 5P BF 15 B KL 5t s 2 B
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EREASERAFEC RERERS ° V%%E
B ETRBIE14A 6183 K EFREFHEHESE £ X
FTilAEBM BEREISH 2 BERER  BRL
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BRER

() WRESE=E=GH
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=AREE o

ARBMBBLFATEZCENAEBERAFE
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of the Group’s connected transaction and CCT
subsisting at any time during or at the end of the Year are
disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions” above.
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or his or her
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party at any time
during or at the end of the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in normal
course of business during the Year are set out in note 34
to the financial statements. In relation to those related party
transactions that constituted connected transactions as
defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed
in the section “Connected Transactions” above.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares was
held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and a resolution for their

reappointment as external auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the 2023 AGM.
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OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Change of Address of Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar and Transfer Office

As announced on 8 July 2022, the address of Tricor Tengis
Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar
and transfer office, was changed to 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong with effect from 15
August 2022.

Completion of Transfer of Shares by Substantial
Shareholder

On 27 May 2022, Vast Resources International Limited
(the “Vendor”), a company wholly-owned by Ms. Kwok Hiu
Ting, and Power Giant Holdings Limited (the “Purchaser”),
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Choi Karson Ka Tsan,
have entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant
to which the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell, and the
Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase, 125,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company, representing approximately
14.20% of the entire issued share capital of the Company
as at 30 May 2022. This transfer of shares by substantial
shareholder have been completed on 19 September 2022.

Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 30 May
2022 for details.

Disposal of Property in Canada

On 20 September 2022 (Canada time), Sing Tao (Canada)
Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
and 5014048 Ontario Inc. entered into an agreement in
relation to the disposal of the real property located in Canada
held by the Group.

Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 22
September 2022 and 1 March 2023 for the principal terms of

the disposal.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Kwok Ying Shing
Co-Chairman

Choi Karson Ka Tsan
Co-Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2023
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sing Tao News Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sing Tao News Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 204, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M % BN ¥R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

HREZSER

REZRFNEZHE  AREZFTASRMATZA
HHEGEEMBBRRTREENSTR - RAEERS
BMBRRMBRUFZAERGREELEFEE M
ERULFFTHEBERER - RANBZH LTI
BERMEIETANEA N T

BPEBTHRRMIRE DK ERA ST
WABAEME X AR REZFEREEN
B -Fit RANBEZERATEEELRYES
MBRREANBREARFENEF - RPAFZERF
MER BRASRENTEEMBETHNEFC AR
PIBLBEMT AR & M S IR MIFM B X B RIR R -

Valuation of properties

YEIGE

As at 31 December 2022, land and buildings and investment
properties held by the Group amounted to approximately
HK$1,009,187,000 in aggregate, of which HK$881,338,000
related to owner-occupied buildings measured at fair value,
HK$23,000,000 related to prepaid land lease measured at fair
value and HK$104,849,000 related to investment properties.
The valuation process was inherently subjective and
dependent on a number of estimates. The Group engaged
an external valuer to perform the valuation for the Group’s
properties measured at fair value.
RZZEZZF+ZA=+—H BEERELHREFUR
BB EA T #751,009,187,0005 7T H F1881,338,000/8 7T
HiZ N TPEFENBREBFT AR 23,000,000% T HEHiZ QT
BEFftEMRAN LB EHRIAFE - 104,849,000% T Il xR &
MEEH - HERFAFAFEN  WEUARZHEMAN - &
SEERFIEGAEMBRATETEN EXEYWEET
RN

The related disclosures are included in notes 3, 13 and 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.
EBBEENFRE T EHRERMZES - 183K%14 ©

Our audit procedures included evaluating the
competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
external valuer employed by the Group; evaluating
the valuation methodology and the assumptions
adopted by the external valuer; assessing the
reasonableness of source data used as inputs
for the valuation and comparing such data with
market data of comparable properties; discussing
with management and external valuer on key
assumptions and judgements used in the valuation;
and assessing the adequacy of the disclosures on
the valuations of the investment properties.

BN BEZREFERTGE ESEMERNINE
HEMOBEE D KERTEME  FHINHREE
BOFT IR R E T A RRER R RIERERAE

M BUR AR A - WEB UM ENT S BIEIE
e BERERIBEEMTREARGEDNS
RBZMHE - RAEREVEGHERERLSRS °
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

MEERER(E)

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment

YE - B R E

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had property, plant and
equipment amounted to approximately HK$1,125,825,000,
comprising right-of-use assets of HK$61,321,000 and
owned assets of HK$1,064,504,000. In view of the operating
loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022,
management performed an impairment assessment on the
Group’s property, plant and equipment so as to determine
whether the carrying amounts of these assets was higher
than the recoverable amounts as at 31 December 2022. The
impairment test was based on the recoverable amounts of
individual cash-generating units to which these assets were
associated with, and the recoverable amounts of the relevant
cash-generating units were determined based on value-in-use
calculation using the discounted cash flows method. No
impairment was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 by the
Group.

RZEZZF+-_A=+—H0  BE5EOYE BELERRE
#)/1,125,825,000/% 7T © £ $561,321,0005% JT &Y £ F #E & &
1,064,504,0008 T B AEE - ERN EXEEREE_ZT
T AT -HLEFEHSLEEE BEEYH &
SENYE BERREETRAEN G UEEZZEEER
CE I CF+ A=+ HNEREERESR KBS -
BEARATDERZEEAEMABENENREESLA YD
R MEBRSELASEUN KRB S EDEREREE
BUMRBeREEETE - EXEERBE_T-__F+-H
= t—HLEFENGEERRAY EBERE(ADRE -

Our audit procedures included, among others,
evaluating the Group’s policies and procedures
of impairment assessment, having discussions
with management on the Group’s business plans,
assessing management’s bases and significant
assumptions adopted in the value-in— use
calculation including, among others, expected future
operating performance of the cash-generating units,
growth rates and discount rates with reference to
the latest operating performance and historical data
of the Group. We have reviewed management’s
sensitivity analysis on key assumptions and
discounted cash flows projections for any significant
impact on the recoverable amounts of the
cash-generating units.

ZHmEZREFER (AP eR) RE EREKRD
HNEEXERALBERE  FE EEEOR
EFEBEREErF HafEEER E£ENX

BetdlETd®m AEEEEAEEREAENEE
EFRONEERR (AT ERARRSELEMR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) MBREXREEE)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEREXER REZTEERRELEENS X

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment (continued)

YWE - BERREREFG (&)

Management’s impairment assessment process involves
significant judgement and estimations in determining key
assumptions used, including, among others, expected future
operating performance of the cash-generating units, growth
rates and discount rates. They are sensitive to future market
conditions and the actual performance of the cash-generating
units.

ERBELRENGEESI R EMANERRBRETE
RHE R EPBRERREELEURRLERR
BEERFRE  HHERKTALRREELEVNERRE
(SR

The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BRABBENGRE W BRRMEIRIS -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

FHABOEMER
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE REMMBERGEMBRREARENSE (&)
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content . LG EMEHRR (BIEERIEE) HERET|
of the consolidated financial statements, including the W OBBANAD  URGEAVEBERERZ2EE
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial ANAMIHREELZREHE -

statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding . 7 BEEENSERAER TN KEER
the financial information of the entities or business ELSFZEREENEZRE URKE TS
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the HEREEXER -BMEEAERE EBLH
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible TEENSERI - -BZMHEARMANEBEZXE
for the direction, supervision and performance of the BAEER2IBEE -
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among HMMEZ LENEISGENERE AEZARESP

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and MErEEERIE (BERNPEITNEARL) RE

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies thEIFEEZLZEGEITRR -

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement KM MABEZETESIIETER  HPKMEFEE
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements RSN EAEXEEE R WHEEEERAD
regarding independence and to communicate with them EEAEMERASEER MBI ENFTERBERMNE
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be MEIE - UREERMERT - BLOBBRE B
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, EEBEHTEERIA T E R 1E o

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Del Rosario, Faith Corazon.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2023

Del Rosario, Faith Corazon
Practising certificate number P06143

RBMRERGEMBRRARENER (&)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
meERmk

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 —F - —# 1= H=+—HIF/F

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
REVENUE A 9 815,008 834,788
Cost of sales $55 AR (607,761) (585,668)
GROSS PROFIT EF 207,247 249,120
Other income and gains, net B A Rz 2 558 5 48,581 22,586
Distribution expenses DA X (143,400) (156,229)
Administrative expenses TEHRAX (226,317) (252,613)
Other (expenses)/income, net Hip () Wes 2 B85 (2,257) 2,116
Finance cost & AR 6 (1,242) (976)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAG T 51 R F K E5 18 -
Joint ventures BB (11,005) (4,680)
Associates e RN 1,505 1,598
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRTL A5 1B 7 (126,888) (139,078)
Income tax expense FriS®if X 10 (11,896) (734)
Loss for the year attributable to owners &R & HE AEIEAREE
of the Company &8 (138,784) (139,812)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ARG EEREZEEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS E{SREE
OF THE COMPANY
- (HK cents) — (L) 12
Basic - PN (15.76) (15.88)
Diluted #E (15.76) (15.88)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEZEHRER

HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
LOSS FOR THE YEAR KEEER (138,784) (139,812)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H{ 2@z
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that LA1& Hi & 7] gL E 51 5 8
may be reclassified to profit or loss in BRI EM 2 E
subsequent periods: (B#B/) M -
Exchange differences on translation of ~ #E GINEFEEE =58
foreign operations (with nil tax effect) (ERBEE) (4,845) 8,414
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income A& EAfEI AT E BT D 4B
that may be reclassified to profit or EEENAMEE
loss in subsequent periods (E18) /W55 (4,845) 8,414
Other comprehensive income that will LA BiRI N eE E 5 A
not be reclassified to profit or loss in BarHEMm2mas :
subsequent periods:
Gains on property revaluation LE SRRl 13 27,534 14,544
Income tax effect Frig il s & 28 (4,916) (3,300)
22,618 11,244
Share of other comprehensive income  JE{E & &t EH M2 mE WK
of a joint venture (with nil tax effect) = (ERBELE) 7,545 790
Net other comprehensive income that AR EAB T REEFH D 1A
will not be reclassified to profit or EEENEMEER
loss in subsequent periods W &5 F K8 30,163 12,034
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME B %% & & H fth 2 [ W 3%
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 25,318 20,448
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS ARAEAEABRGLEFE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE 2HEBEEE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (113,466) (119,364)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M BARR R

As at 31 December 2022 R —FE = —#F+—=—F=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 13 1,125,825 1,123,727
Investment properties "EYE 14 104,849 124,742
Other intangible assets HEihEmpEE 16 100 100
Investments in joint ventures REELEZRE 17 15,033 70,113
Investments in associates REE QR ZIRE 18 23,962 25,497
Equity investments designated at fair EEBEAFERGTA
value through other comprehensive Hfh2E W 2 a1t
income w& 19 47 47
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEFABRESZ
profit or loss B & E 23 10,969 11,334
Deferred tax assets BEFIAEE 28 4,571 4,571
Other deposits paid EMBE sz e 22 3,544 5,413
Total non-current assets ERBEEHAE 1,288,900 1,365,544
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories BE 20 37,065 37,910
Trade receivables FEUER X 21 190,631 180,878
Prepayments, other receivables and TR RIE - HAbEWEIE R
other assets H A& B 22 27,205 36,824
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEFABRE VB
profit or loss BE 23 1,846 2,038
Tax recoverable AJ U5 [ 7% 18 1,385 3,890
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEMEER 24 472,454 526,947
730,586 788,487
Asset classified as held for sale NEABELEZEE 25 35,157 =
Total current assets mBEERLE 765,743 788,487
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBEE
Trade and bills payables JENBRZ MR 26 29,185 42,035
Other payables and accruals b & 3008 & E AT RIR 27 130,284 144,597
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 16,214 7,613
Tax payable JET IR 282 221
Total current liabilities mEBBERE 175,965 194,466
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFEE 589,778 594,021
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ERRBABECEELE
LIABILITIES 1,878,678 1,959,565
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HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ERABABEZEELE
LIABILITIES 1,878,678 1,959,565
Non-current liabilities EmEBAaR
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIEAE 28 127,401 113,070
Lease liabilities HEBaEF 15 23,491 5,243
Total non-current liabilities FnBBERE 150,892 118,313
Net assets EEFE 1,727,786 1,841,252
EQUITY iz &
Equity attributable to owners of NATER AEG
the Company i 7
Issued capital BT 29 176,109 176,109
Reserves HE 31 1,551,677 1,665,143
Total equity 1% #E 42 E 1,727,786 1,841,252
Cai Jin Kwok Hiu Ting
BT HE=
Director Director
EZE EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 —F - —# 1= H=+—HIF/F

Attributable to owners of the Company

Issued
ordinary
share
capital
BET

Share
premium
account
B&in

Share
option
reserve
RRiE

Asset
revaluation
reserve

BEEf

Contributed
surplus

Exchange
fluctuation  Retained
profits

TERE  RER HARR fifE =1 RERN RELE
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FEr  TET  TErT  TEr  FErT FET FET FEIL
(Note 29)  (Note 29)  (Note 31)
(Hit29)  (Wit29) (Wi#31)
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—%—f—H 176,109 43,522 407,890 22,137 348,163 (37,160) 1,017,566 1,978,227
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - - (139,812) (139,812
Other comprehensive income for FEEMAEKE
the year:
Gains on property revaluation, MEEHNE  NHFA
net of tax - - - - 11,244 - - 11,244
Exchange differences related to BRNEBFEN
foreign operations BEHE = - - - 304 8,10 - 8,414
Share of other comprehensive EHARMEEM
income of a joint venture cEkR - - - - 790 - - 790
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ £E 2 A/ (BiE)
for the year x - - - - 12338 8110 (139,812 (119,364
Transfer of share option reserve PR R R
upon the forfeiture of share options ~ BRREHE - - - (12,272 - - 12212 =
Final 2020 dividend paid EEN=-E=%
REKS - - - - - - (17,611)  (17,611)
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-%
+=A=1+-H 176,109  43,522° 407,890 9,865* 360,501*  (29,050)" 872,415* 1,841,252
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Attributable to owners of the Company
ONGIE 2PN

Issued
ordinary Share Share Asset  Exchange

share  premium Contributed option revaluation fluctuation  Retained

capital  account surplus reserve reserve reserve profits

& ki BhRE EBEEf EXED
EER% BEE  MAR# it e fiff  REER
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
&7 7T FEr 7T FEr 7T FE7 FEr
(Note 29)  (Note 29)  (Note 31)
(Wd29)  (hdz9)  (Histr)

At 1 January 2022 RZZ-—%-F-H 176,109 43,522 407,890 9,865 360,501 (20,050) 872,415 1,841,252
Loss for the year REEER - - - - - - (138,784)  (138,784)
Other comprehensive income/{loss) FEEpEENE/ (B58):
for the year:
Gains on property revaluation, netof tax ~ MEEEWE  RHE - - - - 2618 - - 268
Exchange differences related to RN EREENERZE
foreign operations - - - - - (4,845) - (4,845)
Share of other comprehensive income of ~ EFA 2 EEM2ENE
ajoint venture - - - - 6,448 1,097 - 7,545

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for EERENE/ (BR) 28

the year - - - - 29,066 (3,748)  (138,784)  (113,466)
Transfer from asset revaluation reserve AEEERHBERRNE
relating to disposal of a property of —BRELEN-HNE
a joint venture BENFE - - - - (30,651) - 30,651 -
Transfer of share option reserve upon RRNERERE AR E
the forfeiture of share options Bl - - - (1,851) - - 1,851 -
At 31 December 2022 R-B-ZE+ZA=1-H 176,109 43,522+ 407,890* 8,014 358,916 (32,798)* 766,133 1,727,786
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves @ ELEEREEEBR TR BRI RPNEGES HEE
of HK$1,551,677,000 (2021: HK$1,665,143,000) in the 1,551,677,000/ 7T (=& = —4 : 1,665,143,000/%
consolidated statement of financial position. L)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEBRERNER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %2 — & — — 4+ - H=+—HIF/ZF

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REEKELEHETE
Loss before tax B B AT ES 18 (126,888) (139,078)
Adjustments for: EEL T3 %
Finance cost Bh & B AR 6 1,242 976
Share of profits and losses of EiEeEtEnik
joint ventures B 18 11,005 4,680
Share of profits and losses of FEAG B & R RR T &
associates E1a (1,505) (1,598)
Bank interest income RITH B WA 5 (5,128) (854)
Investment income wEWA 5 (19) (3,791)
Dividend income from equity REEREREZKRE
investments ' @N 5 (115) (271)
Fair value (gains)/losses, net, on: AEEMWE) BHE
R
Investment properties and asset BREMERDERF
classified as held for sale EHEMEE 5 (16,928) (4,7106)
Financial assets at fair value EAFEFABRE
through profit or loss 2 IEEE ) 491 (5,980)
Derivative financial instruments ?ﬁi%%ﬁlﬂ
— transactions not qualifying as TREAEEHRERZ
hedges R 5] 221 16
Gain on lease modifications HE BTN ) (21) (359)
Gain on disposal of items of property,  HEWE - FE &EE
plant and equipment 1H B 2 Was 5 (107) (613)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% BEMEEITE
equipment (other than right-of-use (FREEERIN)
assets) 7 66,584 71,971
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 7 18,421 22,132
Impairment loss/(reversal of JE Y BR SRR (B 5 18
impairment) of trade receivables S CRERE) 7 2,160 (2,310)
Write-off of trade receivables JE Ui BR SR 58 7 - 32
Write-off of other receivables H b 1 s BR FO 85 7 250 =
Write-down of inventories to net FEMEZE]#IR
realisable value FE 35 -
(50,302) (59,763)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFERL,(3Em) 810 (19,783)
(Increase)/decrease in trade FEUBRZX ~ TR RE
receivables, prepayments, other ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬂ&mlﬁ&ﬁ@
receivables and other assets EE MmO (2,544) 6,211
(Decrease)/increase in trade and ERERRRE - Hi
bills payables, other payables and JE - 3R IE K FE R 5RIR
accruals (R A) /i (27,163) 5,397
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HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Cash generated from operations REEKFMELERS (79,199) (67,938)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded ERERBHIEH 2,205 1,233
Overseas tax paid B8N IR (1,800) (2,400
Interest element on lease liabilities HEBEBE MBI H (1,242) (976)
Net cash flows used in operating REXRFEACHERE
activities R (80,036) (70,081)
Cash flows from investing activities BREXBELECRERE
Interest received B F B 5,128 854
Investment income wEWA 19 3,791
Dividends received from listed equity Bl EmEatERE e
investments &% & 115 271
Purchases of items of property, plant BEWE  BER&E
and equipment EY= (19,664) (27,537)
Deposits paid for purchases of items of EEWE - HE L& E
property, plant and equipment HEBE 2 EBHZS - (1,122)
Purchases of financial assets at fair BEERAFEFAEBREE
value through profit or loss 2B EE (268) =
Dividend received from a joint venture B WA Z D EZKE 50,699 =
Dividend received from an associate S RN Py ) 2,106 =
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEZAFETFABRE
assets at fair value through profit or 2 B R & E TS FRIR
loss 20 155,745
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWME - BE KR HE
property, plant and equipment 15 B 5518 119 3,717
(Placement)/withdrawal in non-pledged (77 A) /1248 BUZ B
time deposits with original maturity [RE)EA A 3B =& A
of more than three months when ZERHEEHER
acquired (13,398) 141,258
Net cash flows from investing REEKELEZRS
activities REFHE 24,876 276,977
Cash flows from financing activities BEEZHE4L2HERE
Principal portion of lease payments HMENR RS S ) 33(b) (16,543) (23,444)
Dividends paid BRI E - (17,611)
Net cash flows used in financing METHEAZRERE
activities b2 (16,543) (41,055)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEBRERNER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %2 — & — — 4+ - H=+—HIF/ZF

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ﬁﬁ&iﬂﬁi%fﬁlﬁ B

cash equivalents ) 1R s (71,703) 165,841
Cash and cash equivalents at ﬁ%ﬂzfﬁﬁ&fﬁﬁwﬁ

beginning of year 18 H 525,348 357,125
Effect of foreign exchange rate MEREF) v 2FS

changes, net 3,812 2,382
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZ2BEERBESEE

end of year HH 457,457 525,348
Analysis of balances of cash and RekReFHEEEB

cash equivalents RO
Cash and bank balances R RIBITES 24 186,553 491,545
Non-pledged time deposits EH R E BTN 24 285,901 35,402
Cash and cash equivalents as B 35 iR O 3k A BT 4 Y

stated in the statement of HeRHRSEEEE

financial position 472,454 526,947
Non-pledged time deposits with original R EUSE R T B BB

maturity of more than three months =@ Az &K

when acquired TFHIER 24 (14,997) (1,599)
Cash and cash equivalents as RERERAMAMHN

stated in the statement of ReRALEEEE

cash flows 457,457 525,348
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2.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATION INFORMATION

Sing Tao News Corporation Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group (as defined in note 2.1) was
involved in the following principal activities:

° media
° property holding
° investment holding

In the opinion of the directors, Vast Resources
International Limited (“Vast Resources”) and Power
Giant Holdings Limited (“Power Giant”), which are
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands respectively,
are the Company’s substantial shareholders. Vast
Resources is beneficially owned by Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting,
an executive director of the Company, and Power Giant
is beneficially owned by Mr. Choi Karson Ka Tsan, an
executive director and Co-Chairman of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties, land
and buildings, asset classified as held for sale, certain
derivative financial instruments, equity investments and
debt securities, and financial assets at fair value which
have been measured at fair value. These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

e ISR

REEHR

EEHEHEBRERAA([ARA]) ABER
REFMA L2 BR AR AR AE Z M
Z A1 Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °

AEE(TEAN L) FRREL TBEE
m -

o HE
s WERH
s KREEK

EER/NEBREZHESEMA L2 RIRE
BARXAE ([ZR]) REEZEBRAER AR (TE
EDAARAZEERR - ZRAANRAH
TEFFR=ZRLESEA MEEAARQ
AMITESRBREFESENEBLEERES -

mREE

ZEFAMBHRRIREBLGMAE ([F
BEETMAE]) B BBHBREEN([F
BMBHREER ] (EMBREMA RV R
XA FRGAEN((FESHERD R
BB ATAFEARGHARAUEEE
RAVMEPI 2 WEBRE - M HRKR Ty AE LK
KEmE HEREME LHEEFT 28
REBFELHEZEE - FTTESRT A  #
aUERENEBESFANBR AT EFEZY
BEEANZATVENE ZEHREMHRE
RET25 BB EREIN  AARED
MERAZE T -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

84

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company has,
directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual

HKFRS 3 Framework
Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment:
HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended

Use
Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2018-
2020

2.1

2.2

mBl 2 B (15)
RERBZEE(E)

MRFERBABR LAENN=IATESR
—HXZHRAE  AAKEEEHFEHEER
BINAEGBIRKRET - —BWNBRARZHAEAE
DR EE (L ARKEEGE) - BIRE
BRHAR °

i AN E Bk EH — KB RQE & H & 8l
HBEHEBERIZHNBRARZEE (BEEE)
M EE - ()ER e R % 2 B8R mE iR
RN 2R E 28 0 RERO)FTKRA
B2 RAFE ' ()T RE TR E 2 A FE Kiii)
BREPTMAEALEEZB#HKEE - LA
REME2ERSABERZAEBEEINHE
FoBEABEEHIREEAN (WWER) H EXEH
WEASEEREHNERBMEEXAGBHEE
FEE °

EBENEE 228

AEBCEAFERBERRBEREANTLE
(BRI E B BEHREEL -

ERVBHRERER RZPELR
FEIRIBET

BB ER YE - BERIKZE  RIE
F165RIEET BT 38 B2 AT 1850
BE R EREIUEK —BITEHZ
FEITHRIEET B

—E-N\EE BB BT ERE
—E_TEFB P BEYBHEES
MR LA  Fo¥  BEEUBFHE
FREE BRI F 1655 & 1T #9585

T OIREE & ER
FA15EET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

86

DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that
are applicable to the Group are described below:

(a) Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with
a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”)
issued in June 2018 without significantly changing
its requirements. The amendments also add to
HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle
for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities
and contingent liabilities that would be within the
scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they
were incurred separately rather than assumed
in a business combination, an entity applying
HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 January
2022. As there were no business combinations
during the year, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.

(b) Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items as determined by HKAS
2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively to items
of property, plant and equipment made available
for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there
was no sale of items produced prior to the
property, plant and equipment being available for
use, the amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the
purpose of assessing whether a contract is
onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly
to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
contract include both the incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling
the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively
to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled
all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no
onerous contracts were identified. Therefore,
the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
sets out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
[llustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are
applicable to the Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the
fees that an entity includes when assessing

whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial
liability. These fees include only those paid
or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received
by either the borrower or lender on the
other’s behalf. The Group has applied the
amendment prospectively from 1 January
2022. As there was no modification or
exchange of the Group’s financial liabilities
during the year, the amendment did not
have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 17
Amendment to
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback’
Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contracts™®

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 — Comparative
information®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the
“2020 Amendments”)**

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction’
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
for adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the
effective date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In
addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments
and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17
issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to
extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to
apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods
beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option
relating to the classification overlay set out in this
amendment shall apply it on initial application of HKFRS
17

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting
from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the
gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current clarify the requirements
for classifying liabilities as current or non-current, in
particular the determination over whether an entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least
12 months after the reporting period. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations
that are considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022,
the HKICPA issued the 2022 Amendments to further
clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from
a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity
must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current.
In addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional
disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising
from loan arrangements as non-current when it has
a right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to
apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice
versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact of
the amendments and whether existing loan agreements
may require revision. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement
2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided
in the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is
non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments
is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the
accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency
with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
apply to changes in accounting policies and changes
in accounting estimates that occur on or after the
start of that period. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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POLICIES
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates or
joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in associate and joint is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discounted Operations.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its land and buildings, investment
properties, derivative financial instruments, equity
investments and debt securities at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.
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POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets,
investment properties and non-current asset classified
as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a
portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other
than goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
values of property, plant and equipment are dealt
with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve.
If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a
deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or
loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited
to the statement of profit or loss to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the
asset revaluation reserve to retained profits is made
for the difference between the depreciation based
on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Buildings 2% to 5%

Plant and machinery 6% to 50%

Leasehold Over the shorter of the lease
improvements terms and 20% to 33%

Furniture, fixtures, 10% to 30%
equipment and
others

Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use
asset which would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of
the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the statement
of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use
asset up to the date of change in use, and any difference
at that date between the carrying amount and the fair
value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets with finite useful lives represent
purchased data library, copyrights, trademarks and
domain names which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of 10 to 20 years.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life
represents a motor vehicle registration mark, which
is tested for impairment annually individually. Such
intangible asset is not amortised. The useful life of
an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost or
valuation, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continueqd)

Group as a lessee (continueqd)

(@)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Valuations are performed frequently enough to
ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does
not differ materially from its carrying amount.
Changes in the values of right-of-use assets are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation
reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient to
cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the
excess of the deficit is charged to the statement
of profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the statement of profit or
loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
An annual transfer from the asset revaluation to
retained profits is made for the difference between
the depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of an asset and the depreciation based on
the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is transferred to retained profits as a movement in
reserves.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets
are as follows:

Leasehold land 287 years

Buildings 1 to 5 years

Furniture, fixtures, 1 to 5 years
equipment and others

Motor vehicles 1 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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Leases (continueqd)

Group as a lessee (continueqd)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continueqd)

Group as a lessee (continueqd)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office
equipment and car park spaces (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in the statement of
profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised
as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.
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POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual
cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are
not held for trading. The classification is determined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are also recognised as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in
credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 120 days past due. The
Group has rebutted the 90 days past due presumption
of default based on reasonable and supportable
information, including the Group’s credit risk control
practices and the historical recovery rate of financial
assets over 90 days past due. However, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime

ECLs
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include lease liabilities,
trade and bills payables, other payables.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement of
profit or loss does not include any interest charged on
these financial liabilities.
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POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss are designated
at the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria
in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except for
the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit
risk which are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group invests in certain derivative financial
instruments, such as forward currency contracts and
equity, for trading purposes. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and
as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit
or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the actual
cost, first-in, first-out basis or weighted average basis,
where appropriate and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed.
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POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception. When
the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit
for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For
a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods
or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Securities transactions are accounted for on a trade
date basis.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Employee benefits
Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services in exchange for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).
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POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, further details of which are given in note
30 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met, no expense is recognised. When
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share- based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings/
(loss) per share.
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POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes in Hong Kong and overseas for
those employees who are eligible and have elected
to participate in the schemes. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the participating
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the schemes. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds. When
an employee leaves the Mandatory Provident Fund
Exempted Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong or other
retirement benefit schemes overseas prior to his/her
interest in the Group’s employer contributions vesting
fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group
may be reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
contributions. In respect of the Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”),
the Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific amount for the employees
in Mainland China, pursuant to the local municipal
government regulations. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because bye-law 140 of the Company’s
bye-laws grants the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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POLICIES (continued)
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sales transaction rather than through continuing use.
For this to be the case, the asset must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such
assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly
probable.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair
values less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets classified as held for sale are not
depreciated or amortised.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Property lease classification - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term
not constituting a major part of the economic life of
the commercial property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all the fair value of the commercial property, that it
retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are
leased out and accounts for the contracts as operating
leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease
term of contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether or not to exercise
the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
or change in circumstances that is within its control
and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise
the option to renew or to terminate the lease (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the
lease term for leases of furniture, fixtures, equipment
and others due to the significance of these assets to its
operations. These leases have a short non-cancellable
period (i.e., up to 2 years) and there will be a significant
negative effect on production if a replacement is not
readily available.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the
area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the
asset value or such event affecting the asset value has
not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management to
determine the level of impairment, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing
rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with
a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for ECLs on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by product type and
customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the media sector, the historical default
rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including
the right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting
period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such
an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash—-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Estimation of fair value of properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in
an active market of similar leases or transactions.
In the absence of such information, the Group
determines the amount within a range of reasonable
fair value estimates. In making its judgement, the
Group considers information from fair market value by
reference to independent valuations. This conclusion is
supported by an independent professionally qualified
valuer who was engaged by the Group during the year
to perform valuations on the Group’s properties. The
carrying amounts of land and buildings and investment
properties at 31 December 2022 were HK$904,338,000
(2021: HK$915,272,000) (note 13) and HK$104,849,000
(2021: HK$124,742,000) (note 14), respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The Group has
estimated unused tax losses of HK$1,168,138,000
(2021: approximately HK$1,064,711,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of HK$224,770,000 (2021:
HK$234,211,000) of the tax losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised for the remaining estimated
tax losses of HK$943,368,000 (2021: approximately
HK$830,500,000) due to the uncertainty of future profits
streams. Further details are contained in note 28 to the
financial statements.

Claims and disputes

The Group is the subject of various claims and disputes,
mainly involving libel claims in respect of alleged
defamation, which is common in publication industry.
Management assesses the claims and court cases
instituted against the Group on the basis of facts and
seeks legal advice when required. Moreover, the Group
is also involved in disputes as the claiming party. In both
cases, it involves subjective elements and projected
outcomes for estimation of provision for potential
liabilities or any disclosures of contingent liabilities
arising from the litigations. Further details are contained
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, the Group is principally engaged in the
business of publishing and distribution of newspapers,
magazines and books to readers in Hong Kong,
Canada, the United States of America and Europe, and
sales of respective content of such publications in The
People’s Republic of China (including Hong Kong).

The Group operates as a single operating segment.
The single operating segment is reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-makers. The chief operating
decision-makers, who are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segment, have been identified as the executive directors
that make strategic decisions.

None of the revenue derived from any single external
customer amounted for more than 10% of the Group’s
revenue during the year (2021: Nil).

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

RETHER

FRA - AKEETEEIEZREB X0 EEM
ZEEBIMDIRRE MEREZE IR
PEARANE (BEER)HE LR TIYZ
HEAR -

AEEERE-—RLENBEE -BE—KED
MARMEELERRERBZABRSE — &

IHASH TEMEREEARMLESE
ZEARSERERIE  WERERELSE
BRTE 2 BATER -

FR-BERAETNE—IIATEZKRARE
BAREBRAZION(ZE-—F : &)

i & & B

(a) KENREFZEKA

HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET

The People’s Republic of China P AR
(including Hong Kong) (BIEAEH) 624,298 649,278
North America b 186,524 181,086
Europe M 4,186 4,424
815,008 834,788

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

ERWABRIAR P AR RIS % -
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4

(continued)
Geographical information (continued)

(b) Non-current assets

REDWER (E)

HwEER(E)

(b) HARBEE

HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FETT

The People’s Republic of China FREE AR
(including Hong Kong) (BIEEB) 1,033,042 1,059,175
North America ik 240,129 290,346
Europe BOM 142 71
1,273,313 1,349,592

The non-current assets information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes equity
investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and deferred tax
assets.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

LRAERBEEENNEEMERES
£ TEERERAFEFAEMGEZE
Wtz EmERE RAFEFAER
RZHMBEEREERBAEE °

WA~ HAK AR W SRR

WAZDHIT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Revenue from contracts with customers KEREAEDNZWA 807,910 828,792
Revenue from other sources K EHAMRIRZ WA

Gross rental income from operating leases RELEHNHES WA LTS 7,098 5,996

815,008 834,788
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5 WA -HMWARKBZFREZ)

(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers RKEFEFEHZWA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) WUAZEZLH

HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET TFET
Types of goods or services E m s R %8 B
Advertising income B E WA 545,603 578,327
Circulation income BITA 153,235 152,647
Content sales and news service WA S E K3 H R KA

income 11,719 16,630
Project management income 1B ERRB WA 29,184 32,637
Printing income Nl g A 32,858 8,624
Radio broadcasting advertising income & & EEE S WA 22,721 22,862
Service income PR 7 Mg A 6,046 8,353
Others Hth 6,544 8,712
Total revenue from contracts REEPEH 2B A

with customers 807,910 828,792
Geographical markets B %

The People’s Republic of China RiEARANE (BIEES)

(including Hong Kong) 623,089 648,962
North America SIS 180,635 175,406
Europe B 4,186 4,424
Total revenue from contracts RKEBFPEHZBIRA

with customers 807,910 828,792
Timing of revenue recognition WA TR
At a point in time and total revenue RE—BHERREEFE

from contracts with customers #) 2 A 807,910 828,792
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning
of the reporting period:

5

WA - EAtb A K W EER ()

RKEEFEHNZWA (&)
() UAZEEH (&)

TERERBERNFAAHNEBBELRA
BEHEE R WA

Circulation income BITWA

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
19,848 17,788

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Advertisements on newspapers, magazines and
radio broadcasting

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
issuance of the advertisements on the Group’s
publications and upon broadcasting of
advertisements. Payment is generally due within
one month, extending up to three months for
major customers.

Advertisements on internet and applications (apps)

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
display of the advertisements in the internet and
the target impression rate or click rate set out in
the respective contract is satisfied. Payment is
generally due within one month, extending up to
three months for major customers.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(ii) Performance obligations (continued)

Circulation of newspapers, magazines and other
publications

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of these publications and payment is
generally due within one month, extending up to
three months for major customers.

Content sales and news services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
transmission or delivery of contents and payment
is generally due within one month, extending up to
three months for major customers.

Project management services

The performance obligation is satisfied when
the event or activity takes place, and payment is
generally due within one month, extending up to
three months for major customers.

Printing of publications

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
printing and delivery of the publications and
payment is generally due within one month for
major customers.

Other services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
the transmission or delivery of the final products
and payment is generally due within one month,
extending up to three months for major customers.

5 WA Httl ARWEFHEE)

REBFAHZWA ()

(i) BHYEME(EZ)
BITHRE M RAMTIY
BHETRRINZENYEERT
F—RR—EARIH RETEEFEM
SAERE=MA -

A B 55 & R 77 B AR 7
BHETREEIINAREEREIT
NHR—BR—EARIE RETERF
meAER=2=M@A -

EHHE R
BAOBEENZIER S EE L LR ERBIT -
BRZF—MRR—EARIH RETER
FPMsrERE=1A o

R HT 5

BB ERENR R R EX
MEBEPONR—BRR—EAREHE -

AR5
BHOEBEARBERIARNERERKER

T AR —EARINE REE
EFPFMEALEtRE=fA -
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5 WA -HWARKZZEHE(Z)
(continued)
An analysis of other income and gains, net is as follows: B A MK ZFEE 2 OMWOT

HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Other income H g A
Bank interest income HRITH BUA 5,128 854
Investment income wEWA 19 3,791
Dividend income from equity investments RKEBRAREE ZIRBWA 115 271
Government grants from Employment BT AL —RBLEETE
Support Scheme (Note) (B E) 23,035 =
Gain on disposal of publishing titles & R e 3,000 =
Others HAh 11,066 5,054
42,363 9,970
Gains/(losses), net W (ER) B8
Fair value (losses)/gains, net on: ANFE(ER) Wwmz
A
Financial assets at fair value through profit R AFEFF ABREZ
or loss WBEE (491) 5,980
Derivative financial instruments PESBMTE-TFE
- transactions not qualifying as hedges HHPER RS (221) (16)
Investment properties and asset classified ~ HEWE N B AFE
as held for sale HEEE 16,928 4,716
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant HE®E  BME KR EE
and equipment Bz W= 107 613
Gain on lease modifications MEETWa 21 359
Foreign exchange differences, net ME W ZEE - HEE (10,126) 964
6,218 12,616
48,581 22,586
Note: During the current year, the Group recognised MizE: RAEE - AEEREFSBTRENE
government grants of approximately HK$23,035,000 B2 A BEYCOVID-19HE ML R
(2021: Nil) in respect of COVID-19 related subsidies I8 T 48 Bh 923,035,000 T ( — & = —4F -
relates to Employment Support Scheme provided by the M) o

Hong Kong Government.

6 BEMRE

FINANCE COST

HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FE T
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE 1,242 976
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LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

BB A 1R

AEBzBRABESNG, GEA) Tol%

17 :

HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET TFET
Cost of inventories sold BEREFERAR 97,221 96,447
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BB KEE
equipment (other than right-of-use (L AR E ERRIN)
assets) e 13 66,584 71,971
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEECITE 13 18,421 22,132
85,005 94,103
Auditor’s remuneration Z B R B 2,400 2,950
Leases payments not included inthe Rt AHEBEFEN
measurement of lease liabilities HEMK 182 164
Employee benefit expense BEBAMAX
(including directors’ remuneration): (BREEEHS) 8
Wages, salaries, bonus, allowances ~ L& - # B « 7E4T -
and benefits in kind 2R KRB WE A 421,532 417,295
Retirement benefit scheme RURAEFET &)
contributions** fHEF 20,091 18,443
441,623 435,738
Gross rental income e W ALz 5 (7,098) (5,996)
Less: Direct outgoings B BEERX 4,756 4,782
Net rental income He WA FRE (2,342) (1,214)
Impairment loss/(reversal of FEWER SRR E &R
impairment) of trade receivables* CRE#RD)* 21 2,160 (2,310)
Write-off of trade receivables* JE Y BR SR A ER - 32
Write-off of other receivables* L i 7 LR 3K TR R S 250 =
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYWE - BE&
plant and equipment BREBEE 2 W (107) (613)
Gain on lease modifications HEEFT W= 15(c) (21) (359)
Foreign exchange differences, net BN ZER F8 10,126 (964)
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LOSS BEFORE TAX (continueq) 7

* These items are included in “Other (expenses)/income,
net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

> At 31 December 2022, there were no forfeited
contributions available to the Group to reduce its
contributions to retirement benefit schemes in future
years (2021: Nil).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

BRBAIER (F)

* BUBEBAGABRERAEM X))/
Yz 5 A8

> RZTFZ—F+-A=+—8 TEAHK
EERIMBARRFERAKREBFEIHRZR
W RB(ZE=Z—F + &) -

ExME

FTERESTHERBEEABRARIMERA
AlEZEMARA(TEMRAD - BEREE
B %383(1)(@) * (b) * (c)R(MER AR (HKEE
ENMEER) ROIE2HEEWT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAET FET

Fees we 600 604
Other emoluments: H it B <

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind o EMREWVEF 4,276 11,274

Discretionary bonuses 15 AT 906 3,809

Retirement benefit scheme contributions ERAEFET B K 48 68

5,230 15,151
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8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8 EEME(£E)

(a) Executive directors and non-executive (a) FTEERIHITES
directors
Salaries, RETE N E
allowances benefit
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
FéEER RGN
ENEA [SRERAAN AR M & 4 5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
2022 —EC-CE
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Kwok Ying Shing SE/ KL - - - -
Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting HE= gt 1,569 3 18 1,590
Mr. Choi Karson Ka Tsan (i) ENE R () - - - -
Mr. Zheng Wei (i) B 30 5% £ i) 1,590 - 12 1,602
Mr. Cai Jin BERE 2,006 903 18 2,927
5,165 906 48 6,119
2021 —E-_—F
Executive directors: HiTES:
Mr. Kwok Ying Shing (i) B B 5 A (i) = = = =
Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting (i) 2B Bz = £r (i) 943 753 11 1,707
Mr. Zheng Wei (i) B 3 5% £ i) 1,155 753 11 1,919
Mr. Cai Jin (iv) R L) B8 903 8 1,423
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak (v) ] EE LAV 733 100 9 842
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles (v) ] FE B kA (V) 2,258 - - 2,258
Mr. Jia Hongping (v) BAFRAEV) 462 300 - 762
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis (v) 2| {3 S () 705 500 8 1,213
Mr. Lo Wing Hung (v) JE K HE S A () 1,273 - 9 1,282
Mr. Siu Sai Wo (vi) Bt A0 2 A (i) 3,230 500 15 3,745
11,274 3,809 68 15,151
# Amount less than $1,000. # SHEINR—TFITIE -
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Executive directors and non-executive
directors (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(vi)

Mr. Choi Karson Ka Tsan was appointed as the
independent non-executive director on 3 June
2021 and re-designated to executive director, and
appointed as Co-Chairman on 30 May 2022.

Mr. Zheng Wei was appointed as the executive
director on 3 June 2021 and resigned as the
executive director on 25 August 2022.

Mr. Kwok Ying Shing and Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting were
appointed as the executive directors on 3 June
2021. Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting is also the Co-Chief
Executive Officer of the Group while Mr. Kwok
Ying Shing is also the Co-Chairman of the Group.

Mr. Cai Jin was appointed as the executive
director and Co-Chief Executive Officer of the
Group on 2 October 2021.

Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak, Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok,
Charles, Mr. Jia Hongping, Mr. Lau Chung Man,
Louis and Mr. Lo Wing Hung were resigned as the
executive directors on 3 June 2021.

Mr. Siu Sai Wo was resigned as the executive
director on 2 October 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2021: Nil).

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED £ & EEAR A 7
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ZEABYIRATES YR _T—_—
ERA=THEHAETARTEERES
EARWREERE -

iy EHREEN-_ZE-_—FA=-HEZ
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SRETMARNEEBETRAR M
BEKGCENBEEEBEERF -

vy BEEER-_ZT-_—F+A-HEZ
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8

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

8

EEMe (A
b) BYFHTES
FRMBLIFPTEEINZEEMT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (i) #A 7 B 4 A () 200 117
Ms. Han Yonghong (i) B2 oK 41 2 () 200 117
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew (iii) 3B B8R 2 T A (i) 117 =
Mr. Choi Karson Ka Tsan (i) ZNNFE e A (i 83 117
Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina (iv) Al #2838 Z 4 (iv) - 63
Mr. King Richard Yun Zing (iv) TR e (V) - 76
Mr. Lee Cho Jat (iv) ZHRZBLE(V) - 63
Ms. Judy Chan (iv) B 75 22 1 (iv) - 51
600 604

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony and Ms. Han Yonghong
were appointed as the independent non-executive
directors on 3 June 2021.

Mr. Choi Karson Ka Tsan was appointed as the
independent non-executive director on 3 June
2021 and re-designated to executive director, and
appointed as Co-Chairman on 30 May 2022.

Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew was appointed as the
independent non-executive director on 30 May
2022.

Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, Mr. King Richard
Yun Zing, Mr. Lee Cho Jat and Ms. Judy Chan
were resigned as the independent non-executive
directors on 3 June 2021.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2021: Nil).

GEX

(i)

(i)

(iv)

MEMBEERBKKALXETE T = —
FRAZAREZEREARABILIE
HITES -

EMELEEE _E-—F A=A
EZEABARRIBILIERITES %
ATAHNTEE YA _T-_—_FFA
A=1+BREZTABMEERE -

BHELAFA T -__FRAA=1+H
HBEZTAEBYIERNITES -

BELt: SR EE  THELAE
EEELZ+R_E-—EXA=H&
EBLIEITES -

FR - HEOBIIEATESINEM
e (ZE=——F:&|) -
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9 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three directors, one of whom resigned during
the year (2021: three directors and all of them resigned
during the year), details of whose remuneration for their
services as directors are set out in note 8 above; and
two non-director employees (2021: four non-director
employees). Details of the remuneration of the
non-director highest paid employees are as follows:

EREHMNANES

FARSFTMHNAUERERR =UESE H
- RFRNEHE(ZT_—F: ZUES
REBREART) (HETESREONE
HBRHENALKES) AMUFEERE (=F
TF NUFEFEE) BRAFEFES
FnEE CMEFBOT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RBEREWEF 3,004 11,271
Discretionary bonuses BB TE 4L 456 909
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIGFT B3R 36 36
3,496 12,216

The number of non-director highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

MEBATHEAZIFEERESFINEE A
T

146

HK$1,000,001 to

1,000,001 L=

HK$2,000,000 2,000,000/ 7T 2 =
HK$2,000,001 to 2,000,001 L E
HK$2,500,000 2,500,0007% 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to 2,500,001 L&
HK$3,000,000 3,000,000/ 7T - 2
HK$3,500,001 to 3,500,001 L E
HK$4,500,000 4,500,000/ 7T - -
HK$4,500,001 to 4,500,001 L&
HK$5,000,000 5,000,000/ 7T - 1
2 4

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED EE¥EEEAER AT



10

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for
one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity
under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2021: HK$2,000,000) of the assessable
profits of a subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2021: 8.25%)
and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

10 Fr8#H

EENGHNEFARBBELE 2 BT ER
B A LA16.5% (ZE = —%F : 16.5%) KB =
BE HAEE —MHMNBARKRI  ZAQF
ARFEHAFNEGHBEXRHENETE - —HW
B A7 2 FERBLFEF 52,000,000 7T (=
T — — 4 : 2,000,000/ T ) #%8.25% (= =
Z—F :825%) KR HREREA
BRIIR16.5% (ZE = —1F : 16.5%) B8 - R
B w2 BRI RN o MBI AN EE B
EBEEZBEARZBITHREGTE -

HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current: BNHER :
Charge for the year: FALZ -
The People’s Republic of China R AR
(including Hong Kong) (BEES) 65 502
The United State of America ES 75 =
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFETR/(B5)
BE
The People’s Republic of China R AR A
(including Hong Kong) (BEES) 34 (276)
The United State of America ES 187 =
Deferred (note 28) B IE (Ff5E28) 11,535 508
Total tax charge for the year FABBHZ B 11,896 734
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10 INCOME TAX (continued) 10 AR (&)
BARBREXRBHMBRARMERR, A
FEBERAEMEFGEZCEARKREAE
BeMERAY HEBMEFE 2 HRIERI
ZHE URBERAME (AETRE) LB
HEZHERAT :

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge at the
effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable
rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax

rates, are as follows:

148

Hong Kong Mainland China North America Total
g hERS k% ] At
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FET FET i AT

2022 —ECCE
Loss before tax BHAER (103,126) (669) (21,214) (1,879) (126,888)
Tax at the statutory tax rate RAEREHECHE (17,0160 165 (167 250 (44100 208 (376) 200 (21969 173
Lower of tax rates for speciic ~ RI& M7 T E S

provinces of local authority BENRER % - - (138) 206 - - - - (138) 0.4
Adjustments in respect of current M Ef 2 £ BRRER

tax of previous periods 34 - - - 187 (0.9 - - 221 (0.2)
Profits and losses attributable o A& AERELARIELL

joint ventures and assoclates & H REE 220 02 (189 212 7585 (355 - - 151 (6.0)
Income not subject to tax R A ON (4,055) 39 (259 817 (211) 10 - - (4519 36
Expenses not deductible fortax AR 2 % 12 (1) 547 (818 1419 (53 36 (00 3284  (26)
Tax losses utiised from previous & F b/ B3R 2 Fi 7%

periods EE @21) 21 (34) 484 - - - - (5% 20
Tax losses not recognised TERR BBER 19510 (189 558 (83.4) - - - - 20068  (159)
Temporary differences not BRI EREEE

recognised (226) 0.2 - - - - - - (226) 0.1
Effect of withholding tax onthe ~ BEHHHREEME K

distributable proft of the Group’s [t B /A AW 7 1K 8 £

Canada subsidiaries % - - - - 9442 (44.5) - - 9442 (1.4)
Others if 3006 (29 - - PR3 109 - - 6% (05
Tax charge at the Group's EREEERREHEY

effective rate HERY 503 (0.5) 42 6.3 11,351 (53.5) - - 11,89 (9.4)
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10

INCOME TAX (continued)

10 FREH (&)

Hong Kong Mainland China North America Australia and Europe Total
B HEw I Y A
HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT FET LET LET
2021 “E--E
(Loss)/proft before tax R (B8) /&H (128,317) (5,773) (18,993) 13,565 (139,078)
Tax at the statutory tax rate REERESEZHE @172 165 (1443 250 (4429 238 2,689 198 (4349 175
Lower of tax rates for specific  ERIZ i F X EBMAE
provinces of local authority MRERE = - (158) 27 = = - - (159) 0.1
Adjustments in respect of current A/ i 2 & SRR A%
tax of previous periods (121) 0.1 - - 195 (1.1) (350) (2.6) (276) 0.2
Profits and losses attrbutable to A& ¥ REENFELE
joint ventures and associates MRER () - (395) 68 1451 (7.8 - - 1,088 (0.8
Income not subject to tax BEBRZBA (1,904) 15 (04) 16 (29) 02 (3128 (280  (5180) 37
Expenses not deductile for tax A% 2t 4,267 (3.3 857 (06 436 (237) 434 32 9,68 (6.9
Tax losses utiised from previous  ERMNAHE 2 HEER
periods (3,806) 3.0 (76) 1.3 - - - - (3882 28
Tax losses not recognised TERAZBEER 28819 (186 1623 (281) - - - - B4 (18
Temporary differences TERD BRIEES
not recognised 120 (0.9) - - 988 53 - - 1,108 0.8
Others b (2,713 2.1 4 (0.4) 1 - - - 2708 2.0
Tax (credit)/charge at the BASEERHRGE LB
Group's effective rate B (%) /B (1,613) 12 18 03 2579 (189 (30 (28) 734 (09)

The share of tax charge attributable to joint ventures
and associates amounting to HK$1,092,000 (2021: tax
credit HK$730,000) is included in “Share of profits and
losses of joint ventures and associates” on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

BELFRLBE A REIEHIERNX 51,092,000
BT (ZF=_—%F : HIEEL730,000/&7T) -
BEff AGABEGRANIBERELERBER
AN R EEIA -
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150

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: nil), nor has any dividend
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2021:
Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount
is based on the loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$138,784,000 (2021:
HK$139,812,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 880,543,017 (2021: 880,543,017) in
issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 in respect of dilution as the
impact of the share options had an anti-dilution effect in
the basic loss per share amounts presented.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED £ & EEAR A 7
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BE - Z-_—_F+-_A=1+t—"HLEFEIE
RASHBERE (ZE-—F:#)  ARE
BIRDASR MR REM R E (ZE = —F 1 ) o

RAREBERERAAREEBRER

EREAEESBEINIRFARNRDR) L ERE
=B AFEAGE1E138,784,0008 T (ZE = —
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 V¥ BERRE

Right-of-use assets Owned assets

fREEE AREE

Furniture, Furniture,

fixtures, fixtures,
equipment Motor Landand Plantand Leasehold equipment Motor
Buildings and others  vehicles buildings machinery improvements and others  vehicles
B fih -
5B RF 1#R  BER 5B %%
Rt i 87 Ha : Rt
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
&z FEr  TEn  FEr  TEr  FEr  TEx  FEr TEr TEn FEn TE%

31 December 2022 —BoCE
t=h=t-A
At 31 December 2021 and RZE--%
1 January 2022 +ZA=t-HR
“ECE-f-R:
Cost or valuation ARG fGE 23,000 20,207 75,816 1,066 120,089 892,212 384,230 39,776 209,043 5993 1,531,314 1,651,403
Accumulated depreciation and ZHERRE
impairment - (60 (67,297) (631)  (64,668) - (224730) (26325  (188,037) (3016  (443008)  (527,676)
Net carrying amount REFE 23,000 3,467 8,519 435 35,421 892,272 159,500 13,451 20,106 2,977 1,088,306 1,123,727
At 1 January 2022, net of RZF-=5-f-R"
accumulated depreciation NBEHE 23,000 3,467 8,519 435 35421 892212 159,500 13,451 20,106 2977 1,088,306 1,123,727
Addtons %E - 19002 24789 149 43,89 - H40 414 5819 0 2158 65428
Disposals/write-off HE /M - - - - - - - - (12) - (12) (12)
Lease modifications BEEIT - (870) - - (870) - - - - - - (370)
Depreciation provided during the year  FRITERE (K57
note 7) ©02) (4670  (12587) (262)  (18421)  (32281) (181500  (575) (9015  (1386) (66584  (35,005)
Surplus on revaluation EffRH% 902 - - - 902 26,632 - - - - 26,632 27,534
Exchange realignment EjgE - (101) - - o) (5,285) - (1) (55 Q) B3M) (5472
At 31 December 2022, net of R-B--%
accumulated depreciation and +-R=t-A"
impairment NREHERAE 23,000 17,328 20,671 322 61,321 881,338 152,780 11,832 16,843 1,711 1,064,504 1,125,825
At 31 December 2022: i 3
t=R=1-8:
Cost or valuation RAEEE 23000 38671 100,555 1215 163441 881,338 305496 43546 213,198 4782 1,508,360 1,701,801
Accumulated depreciation and ZiHERBE
impairment - 1Y (79,884) (893)  (102,120) - aaT6) (714 (196355 (3071)  (473856)  (575,976)
Net carrying amount FEFE 23,000 17,328 20,671 322 61,321 881,338 152,780 11,832 16,843 1,711 1,064,504 1,125,825
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

13 ¥ BMERRE(E)

Owned assets
BEAE

Right-of-use assets

152

Furniture,
fixtures,
equipment

Buidings  and others

Motor
vehicles

Land and

Total  buildings

Plantand  Leasehold
machinery improvements

Furniture,
fixtures,
equipment
and others

Motor
vehicles

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKEO00  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér Téxr FEr  TExr  TEx  TEr  TEx  TEr  TExr Tz TEn TExn
31 December 2021 —E--§
tZB=t-H
At 31 December 2020 and WZZ-%F
1 January 2021: +-B=+-Rk
“R-F-A-R:
Cost or valuation RAES(AE 23,050 20,084 67,939 1,066 112,139 907,435 376,502 35,780 200,051 10,288 1,530,056 1,642,195
Accumulated depreciation and ZAMERAE
Impairment - {13040 (49,989) (332 (63:357) - QOOTHY) (1456 (183183)  (5742) (410,792)  (474,149)
Net carrying amount REFE 23,050 7,042 17,956 734 48782 907,435 175,791 14,624 16,868 4546 1,119,264 1,168,046
At 1 January 2021, net of RZBZ-§-f-H"
accumulated depreciation Nk 2:HE 23,050 7,042 17,956 734 48782 907,435 175,791 14,624 16,868 4546 1,119,264 1,168,046
Additions BE = 1,096 7877 = 8972 = 9,228 3,838 11,980 2,491 27,537 36,509
Disposals/write-off HE /M = - - - - - (315) - 67 @722 (3104 (3,104)
Lease modifications HEET - (1,100) - - (1,100) - - - - - - (1,100)
Transfer a5 - - - - - - - 133 (139) - - -
Depreciation provided during FARERRE
the year (note 7) (Hi37) B0 @649 (17314 (099 (22132  (B1719) (25204 (144 (8556 (1348  (71.971)  (94,103)
Surplus on revaluation EHEH 820 - - - 820 13724 - - - - 13724 14544
Exchange realignment ERRE = 79 = = 79 2,832 = = 14 10 2,856 2,935
At 31 December 2021, net of i 3
acoumulated depreciation and +-A=t+-8"
impairment M 2578 R E 23,000 3,467 8,519 435 35,421 892272 159,500 13,451 20,106 2977 1,088,306 1,128,727
At 31 December 2021: i et
+ZA=t+-A:
Cost or valuation ENEETE) 23,000 20,207 75,816 1,066 120,089 892,272 384,230 39,776 209,043 5993 1,531,314 1,651,403
Accumulated depreciation and ZAMERAE
mpaiment - (167400 (67,207) (631)  (84,668) - (247300 (26325 (188937  (3016) (443008  (527,676)
Net carrying amount FEFE 23,000 3,467 8519 435 36421 82272 159,500 13,451 20,106 2,977 1,088,306 1,128,727
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13

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

In view of the operating losses in certain
cash-generating units, management considered that
indicators of potential impairment of property, plant
and equipment existed. The Group assessed the
recoverable amounts of these cash-generating units
using the value-in-use method based on discounted
cash flow forecasts for each cash-generating unit, and
no impairment loss were recognised for the year (2021:
nil). The estimates of the recoverable amounts of the
relevant assets of this cash generating unit were based
on their value in use using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a period of the remaining
lease terms approved by senior management. The
discount rate adopted was 7.0% (2021: 7.0%).

The directors of the Company have determined that the
Group’s land and buildings consist of three classes of
asset, i.e., commercial, industrial and residential, based
on the nature, characteristics and risks of each property.
All of the Group’s land and buildings were revalued
on 31 December 2022 based on valuations performed
by Chung, Chan & Associates, an independent
professionally qualified valuer. Selection criteria of the
external valuer include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. In determining the fair value of the relevant
properties, the Group senior management discuss with
the valuer on the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of the
Group’s land and building is HK$904,338,000 (2021:
HK$915,272,000) (including the leasehold land under
right-of-use assets).

A revaluation surplus of HK$27,534,000 (2021:
HK$14,544,000) resulting from the revaluations on the
Group’s land and buildings, net of income tax effect
of HK$4,916,000 (2021: HK$3,300,000), has been
credited to other comprehensive income during the
year.

13

M BERRE(E)

AETHSEABMNBRSRKLER SBE
REVME BMEREEBEEEBERETR -

AEBEBUHRAERABELIRESHESEL
BNFBRBESREEANTHENTRE S EE
T TRFATEBRRBREEBEER (ZF

Z—F &) c HEEEZ A YE EIRE
FEREEMG  ZAEFEADNREBERRR

EREAMEEREZRASANUKEENRS
TRETER  EPEANTERA7.0% (2T
T—F 1 7.0%) °

BESWENED BFEERARKR AQRE
EERTE AEENTHEEFRE=ZFE
E EE IEREE-ALEEZAEL
WREFELR_T-_—_F+=-HA=+—H
BERBYEXAERGHEMEETETHN
HEmER - - BBIIEEHEMELNRIETIS
Mg BE2 BUMMERLHESIZEKRE

NEEHBEDENRTER  AEEFRE
EEEGEMTHAFEAENEE[HER

1l e ¥ A BUIR ©

RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—"8 AEEHL
i K A€ F 2 A F{E £904,338,0008 T (= Z
— —% : 915,272,000/ 7T) (B ¥EH EAFE B
BEEMNHEELH) -

NAEERN MAEETHWEEFZEGBE
H 7 B AE%B27,534,0008 L (—ZF -~ —F ¢
14,544,000% 7o) (H1ERr4,916,0008 7t (==&
— —% : 3,300,000 L) IS 2 FEFE)
Bt AEMEEKES -
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

A lessor of certain leases of land included in the
Group’s right-of-use assets has requested its lessees,
including but not limited to a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group (the “Lessee”), to perform certain remedial
actions related to the compliance with the relevant land
usage provisions of the relevant lease. The Lessee has
received a notice from the lessor requesting the Lessee
to take further appropriate actions (including application
for license(s) to the lessor). Pursuant to the Agreement
for Lease between the lessor and the Lessee dated
12 July 2007, the lessor may impose an additional
premium on a daily basis and other further actions if
such requests are not fulfilled by the Group within a
specified period. The Group has received a written
approval of the application for license(s) from the lessor
on 4 January 20283. Thus, there was no financial impact
to the year ended 31 December 2022 arising from the
above.

The carrying amounts of the relevant land (included in
right-of-use assets) and buildings erected on this land
(included in owned assets) as at 31 December 2022
amounted to HK$23,000,000 (2021: HK$23,000,000)
and HK$643,706,000 (2021:HK$656,845,000),
respectively.

Further particulars of the Group’s land and buildings are
included on page 205.
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T — — 4 : 23,000,000/ jT) 643,706,000
BT (ZZ = —F : 656,845,00087T) °
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the Group’s land and buildings at the
end of each reporting period is measured by using
significant unobservable inputs (level 3) and is presented
as below:

13 ¥ BERRE(E)

DFEERFE

AEEMNTHREFREREHRNAFE
TERERTABRBAE (FR=)FTE
W25 :

31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Recurring fair value measurement for: BEEQATERTE

Commercial properties EEX7ES 154,503 151,423
Industrial properties* T XYz 722,127 733,099
Residential properties FEMHE 27,708 30,750
904,338 915,272

*

The industrial properties include a right-of-use asset of
HK$23,000,000 (2021: HK$23,000,000).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil).

5 T Y% 6 55 f #E 4 E23,000,0008 7T (=
T — —4 : 23,000,00087T) ©

RAFEERN BEEEFH - MERA_2HE

BREAFZEESELE =V AFEFE(ZZ
Z—F |
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

13 ¥ BMERRE(E)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AREEHREEF)

156

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

DERAFESRASE =M FEFEN

R

Commercial Industrial  Residential
properties  properties  properties
HEME ITHEDE FEDHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 RZE-_—F—H—HH®
BRmEE 151,757 750,288 28,440
Depreciation provided during the year £ RN & % & (3,938) (27,587) (1,064)
Net gain from fair value adjustment EH M2 E R ERA
recognised in other comprehensive RKEAFEFAED
income F I B 1,712 10,398 2,434
Exchange realignment ME 3, 8 B 1,892 - 940
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 R=-ZE=-—F+=A
and 1 January 2022 e = ) St
—A—HHEREE 151,423 733,099 30,750
Depreciation provided during the year — F R ITE & & (4,060) (27,988) (1,135)
Net gain from fair value adjustment FEE A 2 E s R
recognised in other comprehensive KERATFEHED
income I B 9,923 17,016 595
Exchange realignment bE 5 2 (2,783) - (2,502)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 HR-_ZT - —F+_—F
=+—HWNEREE 154,503 722,127 27,708

The fair values of the land and buildings were
determined using the comparison approach based
on market comparable of similar properties and with
adjustments made on factors such as location, size,
age, condition and aspects of the properties.
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 ¥ BERRE(Z)

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEEREEF)

Below is a summary of the key inputs to the valuation of LA HEEFEHEMRANEEGA
land and buildings: EOEZ :

Range (weighted average)

E1E (nEFI9E)

Significant

unobservable inputs

EXTUBERAAE

Commercial properties  Adjusted price per square foot HK$6,605 - HK$7,925 HK$6,632 — HK$8,859

FEYE KRBT ARER 6,605/8 7T — 7,925 T  6,632/8 T — 8,859/ 1T
Industrial properties Adjusted price per square foot HK$2,101 - HK$2,161 HK$2,121 — HK$2,177
TEMZE KRBT ARER 210138 - 2,1618 T 2,1218L - 21778 T
Residential properties Adjusted price per square foot HK$8,731 - HK$15,718 HK$10,326 — HK$12,381
FEME KRG HRER 8,731t - 15,718/ T 10,326/8 70 — 12,381 7T
The Group has determined that the highest and best NREFBERRARE NA=EH EHEFELS
use of the commercial and certain industrial properties TIEMENGARESZEREAEZESY
at the measurement date would be to convert those XEAFFERE - ERNFERELR ZZEWE
properties for residential purposes. For strategic WA ER ZREBTEYE K&
reasons, the properties are not being used in this BEERKRE RA=E0 HESZAREZEH
manner. While for the remaining industrial properties, BB EREIRERS -

the Group has determined that the highest and best use
of them at the measurement date has remained to be
for industrial purpose.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the adjusted price RABGELHREBHEAE LT (TR eE
per square foot would result in a significant increase/ Bt EBEHAFENE LA (FE) -

(decrease) in the fair value of the land and buildings.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14 BREYE

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FA&ET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—RA—RBZKRHE 124,742 119,707

Net gain from fair value adjustments (note 5) A (B FH & Uk H 48 (f755) 23,135 4,716

Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B (1,664) 319
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale HREHSHEARELHEZE

(note 25) = (fF3E25) (41,364) =

Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=+—HB®EEE 104,849 124,742

The directors of the Company have determined that
the Group’s investment properties are commercial
properties, based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of each property. The Group’s investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2022 based
on valuations performed by Chung, Chan & Associates,
an independent professionally qualified valuer.
Selection criteria of the external valuer include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. In determining
the fair value of the investment properties, the Group
senior management will discuss with the valuer on the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further details of which are
included in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties
are included on page 206.
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14 REWE(E)

Fair value hierarchy AFEERFE

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at AEBEREMERSREHARANAFENE
the end of each reporting period is measured by using AERTAEBRHAB (ZELD)FTE L2
significant unobservable inputs (level 3) and is presented FIERR

as follow:

31 December

+=A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Recurring fair value measurement for: FEMATFERE
Commercial properties EEXYES 52,897 80,719
Industrial property TEYE 45,622 37,963
Residential property FEME 6,330 6,060
104,849 124,742
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RAFERN BMEESEHR —LEF_-_z2HE
measurements between Level 1 and 2 and no transfers BEEBEASERER= A FEE (==
into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil). ——F\E) o
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14 BREWE(Z)
Fair value hierarchy (continueqd) AR EERFEE (&)

DERAFESRASE =M FEFEN

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

R

Commercial Industrial  Residential
properties  properties  properties
FEME ITEDE FE0F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEIT FHEIT FHETT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 R-_E-_—F—A—HH
FREE 76,521 37,066 6,120
Net (loss)/gain from fair value EHEENREMKRA R
adjustment recognised in other W a5 FE R RE R Y 2R
income and gains, net in profit or loss B A FEFHEHNF
(B18) e 3,879 897 (60)
Exchange realignment ME 3, 8 B 319 - -
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 RKR-_ZT_-—%F+_A
and 1 January 2022 =—+t—Bk=ZZT_—
—A—BREREE 80,719 37,963 6,060
Net gain from fair value adjustment Rz EMRA R
recognised in other income and Wa FEFERNKE
gains, net in profit or loss BNFEEAENF R =S 15,206 7,659 270
Exchange realignment bE 5 B (1,664) = =
Transfer to asset held for sales HREFELECEE
(note 25) (P 5E25) (41,364) = =
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 HR-ZT_-_—F+_—A
—t+—HBMEREE 52,897 45,622 6,330

REMENAFEDRALEOS  REEU
MIZA LB E L AT RO ME - K/
Bk ARAETAFREFLABRMET °

The fair value of the investment properties was
determined using the comparison approach based
on market comparable of similar properties and with
adjustments made on factors such as location, size,
age, condition and aspect of the properties.
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14

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14 REWME(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AREESERFEE (&)
Below is a summary of the key inputs to the valuation of UTEREYEGECERGAERE

investment properties:

Range (weighted average)

£ E (nEFI98)

Significant

unobservable inputs

EXTABERAE

Commercial properties  Adjusted price per square foot HK$10,035 - HK$12,464 HK$7,197 — HK$10,791

[EE3/ES BYAREHAEER 10,0358 7T - 12,4648 T 7,1978 7T - 10,7918 T
Residential properties Adjusted price per square foot HK$5,945 - HK$7,268 HK$5,324 — HK$6,240
W BYHREHARER 5,945 7T - 7,268 T  5,324/8 7T — 6,240/ 7T
Industrial properties Adjusted price per square foot HK$1,691 - HK$1,938 HK$1,391 - HK$1,634
TEME BYHTREARER 1,69158 T - 1,938t 1,391/ 7T - 1,634 T
The Group has determined that the highest and best AEEEDRLRT R E2R BEBmEME
use of the commercial properties and industrial property RIX¥MENGARESZEREAEZESY
at the measurement date would be to convert those (@B ATEAR - ANKBER ZSEDE
properties for residential purposes. For strategic R AR NEER o

reasons, the properties are not being used in this

manner.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the adjusted price RABRGFEHRERAE LA (TR)@E
per square foot would result in a significant increase/ BMIREYWENNFERELEF(CFFE) o

(decrease) in the fair value of the investment properties.
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15 LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for properties, motor
vehicles and other equipment used in its operations.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the
leased land from the owners with lease periods of 40
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the
terms of these land leases. Leases of properties and
other equipment generally have lease terms between
2 and 5 years, while motor vehicles generally have
lease terms between 2 and 4 years. Other equipment
generally has lease terms of 12 months or less and/
or are individually of low value. Generally, the Group
is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased
assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use
assets and the movements during the year are
further set out in note 13 to the consolidated

financial statements.

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

15 #HE

FEBEREEA

AEEREEMANYE  TEREMEKE
HAFAMREALN - BRI XETEIRHERIF
MBEELH BEBRNBEMK: MREZS
THBOEFTEETRHENK - BE LR
ML — AN F2E56 - REHHEER
— BN F2E4F -PEREMRENEE —
BB12E AT - &S @R = BRE
BE -—RBME AKEXRHELSEEN
SR D HBEEEE -

(a) BRAEEE

AEENERAEEERAERFAZS
AHBENEREMBEHRRMEIZ -

(b) HEEE

FANHERBERAERLRZSHOT :

HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BrRHEE 12,856 28,686
New leases FHEE 43,890 8,972
Accretion of interest recognised F N FE SR A RE 2 42 0
during the year 1,242 976
Payments 3% (17,785) (24,420)
Lease modifications HEEE] (432) (1,459)
Exchange realignment PE 7 58 2 (66) 101
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—8HK
FREE 39,705 12,856
Analysed into: R
Current ik 16,214 7,613
Non-current JETR & 23,491 5,243
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15 LEASES (continued) 15
The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities (continued)
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is

discussed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in
relation to leases are as follows:

HE (&)

FEEEREBA(E)

(b) HER®E(E)
BEHAAEREZAHMBRASMRNEE Y
TS ¥R 3R M FE385 @ °

(c) BMHEERBZBREZNZHUT -

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Interest on lease liabilities HEAER R 1,242 976
Depreciation charge of right-of-use CTREEENEER

assets 18,421 22,132
Expenses relating to short-term leases 2 HAfA &M FERE R =X

(included in administrative expenses) (FrAfTERAX) 175 34

Expense relating to eases of low-value {X{BEEEMESHHERH

assets (included in administrative T (FFAfTEHRAXR)

expenses) 7 130

Gain on lease modifications (note 7) FHEBT 2 Wz (H5E7) (21) (359)
Total amount recognised in MR8 RHERNEE

profit or loss 19,824 22,913
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LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties consisting
of five commercial properties, one industrial property
and one residential property under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised
by the Group during the year was HK$7,098,000 (2021:
HK$5,996,000), details of which are included in note 5
to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted minimum lease
payments receivables by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due are as follows:

15 HE (&)

FEBEAHEA

AEBERBLEEHNLHEBEEREY X -
BIESHImEYE 1BMIEVENMBEEYD
X - HAOKK " RATHETEAINRES
NREHSATHIZRERMAAE ALE
FREAHES U A A7,008,000F T (==
— — 1% :5006,0008 L) ' FBEHRGEE
TEHMERMIFES ©

RZEBE-_—_F+-A=+—H KEBRXK
REARS AR 5 7 N 51 B RS S i B0 S A U A
MAOEKHRITRSERESFTOT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Within one year —F R 4,529 5,349
After one year but within two years —FREMFER 5,612 342
After two years but within three years MERE=ZFR - 92
10,141 5,783

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, other intangible

asset represents a motor vehicle registration mark with
an indefinite useful life.
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17

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

17 REELECZRE

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Share of net assets EihEEFE 15,033 70,1183

ARRAEFAEIAGSEETEZAECEZH

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures, all

of which are indirectly held by the Company, are as =N
follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value Percentage of
registration of issued share/ ownership interest Principal
and business registered capital attributable to the Group activity
B3 BROTROEE
BRREEE A E A FEEREETERRESE DL EEXK
2022 2021
—E_C —E—
Sing Tao Daily Limited Canada Canadian dollar (“CA$”) 25 25  Newspaper
10,000 Class A publishing
mnex common shares WEET
10,000807c ([ 07T ])
FERIAL AR
Sing Tao Newspapers Canada CA$2,021,871 Series 1 50 50 Newspaper
(Canada 1988) Limited & XA common shares and publishing
CA$15,780,809 Series MBELT

2 common Shares
2,021,871 N —HER
B% 15,780,809 70 &
“HEBR

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of losses of a joint venture, Sing Tao Daily Limited,
because the share of losses of this joint venture
exceeded the Group’s interest in this joint venture and
the Group has no obligation to take up further losses.
The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share
of loss of this joint venture for the current year and
cumulatively were HK$1,687,000 (2021: HK$693,000)
and HK$3,540,000 (2021: HK$1,853,000), respectively.

AR EMNL—EA &% (BISing Tao Daily
Limited) Z B EBHASERZAE XY
BE MARENEREAEE—TZEE -
M ASCEEERIIEREELHZAEREY
BR AEBAFREFAERELZAEE
EEED R A1,687,00008 T (- FE - —4F:
693,000/ 7T) }3,540,000/8 7T (— B = —4 :
1,853,000/ 7T) °
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17 REEBELEZRE(Z)
(continued)

Sing Tao Newspapers (Canada 1988) Limited is
considered a material joint venture of the Group. The
following table summarised the financial information
of Sing Tao Newspapers (Canada 1988) Limited,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies,

Sing Tao Newspapers (Canada 1988) Limited
WRAEAEBE s, —BAEREGEDLFE - TX
5] 7RSing Tao Newspapers (Canada 1988)
Limitedz A 5 E R (ER S TR EZZEL
BREFERKRREELR)

and reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial
statements:

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEEH 28,365 53,394
Other current assets HihmE & E 24,592 26,436
Current assets MENEE 52,957 79,830
Non-current assets EMEEE 7,813 77,206
Trade payables FEATBR K 662 2,717
Other payables and accruals H b & 5 008 K FE 5T 5RIE 30,042 10,298
Current liabilities mEBAEE 30,704 13,015
Non-current financial liabilities ERBTBBE - 3,795
Net assets BEEFE 30,066 140,226
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in HAEERNEELE I ER
the joint venture: ZHER -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REE 2B RELD 50% 50%
The Group’s share of net assets and AEEZERLEEEFER
the carrying amount of investment in REELEREZ
the joint venture BREE 15,033 70,113
Revenue KA 119,973 166,789
Interest income A B YA 585 99
Depreciation and amortisation I E g (4,064) (5,075)
Tax 18 11,845 1,706
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income/ ZAEE K| (EE) &
(loss) for the year 2EME(E8) 858 8,017 (6,394)
Dividend paid Bk AR B (112,665) -

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED EE¥EEEAER AT



18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18 REELQNTZEE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET TFHET

Share of net assets EREEFAE 23,962 25,497
Particulars of the Group’s associates, all of which are RNABIEEEE 2 NEBBES AT 2 B0

indirectly held by the Company, are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary Percentage of
registration and Share capital/ ownership interest Principal
business registered capital attributable to the Group activity
AR, BERTEBERRAEE rEBEGFRTAE
B R 2 & A BEAALL TEER
2022 2021
—E_C —E-—
Bastille Post Company Hong Kong HK$36,290,000 30 30 Internet and
Limited mobile media
E+amBRAR & 36,290,000/ 7T business
HGEERTE
HREK
I REERDEHE People’s Republic RMB15,400,000 30 30 Provision
REER A" of China/Mainland  registered capital of online
China AR #15,400,0007T and offline
hEARLRME AMEAR corporate and
B A vocational
training
and related
services
A R
BEixa
BEEIR
8B R 7
* Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise * hONE B E
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18 REEARZRE (&)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRITAEEBE M E TEKRAEE A A
information of the Group’s associates that are not V& FTEI G E R

individually material:

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Share of the associates’ profits and total DIEBE R B AR EE R &
comprehensive income for the year 2HEWN SRR 1,505 1,598
Carrying amount of the Group’s investments in 7N & B R Bt & A 5] 2 &
the associates REE 23,962 25,497
Dividend paid 2R AR S (2,106) =

EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR 19 BEARAFEFAEMZEKE 2R
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE =HRE
INCOME

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed equity investments, at fair value FHEEERE  RATE 47 47
The above equity investments were irrevocably HRAEBERAZEREBRBEEE - il
designated at fair value through other comprehensive ERMEREDTAIHE M IETE RIRA FER
income as the Group considers these investments to be AE 2w E o

strategic in nature.

INVENTORIES 20 78

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Raw materials R4 35,999 36,744
Finished goods BIRK i 1,066 1,166
37,065 37,910
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21

TRADE RECEIVABLES

P& W B =X

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Trade receivables JE U BR X 202,003 192,760
Impairment B (11,372) (11,882)
190,631 180,878

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment
in advance is normally required. The credit period is
generally for a period of one month, extending up to
three months for major customers. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
a credit control department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

BTHEP —MRARAMMNRI  NEEEE
EFZBEZTERDERPLAELT FEH
—RRE—EA E2EPALRE=EA -
BEEPHRERRGEER AKBEHHEREK
BERBUBERESEREN ITREEEE
EHAUNEERECEERR SREEEL
FRAARARN 2 ES - TR EARER
AEBZRUERDERESTILEFER
B EEERBRETZER - NEELE]
HEWERERFAEMER R EMER
R’ - BRERBEE -
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on payment due date
and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

FE W B (42)

REwEMR BUSRFRIEFEZ B RN
BREEBERZRESNOT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Current to 30 days BNEAZ 30K 128,321 126,373
31 to 60 days 31E60X 27,272 23,701
61 to 90 days 61ZE90K 16,349 14,078
91 to 120 days 91E120K 10,061 8,021
Over 120 days HBiE120K 8,628 8,705
190,631 180,878

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

EURFOREBIERENESHIT :

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

At beginning of year REH 11,882 17,276
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment) EHERRERE, CRERED)

recognised (note 7) (B5E7) 2,160 (2,310)

Amounts written off as uncollectible S RE Y 1B 1 il 8H Y £ K8 (2,661) (3,044)

Exchange realignment bE X, R (9) (40)

At end of year NS 11,372 11,882

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical
region, product type, and customer type and rating).
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally,
trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than one year and are not subject to enforcement
activity.
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REHE B MORBBRBREETREDT -
U ERHERBRR - BEXTHERRANE
BREUBREANZERTFE D EETY A (A
e EmBER - TP BRI KR ME SN
RBGE A ERRARFTNELER &
BREMNBREAHAAISHERBESEEH
EATRMFRRREE GG BRSNS E kA5
Bt —RME - BRUERRNEBREL—F
K BAZ RSB TTIEE R T LA -



21 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21 EBWERFR(£2)

ERASERAEGREETENEEERRD
EERRERFINLT

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a
provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_—_+=-A=+—H

Past due

aH

Current to 31 to 61 to 91 to Over
30 days 60 days 90 days 120 days 120 days
BHZ30X 31Z60K 61Z90K 91F120%k HE#B120%K

Expected credit loss rate BHERBEAX 0.18% 0.82% 2.17% 3.70%  54.10% 5.63%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) REAE(TET) 128,550 27,498 16,712 10,447 18,796 202,003
Expected credit loss (HK$'000) BHERBA(FAET) 229 225 363 387 10,168 11,372
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-_—F+=-_A=+—H

Past due
ki
Current to 3110 61to 9110 Qver
30 days 60 days 90days 120days 120 days
HEZE30K 31260k 61290k 91Z120Kk #BHEI20K

Expected credit loss rate BHERBAX 0.66% 0.98% 2.60% 559%  53.34% 6.16%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) REAE(TETL) 127,219 23,936 14,454 8,496 18,655 192,760
Expected credit loss (HK$'000) BHERBR(TEL) 846 235 376 475 9,950 11,882

22 PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS

22 FEAMNRE HttEUREREMEE

HK$’000 HK$’000

Fr#ET FET

Prepayments TE IR 11,238 11,750
Deposits and other receivables e & H bW e 19,511 30,487
30,749 42,237

Portion classified as non-current assets DEEBIERBDEEZ DS (3,544) (5,413)
Current portion mENE S 27,205 36,824
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23

172

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS (continued)

Deposits mainly represent rental deposits, utility
deposits and other deposits. Where applicable, an
impairment analysis is performed at the end of each
reporting date by considering the probability of default
of comparable companies with published credit ratings.
In the situation where no comparable companies with
credit ratings can be identified, ECLs are estimated
by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the
historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is
adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions, as appropriate. As at
31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group assessed the
loss allowance under the application of HKFRS 9 was
insignificant.

The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31
December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance was
assessed to be minimal.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

22

23

BANRE - HttEWRERHMBEE (&)

eI BREHERS KEBREREMR
T RKEBERAMEENRZAEBLBRAT
BRZAIREMN  REIMRNERERAET
(@) - WA BEABEEFRZAE LR
NAEER RHERABKE2EAKEA
EEBRTHELEBERBRRZETHE -
BREENBEERERFELABRUARRERS
ARBRARREERA - R_F_—_F R
T —F+-A=1t—HB AEBEDFMEHEKR
REEMBHREEINEIRA T CEHERBEER
TEKX-

LNEEBBRZTEEE R ETHRER
R BHARE BB R ==
FER T —F+-_A=+—H  EEEE
ST BT E R -

BRAFPEFABSZRZUBEE

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed equity securities, at fair value and FHRAESE  BRAFEE
included in current assets FErtARBEE 1,846 2,038
Other unlisted investments, at fair value and E A IF FTHIRE - IHAF
included in non-current assets BERFTAERBEE 10,969 11,334
Total financial assets at fair value through EATFEFAEREZY
profit or loss BEE®BE 12,815 13,372

The above investments were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were
held for trading.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not
intend to dispose of its unlisted investments within the
next twelve months and therefore they were included in
non-current assets.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED EE¥EEEAER AT

tRBRESBABEEERERAFETA
BERIMIBEE

RZBE-_—_FR-_ZF-_—F+-_A=+—H8"
AEBTBRAR+ —_EAALEHIE LTI
EREit HBFFAERHEE -



24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERBEEEER

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Cash and bank balances WERBTES 186,553 491,545

Non-pledged time deposits fEAR E A F K 285,901 35,402
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the B BRREKFII 2R E K&

statement of financial position HeEBEER 472,454 526,947
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with B REVS KRR EIE B 8
original maturity of more than three B =1 A 7 AR

months when acquired F HTFE R (14,997) (1,599)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated inthe IRE&REXRFMIIZRE R

statement of cash flows HeEEER 457,457 525,348

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) amounted to HK$34,268,000 (2021:
HK$38,583,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through
authorised banks to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

RBERR AEEBUARETARED B
B2 & R IRTT 4 88 4334,268,000/8 7T (=
T — — 4 : 38,583,000/ 7T) © AR A]
BEHABRSEMERE AWM REFEAR
ZHONEERGO R AE  SERNEEER
EoAKEEBEEREBERBETINER
ZRITIBARERBLSEMER

FR|OTZRERFBARTERANXRZFE
AR EHEREREAKE 2R T
FEF-BEZ@AAAF AKRKEEZE
HIE I KA R BRERA B - RITE R R F R
DERREERENERT HYEAHMKRE
FCER ©
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ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 20 September 2022 (Canada time), the Group
entered into sale agreement (“Agreement”) with an
independent third party to dispose of its property (the
“Property”) located in Toronto, Canada.

The Property is a commercial building indirectly
wholly-owned by the Group as investment property.
The Group agreed to disposal of the Property at a
total consideration of approximately CA$7,168,800
(equivalent to approximately HK$41,364,000). As at
31 December 2022, the Group received sales deposits
regarding sales of investment property to CA$350,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,020,000). The
investment property at the fair value of HK$35,157,000
which was expected to be sold within twelve months
was classified as held for sale and was presented
separately in the statement of financial position.
The abovementioned transaction that resulted in
the reclassification of assets held for sale as at 31
December 2022 are expected to be completed during
the course of 2023.

On 24 February 2023 (Canada time), the Agreement
was agreed to amend to (1) the consideration of the
transaction was revised to CA$6,738,672 (equivalent to
approximately HK$38,882,000). (2) the purchaser shall
pay an additional deposit of CA$100,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$577,000). (3) The transaction closing
date is extended to 20 June 2023.

Except for the amendments set out above, the principal
terms of the Agreement remain unchanged. The
revised consideration represents approximately a 6%
reduction in the consideration for the disposal. It was
determined after considering the drop in property prices
in the vicinity under the prolonged rising interest rate
environment since the date of the Agreement.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED £ & EEAR A 7

25

TEAFFHEZEE

R-ZF__FAA-_THWEAKH) - &
SEE-RBIE=NFIMHEHRE ([ZH
&) AHEEREURNERZREZ 2WE ([Z
WE])

ZHMEAEANEEMEZEBREZHENE
EAREVE -AEEREHEZYE &
RAEA A7,168,800007T (F8E M £141,364,000
B) R-_ZE-_—_F+_A=+—H =K«
S E R H SR E Y W ELEE S £ ©350,000
ot (8 E RN #2,020,00058 7T) - AFE A
35,157,000 T2 W EWEBH R+ =@ A
NEE DBEAFELDE  URFHKRRE
NEBEY - FMEHRN T _—_&F+_A
S+ HREHEEEEF P ENRSEY
BN - B - =F 5% o

RZEZ=F-_A=-+WMHE (NEXEH) -
ZHMEEREEBTAENONVRRSIRKEBT B
6,738,672 7T (18 E M 4738,882,0007% 7T ) °
(2B 7 A+ 5 HMNE £100,00000 7T (A8 & 7
#9577,00087C) c QRS EH AHERE =
T-_=F,A=-+H-

B EX P2 ERT SN - &t 2 = B IRFM#
FIAE - KETREAERHERERLD
6% ° WTIREE B % a5 B HE - EREN
BRRET  MAMEERTHREETE -



26 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 26 ENRIREE

27

An ageing analysis of trade and bills payables as at the RIMEB KR BNEFREEEBRIERIBE
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, BZRRAITIT :
is as follows:

=
7N

I~

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET TFET
Current to 30 days BNEAZ=30K 15,450 28,519
31 to 60 days 31E60K 4,812 7,914
61 to 90 days 61ZE90K 6,901 3,064
91 to 120 days 91E120K 1,317 775
Over 120 days HBiE120K 705 1,763

29,185 42,035
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are JERBRAT T BB —REROBEEH -
normally settled on 60-day terms.
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27 HittEMARERESFRE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FETT

Receipts in advance TR IE 29,135 29,938
Contract liabilities BHEE (a) 11,449 19,848
Other payables H i ET 1B (b) 50,884 51,636
Accruals FESTRIA 38,816 43,175
130,284 144,597
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27 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(continued)

Notes:

(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

B¥REPLZKH
B HE

Short-term advances received
from customers

Circulation income related to
newspapers, magazines and
other publications

BRRE - MR

EABT ey 1T HA

27

H A FE A FROR R SRR (4F)

B &L -

(@ ANBEFENT:

31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021

—E_-— = —E_—4F
+=BA=+-—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

11,449 19,848 17,788

The decrease in contract liabilities in 2022 was
mainly due to the decrease in short-term advances
received from customers in relation to the circulation
of newspapers, magazines and other publications at
the end of the year. In the prior year, the increase in
contract liabilities was mainly due to the increase in
short-term advances received from customers in relation
to the circulation of newspapers, magazines and other
publications at the end of that year.

(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing, and have an
average payment term of three months.

176 SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED EE¥EEEAER AT

ERNEER-_ZT__FRIDIEHREAR
FRETHE HTREGTMAERNEIK
EFEMBRRIAH - E£2F AHAEERE
MHEBHNENFRETHRE M RE
it T B REH) B MR = 58 B B FOE b AT 2R

(o) HMENKER/THE LAF=EAFY
OES K



28 DEFERRED TAX 28 EIEFIIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets FRELEHBEENREEZEHNT ¢
during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE

Fair value

adjustments

Depreciation  arising from
allowance  acquisition of

in excess  an additional

of related  interestina  Revaluation Withholding
depreciation joint venture  of properties Tax losses taxes Total
hEeELR
EoMER
RERBNE LR
ZHERRE  ATEBRE EfihE REER ANnE it

HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET

At 1 January 2021 RZE--%-F-H 45,900 4,864 90,208 (38,325) 10,743 113,390
Deferred tax (credited)/ charged to
the statement of profit or loss during ~ ERREHRA (5 A) /M 2

the year (note 10) BRI (F3E10) (323) - 1,085 1,331 - 2,073
Deferred tax charged to asset revaluation £RREEEEFEETNR 2

reserve during the year ERtiE - - 3,300 - = 3,300
Withholding taxes payment during

the year ERZA ENH - - - = (4,517) [4,517)
Exchange realignment B = = = = (1,176) (1,176)
At 31 December 2021 and R-E--€+-F=+-HEk

1 January 2022 “E--E-f-H 45577 4,864 94,673 (36,994) 5,050 113,070

Deferred tax (credited)/ charged to
the statement of profit or loss during ~ ERRNERERAGIA) /1K 2

the year (note 10) ERERA (f3510) (179 = 714 1,058 9,442 11,535
Deferred tax charged to asset revaluation £RAREEEfEERNE 2

reserve during the year EREHE - - 4916 - - 4916
Withholding taxes payment during

the year FRRFZEAR - - - - (1,800) (1,800)
Exchange realignment B AR = = - - (320) (320)
At 31 December 2022 R-E--F+-f=t+-H 45,398 4,864 100,203 (35,436) 12,372 127,401
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DEFERRED TAX (continued) 28

Deferred tax assets

ELERLIE ()
EERBEEE
Depreciation

in excess
of related

depreciation

allowance Tax losses
BARBRTE
EREZHE BIEE R

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 NZZE-—%—A—H 3,006 - 3,006
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the FRNRBEERAGIA) /K
statement of profit or loss during the year ZIEFEFIIA (HT5E10)
(note 10) (85) 1,650 1,565
At 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 and RZE-_—F+-A=+—8"
31 December 2022 “T--F—-A—-Bk
—E--#+-A=+—H 2,921 1,650 4,571

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$1,152,840,000 (2021: approximately
HK$1,047,995,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. The Group also had tax
losses arising in Mainland China of approximately
HK$15,298,000 (2021: approximately HK$16,716,000)
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of HK$224,770,000
(2021: HK$234,211,000) of the tax losses. Deferred
tax assets in respect of remaining tax losses of
approximately HK$943,368,000 (2021: approximately
HK$830,500,000) have not been recognised as they
have arisen in certain subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and in the opinion of the
directors, it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED EE¥EEEAER AT

RBEEHR AEBEREEBZHES
18 471,152,840,0008 T (Z 2 = —F : 4y
1,047,995,0007% 7T) A] £& [R HA A3 A 4K 65 &=
AN EBEBZARZAKRBERI G R -
AEBTFERBERDH R AT IEEBLY
15,298,00056 7T (—Z & — — £ : 416,716,000
BL) HEHEBR—ZEFRIE JHERE
5 R 2R B SR Bl s A o B §E224,770,0000% 7T
(ZZT = — 4 : 234,211,000/ 7T) &) & H &
BRERBEEMEBELE AR UHEEBIKRA
AETHEBEBEEE —BREEZHBAR M
BEERAET AR geEEAREHE TR
HEEENERB SR WY ERBT M
7% &5 18 49943,368,0008 L (Z &2 = —F : 49
830,500,000/ 7T ) R IR E R TH & E ©



28

29

DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax assets (continued)

Pursuant to the Canada Income Tax Act, a withholding
tax of 5% or 15% is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Canada. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Canada and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5% since the beneficial owner is a
company that controls directly or indirectly at least 10%
of the voting power in the company paying the dividend.
The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on
dividends distributable by those subsidiaries established
in Canada in respect of earnings generated.

There are no income tax consequences attaching

to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

28

29

ERERE (45)
EEBHEE (&)

REBENEXMBHE  RMNERNKILZHMNE
BRECXAIBEREET IR Z K EBLRE%H
15% M R BB - W EKREIBERE
HEZRREBERERFNBGRG  AEER
RENFEHNRE -RAEEANE AR ER
BEAREERABMEBEEFNIMNBREARZED
10%FK AN RE - BUBRAREFE% © Fit -
AEBEEERAFELERNMNAZERMNEX
R M BARMEIR IR ESAMBIEA -

AN B ) E R SN BB 3 R SRR S B A K

HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FETT
Authorised: JEE A -
2,354,256,546 ordinary shares of 2,354,256,546[% & X HE
HK$0.2 each 0.2 Tz L@ 470,851 470,851
1,291,486,908 5% redeemable cumulative 1,291,486,908% & i% E (&
convertible preference shares of 01T Z25% 2 E A HE B
HK$0.1 each AT 83R48 A% 129,149 129,149
600,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: BEREITRBRRKA
880,543,017 (2021: 880,543,017) ordinary 880,543,017 (Z&FE = —%:
shares of HK$0.2 each 880,543,017) #ixEE
0.2 Tz L@ 176,109 176,109

There were no movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year. (2021: Nil).

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the

share options granted under the schemes are included
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

FA > ARARALBEES) (ZF——F: §)
BB
BRAARRERER S MRE SR B

R FEBENERE M RERMEES0 -
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

180

(1)

Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”)

The 2012 Scheme was adopted by the Company
on 23 May 2012 and has a term of 10 years
commencing from 23 May 2012, unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the terms of the
2012 Scheme.

Summary of the 2012 Scheme is set out below:

(a)

(b)

Purpose

The 2012 Scheme seeks to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions or potential
contributions made or to be made by the
participants to the Group, to motivate the
participants to optimise their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the Group,
and to maintain or attract business
relationship with the participants whose
contributions are or may be beneficial to the
growth of the Group.

Participants

The board of directors may at its absolute
discretion invite anyone from the following
classes of participants to take up options to
subscribe for shares of the Company:

(i) any part-time or full-time employee or
officer of any member of the Group or
of any associate;

(i) any director (executive or
non-executive) of any member of the
Group or of any associate; or

(i) any supplier, agent, customer, business
associate, distributor, professional
or other adviser of, or consultant or
contractor to, any member of the
Group.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED £ & EEAR A 7

30

BRESE

(1)

R-ZB-—SHEA-+T=ZBRANER
BErE (=T ——F58))

RZEBE——FRA=-+=0 ' "AFHK
W_T——F58 R-_FT—Z=—FAHA
—+Z=HREABHI0F  BRIERITIRE
TR F R EIMIE RS LE -

—E——FHEBMEOT :
(a) B#

—E-_FEEFENR/ERSEE
SARBEFER R IEL < BRI
BEER - MRS REREE
REMREMENELAEE YA
HEIREEHAKRERERAME
BRIt B BRIz 2 HE 2 X5/
1%

(b) ZEE

ExernagRNBAETI2EE
RPN ZEMALTEABBE - AR
BARA KD

(XY PY PNGET R
NCPET RS EES T
HEE

() AR EAK B A R S E
AR ZEREF (HITHIEN
7) =%

(i) AEERKERE 2 ERHEE
B REBP - XBEH
DA BRAL FEHAA
R SR B R o



30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(1) Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”) (continued)

(c)

(d)

Total number of shares available for
issue

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2012 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval of
the 2012 Scheme (excluding options lapsed)
(the “Mandate Limit”).

The Company may, at any time, refresh the
Mandate Limit by obtaining the approval of
shareholders of the Company in a general
meeting. The Company may also seek
separate approval by its shareholders in a
general meeting for granting options beyond
the Mandate Limit or the refreshed limit
provided that the options in excess of the
limit are granted to participants specifically
identified before such approval is sought.

The overall limit on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2012 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless separately approved by shareholders
in a general meeting in the manner as
prescribed in the Listing Rules, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of share options granted to
each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares
then in issue.

30 BERESE(E)

(1) R»R=
earE (=

(c)

(d)

E-—_FREA-+=ZBEHEHNER

——F38)) (F)
AHRRITZROEH

lfﬂ%*ﬁﬁfz_? —FEEEAN
ARMEMEMBRESSREZ
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂé(T@%E%}?&Zﬁﬁﬁi
B)MA TERTZERMDER &K
TEBE_—T—_FF 8 ER
ﬁﬂ%ﬁaa%ﬁffﬁﬁﬁfﬁZm%(Fﬁ%@
&l -

ARRAEEAFHERRAS L
BEARRB R EEHRER
B ARABMAIERRA® EHTT
EU1S B F SR AL /6 35 o R e IR R PR B
KEHMBRBZBERE  EBAZR
B2 BBREE T £ B R ILER
FRltlEEZ 2 8% -

RiRE—F——F5 a8l RARRE
o] EL A 8 A R R 81 2 35 M R R AT
ERDEFITE A RBREET
Ema FEITZRDBEEER
B INFEBED BTN Z30% -

EBRERZTEZRG

EEA+ @A PESE2HEERT
FRFEERLCERE(BEET
B R ARITHE 2 W) ME1T R
BT RN BE  TEBRER
BEITERMD 1% ERE ETHE
Bl TERENBRRERAT STRA
BIBR G
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30 fEMRAERHEI(E)
(1) Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May 1) RZEBE—-—FFA-+=-HEMNER
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”) (continued) EFE(=8—=F8) (&)
(e) Period within which the shares must be (e) XERBERGZEHH
taken up

The period during which a share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the 2012 Scheme shall be the period
set out in the relevant offer letter provided
that such period expires no later than the
tenth anniversary of the date on which it is
granted.

(f) Basis of determining the exercise price (f)

The exercise price must be at least the
higher of:

()  the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the relevant share
options; and

(i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant
of the relevant share options.

(g) Remaining life (9)

The 2012 Scheme expired on 22 May 2022.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED £ & EEAR A 7

RiIF =T — —FEHEIMGRK - 71T
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(1)

Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”) (continued)

At 1 January 2022, there were (i) 13,630,000
share options outstanding granted in 2015 under
the 2012 Scheme with an exercise period from
4 May 2016 to 3 May 2025 at an exercise price
of HK$1.16 per share, and (i) 14,816,680 share
options outstanding granted in 2017 under the
2012 Scheme with an exercise period from 13
January 2018 to 12 January 2027 at an exercise
price of HK$1.01 per share.

During the year, no share option was granted
nor exercised under the 2012 Scheme. Totals
of 4,550,000 and 3,966,680 outstanding share
options previously granted at the respective
exercise prices of HK$1.16 per share and HK$1.01
per share, under the 2012 Scheme lapsed.

At 31 December 2022, there were 9,080,000 and
10,850,000 share options outstanding granted
in 2015 and 2017, respectively, under the 2012
Scheme.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had
19,930,000 (2021: 28,446,680) share options
outstanding under the 2012 Scheme with an
exercise period from 4 May 2016 to 12 January
2027 and exercise price ranging from HK$1.01
to HK$1.16 per share. The exercise in full of the
remaining share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 19,930,000 (2021: 28,446,680) additional
shares of HK$0.2 each, which represented
approximately 2.26% of the existing issued
ordinary share capital of the Company at the end
of the reporting period.

During the year, movement of share options
granted to eligible employees under the share
option schemes of the Company is as follows:

30

BRERTE (E)

(1)

R-B-——SRA-+=ARANEBR
EstE ((—S——Fi8]) (&)

RZEZZF—A—B ()RZ=ZF—%
FRBE T ——FEREmEARITE
2 B #E A3, 630,000@ LY
ZIEHA T AERANABRE
“E-RAERA=BAIt TEEAER
1168 7L ' Mi)RN—_E—+tFRE -
——FHEBREMARITEZERES
14,816,680 ' %2 EERE 21T B M
—E-N\F—At+=HEZE-_ZE_L+F
—A+Z=HI TEERERI.0VET -

RERN BB ——FHEMEER
BERHIETE - RBRE-ZZ—ZF5
2] - & #£4,550,00017 }.3,966,68017 %t
AR MEARITEBRE(BBITE
ER R AER116E T R1.01E L) BEX
R o

R-ZE-_—_F+_A=+—H8 RBE-
T-—_FHE R-ZT-—HFKR=F
—tFEREmMERITEERED A
9,080,000 X 10,850,00017 °

RZZFE-_—F+=-_A=+—8 %42

AIRBE-_FT——FHEHRTHEZE
f% % £19,930,0007 (=& = —F :

28,446,680 ) ' ZEHERE 2 ITEH
- - NFRANEEBE_T_+F
—ATZHLE - TEEAER1.01EBT
F1A6B T o BEITEH T 2 B IRE S
CEEARRARERE ZRALET T
19,930,0000% (=& — — £ : 28,446,680

%) FEEC.2B T Z BN D - (AR
RARNHEPRRBEFERITEBREA
#92.26% ©

RER BEFRAEREEREAR
BT B R T 2 BREZEFH T
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30 BREE(E)

Number of share options

BRERA

Exercise
price of
share
options
(Note a)
BRE
ik
GED)

At 31
December
2022

Fair value
per share
option

Lapsed
during
the year

Exercise period of
share options
(dd/mm/yy)

Date of grant of At
share options 1 January
(dd/mm/yy) 2022

Name of category

of participant

R-B__&
tZR=t-A

BRETES
(B/R/%)

BRERLAS
(B/A/%)

R-B_
=Ji=I[g]

SHERE

SREMZIER RERKN LYE

Other employees 04/05/15 13,630,000 (4,550,000) 9,080,000  04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.380
(in aggregate) 13/01/17 14,816,680 (3,966,680) 10,850,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.321
HiwlER (#5t)
Total 28,446,680 (8,516,680) 19,930,000
al
Note: B &L -
(@)  The exercise price of the share options is subject to () EREZTEESARBBENL  BITAKK

AR RBAMERZ EES BT EL D -

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

No share option expense was recognised by the Group
for both years.

AR AR B 3 R AR A B o

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
movement of share options granted under the share
option schemes of the Company is as follows:

RIRE MM - R EA D TR B Y
WRESDOT :

Number of share options

SRR H A

184

Date of exercised/lapsed

Date of grant of
share options

Lapsed after
the end of

Exercise period
of share options

Exercise price

(dd/mm/yy) (dd/mm/yy) reporting period (dd/mm/yy) of share options

T8/ X% H fE R AR A BRETES

(B/B/%) (B/B/%) RBEBRELK (B/B/%) BRETREE
HK$
BT

13/01/23 04/05/15 400,000 04/15/16-03/05/25 1.16

13/01/23 13/01/17 200,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.01

Total 600,000

A&t
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30

31

32

33

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

At the approval date of these financial statements, the
Company had 19,330,000 share options outstanding
under the 2012 Scheme, which represented
approximately 2.20% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.

RESERVES

The Group’s contributed surplus represents (i) the
excess of the nominal value of the shares issued by
Perfect Treasure Holdings (BVI) Limited in exchange
for the aggregate nominal value of the issued capital
of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation in 1996, prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares, amounting to HK$9,899,000, and (ii)
the credit of HK$488,930,000 arising from the reduction
of the share premium account in 2003 less the
distribution of HK$18,181,000 in 2003 and the debits
of HK$5,935,000, HK$1,073,000, HK$34,307,000 and
HK$31,443,000 arising from the repurchase of shares
during the years ended 31 December 2012, 2008, 2007
and 2006, respectively.

PENDING LITIGATIONS

The Group has received claims made against certain
subsidiaries for damages in respect of alleged
defamation. Based on legal opinions, the directors are
of the opinion that adequate provision has been made
in the consolidated financial statements to cover any
potential liabilities arising from the litigations.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of HK$43,890,000 (2021: HK$8,972,000)
and HK$43,890,000 (2021: HK$8,972,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for
buildings and equipment.

30

31

32

33

BRERTE (E)

R EZEMERRBH  AQFRE-F
— —F &I AR 17 2 B8 A% # &19,330,000
B (RARRARNE BB T 2D H2.20% °

fEt

NEB 7B AR B Perfect Treasure
Holdings (BVI) Limited¥ /7% 0 2 E{E ' i
RAERRGD ETA - AEXBRIBE —AR
FEEEABRENBEAREHTRAL
mEZIHD &% 459,899,000 T+ i
i) zZEZT = iﬁumﬂx@/ﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁciz
488,930,000 T#HERBE T =F H Ik
218,181,000,%75LA&BAEti*ff_i
—EENF - ZETLFREERF =
B=+—BLHEFERRAERRKRS M BIREE
5,935,0007% 7t ~ 1,073,000 7T * 34,307,000
7571 31,443,000/ 7T °

FIRFHRZFHFFA

AEBZERETHEBRRREY MHFEMmER
HZHR - REBZEER EERARAEH
EtESREMBRRPIELRABERBIUNE
BEMAEERFRMELEZER

FERERERWE

(@ EEFREXS

FRN - AEEZERAREERTEEASR
MEFREBEZHELED RISRBIER
& 1% 043,890,000 7T (=T = — & :
8,972,000/ 7t ) 43,890,000/ 7T (= Z
——4 :8,972,000/87T) °
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(c)

33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33 FERERERME(E)
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b)) RMETBHELEZAEBEH
activities
Lease
liabilities
HEAE
HK$’000
TFET
At 1 January 2021 R—ZEFE=——F—H—H 28,686
Changes from financing cash flows MERESREZH (23,444)
Foreign exchange movement HE 5 & B 101
New leases HEE 8,972
Interest expense (note 6) B (HEe6) 976
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows DEAKERERELEMNFE (976)
Lease modifications HEEE] (1,459)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZEZ—F+=—A=+—HBK
T —_H—H—H 12,856
Changes from financing cash flows MERESMNEE D (16,543)
Foreign exchange movement bE 525 (66)
New leases s 43,890
Interest expense (note 6) FEF = (F5E6) 1,242
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows DHEAKEHRERNELENHE (1,242)
Lease modifications MEERT (432)
At 31 December 2022 R-_ZE__F+-_RA=+—H 39,705
Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERHERLHE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the HARESRERZHAERS R BN
statement of cash flows is as follows: T

186

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Within operating activities KB EIRNR 1,242 976
Within financing activities BMEEHN 16,543 23,444
17,785 24,420
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34 COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

34 RiE

AREBERBFEHREATERKIE :

Contacted, but not provided for: BRI AB R B

Plant and machinery

HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FETT
2,906 3,052

35

(a)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances
detailed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

35 BEALRS

(a) BIEEUVBEHRERZEMHMAFAZRS
BN REBNERNNERDE AL
SMNTHZERRS

KEREEEZEW

News service fee income

received from joint ventures FEREERAKA
News service and other service REBE Qa2 B W
fee income received from B RS REAM
associates Ak 7% 2 B A
Advertising income received kE—MEBEATZ
from an associate BWESEHA

News service fee expenses paid
to an associate

B RS B AR X

Xt F-—EBERRZ

HK$°000 HK$’000

FETT FET

(i 27 6,701
(ii) 727 1,221
(i) 248 223
(i 1,440 1,440

The related party transactions in respect of
news service and other service fee income and
advertising income received from associates, and
news service fee expenses paid to associates
above also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

B L g R 2 HE RS A
IRBERRAREESEA KRB
BERRZHERBERANBEALR
SFMEXR ETRUFI4ATEEEZNTE
BERS e
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35 BEALXRE (&)
(@) (continued) (@ (#&)
Notes: B 5E -

(i) The news service fee was charged on an annual
fixed amount basis pursuant to the relevant news
service agreement.

(i) The service fee was charged at cost plus a
pre-determined mark-up.

(i) The advertising income was determined between
the parties with reference to the prevailing market
price.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b)
of the Group:

(i)

(i)

(i)

¥ AR %5 B AR 4% 48 BA 3 B AR 7% 1 8
BEERKRE -

AR 7% B A AR R A AN INFEE A UL & -

BEEWAREEET2ZERITHEETE °

FrEEFEEEABZHME

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Short term employee benefits HHEERA 20,035 18,892

Post-employment benefits B2 R A 114 110
Total compensation paid to key MEBERABLINZ

management personnel B <& 48 %8 20,149 19,002

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.
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36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36 ERIASHE
The carrying amounts of each category of financial RMERR SEERMITAEMEABRT :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
31 December 2022 —E-_—_f#+=-H=+—H
Financial assets MBEE

Financial assets at fair value Financial

through profit or loss assets at

BAYEHARREERZ fair value

BREE through other
Designated comprehensive Financia
as such income - assets at

upon initial Held for Equity amortised
recognition trading  investments cost
ROSERR BATEFA
EERAYE A 2EKED 78§
FABRERZ BHBEE- A5 2
HEBEE KFEE RhtiRE HEBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Tén TET Tén TE7n Tén
Equity investments designated at fairvalue ~ EFARATEFALMZE
though other comprehensive income a7 BRUERE - - 47 - 41
Trade receivables e - - - 190,631 190,631
Financial assets included in prepayments, StABMEE  E b EUGR
other receivables and other assets REMBENYEEE - - - 19,501 19,501
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEFABREN
profit or loss BEE 10,969 1,846 - - 12,815
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEH - - - 472,454 472,454
10,969 1,846 47 682,586 695,448
Financial liabilities MEaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
& 8 81 B A
IR A E
HK$°000
FET
Trade and bills payables ERERREE 29,185
Financial liabilities included in other payables and 5+ A E i fE < 208 & e 5t 7708 2
accruals BB aRE 73,555
Lease liabilities HEBE 39,705
142,445
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36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36 SRIBESE(E)
(continued)
31 December 2021 —E-—F=+-_HFB=+—H
Financial assets MEEE

Financial assets at fair value Financial
through profit or loss assets at
BALENAEBRE Y fair value
ABEE through other
Designated comprehensive Financial

as such income - assets at

upon initial Held for Equity amortised

recognition trading investments cost
B A

; B

ARSI &2

YBEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Equity investments designated at fairvalue ~ #EF ARATEF AL 2E
though other comprehensive income Wil 7 R ERE = = 47 = 47
Trade receivables U - - - 180,878 180,878
Financial assets included in prepayments, SHABMEE b EWGR
other receivables and other assets REAMEENNKEE - - = 30,068 30,068
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEFABREN
profit or loss HBEE 11,334 2,038 - - 13,372
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEEER = = = 506,947 526,947
11,334 2,038 47 737,893 751,312
Financial liabilities B#aE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
bieg: A1) DN
TR B AR
HK$’000
FET
Trade and bills payables ERERREE 42,085
Financial liabilities included in other payables STAEAMESRIERESTRIEZ
and accruals BisaE 80,998
Lease liabilities HEBE 12,856
135,889
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37

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are
as follows:

TMITANIFERAFESRHE

REEEEATFTEABRELEN  KEFSE
BTEMEEELRAFERT :

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AF¥E
2022 2021 2022
—E__ —E-—fF —E-C
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets BEEE
Equity investments designated at KEARAFETA
fair value through other Hi 2Bl BmERE
comprehensive income 47 47 47 47
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFABHEER 2
profit or loss PBEE 12,815 13,372 12,815 13,372
12,862 13,419 12,862 13,419

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade and bills
payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, and lease
liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance team is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance team
reports directly to the Group senior management and
the audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance
team analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in
the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the Group senior management. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

BEEEERLNGE TEHRZEFTANEY
AHME RekREFEER - BRERR
ENERAERRR FFABRNRIER  HHRK
RALEMEENPFTEE St ARMEN
REAMEFHENMBABEARBEREN
R EEEREERS -

AEENMBEFREERESRTARTE
AENBREERF WHKERERAANEE
EREEERERZECER NEEKSE
B BHEBE e T ABENES
VAERARNGENTIEBAEB HEHA
SERAEEEEMLLE HERBRENRE
REBZZESBEFMARTHRARE2FUH
HER® o
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37 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices. The fair value of other unlisted
investments is determined with reference to the quoted
market price.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2022

37 TMIANAFERAFESRFEE)

MEEEREMMATELZTAAERS
B (RBFEEEERIN) EARS FOTR
SSBAR T FERBRE ARG A
T -

FREEREZAFELDERTS®RE -
HiF EREZAFEDLERSREM
BE -

DFEERHFE

TRETEAEESRMIANRATEAESER
HE

BEAFEHAENEE
R-ZE-_—+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ATEFERA
Quoted
Prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
Markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EBTiE I EXATEE EATAHZR
#E BAER BAE
(Z4-) (£4=) (EH=)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Equity investments designated at fair 38 AR A FE A
value through other comprehensive HEpemhaEe
income BRERE 47 - - 47
Financial assets at fair value through ~ RAFEAERERZ
profit or loss: HBEE:
Equity investments BRMERE 1,846 - - 1,846
Debt investments BEHIA - 10,969 - 10,969
1,893 10,969 - 12,862
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37 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

37 TMIANAFERAIFESRFEE)

DFEERFEE)

R-E-_—+=-A=+—H

AFEFERA
Quoted
Prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
Markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
& BT I5 A BRAUBE BAPUEE
WE HAE HAE
(%8H-) (54=) (Z8=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Equity investments designated at fair 38 E AR A FEFTA
value through other comprehensive Hp2mhaEe
income BaERE 47 - - 47
Financial assets at fair value through ~ RAFEABRERZ
profit or loss: HBEE:
Equity investments BEaitiRE 2,038 - - 2,038
Debt investments EBIA - 11,334 - 11,334
2,085 11,334 - 13,419

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured
at fair value as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil).

RZB-_—_Fr-_ZF-_—F+-_A=+—H"
AEEBVETMERAFEAENTHEE -

REAFER BEEER - LRER_ZHE

BREASELER=ATHEFE (=2
——F i E)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise cash and short term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade and bills payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally forward currency contracts, for
trading purposes.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.
The board reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below. The
Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, joint ventures and associates. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts
is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure
to credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.
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PEERERE R FEREGK

AEEZIE2SRMIAMTETARIN B
RehkBfER ZFeRTAZEIERN
REEETUBAKERLERS AKHA
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TEBHR

AEEERMTAZEIEZRARASEERR R
BESRRETEER EF2RE LHBE
EEEABER CBE LHPAWOT - A&
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2.4

FERR
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Mﬁ%&ﬂwz RAIEITR S o K%.Z[ﬂl
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38 HEEMREEEERBRE(Z)

AND POLICIES (continued)
As at 31 December 2022

12-month
ECLS
12f8 R
BAER

B

Stage 1
£-K&

R=®==F+t=A=+-8

Lifetime ECLs

2REAERARX
Simplified
Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
EZRE L fBakt

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET TET TET FET FET
Trade receivables® [ - - - 202,003 202,003
Financial assets included in prepayments, STABRFE - HEME
other receivables and other assets REMEE HBEE
- Normal** Sz 19,501 - - - 19,501
- Doubtful* —E” - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReZEES
- Not yet past due oENal 472,454 - - - 472,454
491,955 - - 202,003 693,958

As at 31 December 2021

12-month
ECLS
12f2 A
BHER

Stage 1
i E

RZE-_—F+=-A=+—H

Lifetime ECLs

ERB%
Simplified
Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
FfER F=KR H5%

Total
@t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FAT FET
Trade receivables® ElE - - - 192,760 192,760
Financial assets included in prepayments, SABRARE K EKHE
other receivables and other assets REMEEZBMBEE
- Normal* -E&E* 30,068 - - - 30,068
- Doubtful** —AH” = = = = =
Cash and cash equivalents Be kR ZHEER
- Not yet past due Nl 526,947 = = = 526,947
557,015 : - 192,760 749,775
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based
on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 21 to the
financial statements.

- The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets are
considered as “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets are considered as “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flow
from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafts and bank loans. The Group’s policy
is that not more than 20% of its interest-bearing bank
borrowings should mature in any 12-month period.
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

MEEREREBEREEK(E)

REBEERER(E)

RBEMR REGHRTRANRE A&
BB ENIIESERNT

HK$’000  HK$’000  HK$°000
TET FET FET

Trade and bills payables ERERREE 29,185 - 29,185

Financial liabilities included in other ST AE At eI FRIE - BT
payables, accruals and provision RIERBENMBEAE 78,555 - 73,555
Lease liabilities HEBE 17,458 24,832 42,290
120,198 24,832 145,030

HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000
FET TET T

Trade and bills payables ERERREE 42,035 = 42,035
Financial liabilities included in other T A E AL FE AT FRIA - FEET
payables, accruals and provision RIERBENMBEAE 80,998 = 80,998
Lease liabilities HEBE 8,417 6,142 14,659
131,450 6,142 137,592
Market risk ™5 Ak

The Group trades in financial instruments, including
derivatives, equity securities and debt securities.

Market risk represents the risk that the fair values or
future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
due to changes in market variables, such as interest
rates and equity prices. The Group is exposed to
market risk through its derivative financial instruments
and other investments.

AEBEESRIE BREITEATAR KX

mERABESRIAZAFELRKESR
ERAMNERRESTHSEHMKE A&
BRETAESMTAREMKEEMAR TS
& o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

The Group has investment guidelines that set out its
overall business strategies, its tolerance for risk and
its general risk management philosophy, and it has
established processes to monitor and control various
trading transactions in a timely and accurate manner.

Equity risk

Equity risk is risk that the fair values of financial assets
and derivative financial instruments decrease as a result
of changes in the levels of equity indices and the values
of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity
risk arising from individual investments included in
current portion of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (note 23) as at 31 December 2022. The
Group’s investments are listed or linked to securities
listed on stock exchanges in Hong Kong and are
valued at quoted market prices or quoted prices from
investment banks.

No equity price sensitivity is disclosed as in the opinion
of the management of the Company, the equity price
sensitivity does not give additional value in view of
insignificant exposure at the end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group complied with the externally imposed capital
requirements and there was no indication of breach of
covenants. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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VoY
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39 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WELAFER

Chinese Information Radio

Job Market Publishing Limited
KBRS LRERAT

Land Profit Development Limited

Perfect Treasure Investment Limited
BEZREBRAA

Premier Printing Group Limited
iR REBEBEFR A

Rayma Limited

Sing Tao (Canada) Limited

Place of incorporation/

registration and
business

EfRE,
BEREEHE

United States of America

x5

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RBRIHS /B

Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong

BA

Canada

NIEYN

39 MEBATFE

AARETEMBRAFZFBWT

Nominal value

of issued

share capital'/
registered capital
ERTRAEE
AMEX

US$100,000
common stock
100,0003 7T & & ik

HK$2
ordinary shares
2B LB

HK$1 ordinary share
BT ERR

US$100,000 ordinary
shares
100,0003 7T & & ik

HK$2 ordinary shares
2B LB

HK$100 ordinary shares
1008 L& B

CA$1 common share
M AR

Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
NG ) 2
BOl
Direct  Indirect

E# %

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

Principal activities

TEER

Radio broadcasting

ERRER

Newspaper
publishing
WEHELT

Securities trading
and investment
EHBEERRE

Securities trading
and investment

BHEERRE

Printing
ENFRI

Operation of a
website

Bunge

Investing holding and
property holding
agency

REZBRRMES
BRE
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39 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39 MIBLTFEEE)

200

Place of incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued

Percentage of equity

registration and share capital’/ attributable to the
Name of subsidiary business registered capital Company Principal activities
&L, ERTRAEE" RAR B RE
WELREE BRRGe HEMEA Ol FEREH
Direct Indirect
& A&
Sing Tao Limited Hong Kong HK$177,544,000 = 100 Newspaper
EBBRRA £ ordinary shares publishing
177,544,000 T & @R BEET
Sing Tao Magazine Group Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 ordinary share = 100 Magazine publishing

EERFEEBRAA Hong Kong 1ETE AR and advertising
KBRLME/BE agency
HABETREERE
Sing Tao Publishing Limited Hong Kong HK$133,332 ordinary - 100 Book publishing
EBHRERAR N shares and HK$66,668 BT
preference shares
133,332 L i Bk K
66,6687 7T & £ IR
Sing Tao Newspapers Los United States of America US$100,000 - 100 Newspaper
Angeles Ltd. % common stock publishing
100,000 7t & R WEHELT
Sing Tao Newspapers United States of America US$5,550,000 — 100 Newspaper
New York Ltd. xH common stock publishing
5,550,000% 70 & @ R BEELT
Shimba Digital Limited (company Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Operation of
name changed to Sing Tao e ordinary shares websites
New Media Business Limited 2B LB and applications
with effect from 12 January 2022) (apps)
MEABEERER A B L ERREALE
(RRIERBEEREEHERSEE
BERAR BZT=—F—H
TZREER)
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39 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/
registration and

Name of subsidiary business

B3
BLRBELE

WEARER

United States of America

*H

Sing Tao Newspapers San Francisco
Ltd.

Sing Tao (UK) Ltd. United Kingdom

%E

LT RESEREERMRKAERLDR" People’s Republic of China/
Mainland China

hEARKME P ERM

AEBERNHE LR BRASE

G

People’s Republic of China/
Mainland China
REARLME, S E A

+

For Hong Kong-incorporated companies, this represents
issued ordinary share capital

*

Wholly foreign-owned enterprise

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets and/or liabilities of the Group. To give
details of all the Company’s subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

39 MIBLATFEEE)

Nominal value
of issued

Percentage of equity

share capital’/ attributable to the
registered capital Company Principal activities
ERTRAEE RAEEIERE
AR BAk TEEHR
Direct  Indirect
E# ik
US$2,335,000 - 100 Newspaper
common stock publishing
2,335,0003 T & @ Mk BEET
GBP2,500,000 - 100 Newspaper
ordinary shares publishing
2,500,000 % & i fix REET
RMB23,000,000 - 100 Software
registered capital development
AR #23,000,0007T HHEE
&R
RMB30,000,000 - 100 Distribution of
registered capital print-media
A K #30,000,0007T publications in
HMEAR Mainland China
R B AT FE
X 58 Nl
N RBEBEME Lz AA RREEFTLEBR
[N
* SNEBE R
EERE LRAIRFTFERZEARFRESE -

IERAEEEEN RABFEZIER

DZEARAMBRA -EEFRR

C BRI

REMEMBLAR  RESBRITE -
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40 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

40 AP EHEMRR R

BRARRRNBERRFBARR 2ERDT :

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB && 32 32
Investment property wEY 6,330 6,060
Investments in subsidiaries R BRRIZIEE 1,364,655 1,366,121
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 1,371,017 1,372,213
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, other receivables and deposits  FEAF FRIE  E th FE U Z0 38 K2
®e 736 695
Cash and bank balances /e MIR1THE S 3,270 5,609
Total current assets REBEEHAE 4,006 6,304
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals E b B RUE R ERTRIA 3,186 4,203
Net current assets REBEEHAE 820 2,101
Total assets less current liabilities ERABEBCEELAE 1,371,837 1,374,314
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEAE 1,545 1,477
Net assets EEZFEE 1,370,292 1,372,837
Equity MR
Issued capital BEITIR A 176,109 176,109
Reserves 1 1,194,183 1,196,728
Total equity IREAEE 1,370,292 1,372,837
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40 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

40 ARATMBMRRE (&)

ARRFEEBALLT

A summary or the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Share Contributed Asset Share
premium surplus  revaluation option BEETNE
account (note) reserve reserve profits
BABH  BEEf:
B4 wER (HaE) E BRERE REEN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 WZZ-—4%—Hf—H° 43,522 502,941 4,733 22,137 645,951 1,219,284
Loss for the year and total FEFEREEZA
comprehensive loss for the year:  E1BEAH : - - - - (4,945) (4,945)
Final 2020 dividend “TRERERE - - - - (17,611) (17,611)
Transfer of share option reserve 1R B8 M 12055 82
upon the forfeiture of share BRERE
options - - - (12,272) 12,272 -
At 31 December 2021 and AZE-—4+ZA=1-H
1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—%-f—-H 43,522 502,941 4,733 9,865 635,667 1,196,728
Loss for the year and total FEBERERZE
comprehensive loss for the year: BB - - - - - (2,545) (2,545)
Transfer of share option reserve 1R W B A HE 1 &5
upon the forfeiture of share BhiERE
options - - - (1,851) 1,851 -
At 31 December 2022 RZB-_F+-A=t-H 43,522 502,941 4,733 8,014 634,973 1,194,183
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40 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

40 ARATFHMBMRRE ()

Note: The contributed surplus of the Company represents Wix: ZAARZEABBEOARF KRG LA

(iy the excess of the fair value of the shares of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation in 1996, prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares, over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor,
amounting to approximately HK$104,950,000, and (ii)
the credit of approximately HK$488,930,000 arising from
the reduction of the share premium account in 2003
less the distribution of approximately HK$18,181,000 in
2003 and the debits of HK$5,935,000, HK$1,073,000,
HK$34,307,000 and HK$31,443,000 arising from
the repurchase of shares during the years ended 31
December 2012, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the Company may make distributions to its
members out of the contributed surplus under certain
circumstances.

The share option reserve of the Company comprises
the fair value of share options granted which are yet
to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when
the related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire or be
forfeited.

BE—NQWNNFEEEHRKEZH B
RAIZEOHAFE SR ARAARB
ZEROMBETZROEEZZE DY
104,950,000/ 7T * K (i) = T = = 4F HI 5 A%
193 3% 18 BR P EE 4 2 #9488,930,0007% T i
BERE—ZTZT=F 9K Z#18,181,000/%
TUERBE-_ZE——F  Z_TFN\F .-
—EEHFR_TFERNFF+_A=+—H
1EF E A R B8 | B 15 T 2 51 25,9385,000
77T+ 1,073,000/ 7T + 34,307,000/ 7t &
31,443,000 L - RIEEFREE—HLN\—F
~alE (BEE) - ARaEETER
T LBEARBAEKREEL DK -

ARBBERERERESRHBERRITE
ZEBREZATE FRESMBHRERM
H2AR BN RERZ MR Z EFT K
K- EHREERBETRE ZSBEAER
ERMRER - &5 HERERED MR
W - RS REAE R B G A o

41 APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 41 HERFEHBERR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved BEEeR T _=ZF-ZA -+ -_HHZIR
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 MET| B AR A B TS TRk -
March 2023.
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Lot No.

HERER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWNER OCCUPATION:
RFRAZUR:

Located in Hong Kong
REE

Rooms 1401-02,05-06,14/F, [nland Lot
Car Po Commercial No. 2
Building, No.37-43 A B
Pottinger Street, Central 2%

R

TRt /FA737-435;

REAEAE

14181401-02 - 05-06%

7 Chun Cheong Street, Lot No. 39
Tseung Kwan O Industrial B3935
Estate, Tseung Kwan O

HER

BERTXE

SEHETR

Located in Mainland, China

MR E R
Units 501 and 502, N/A
The Spaces International TEA

Centre, No.8 Dongdagiao
Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing

IRn#HER
RARBIROH

I EBE R AL

501 R502%

Located in the United States of America

REE

215 Littlefield Avenue, Lot 7
South San Francisco Block 4
188 Lafayette Street, New York Lot 40

Block 473

Commercial

GES

Industrial and
headquarters
IXRBH

Commercial

A%

Industrial

1%

Commercial

A%

Schedule of Major Properties

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # & — & - —4#+ - =+—HIFFZF

Approx.
gross

floor area
agm
AENEY
(Square feet)
(F5 i)

3,330

322,865

7,938

14,935

16,200

Group’s
interest
rEE
Frib R
%

100

100

100

100

100

2842

2047

2052

Freehold
interest
KAER

Freghold
interest
KA

Main occupants

TEERE

Flash Bright Development
Limited
RHERERAF

Sing Tao News Corporation
Limited
EEHBEEEARAR

Sing Tao News Corporation
Limited
ESNESEARAR

Sing Tao Newspaper San
Francisco Ltd.

Sing Tao Newspaper
New York Ltd.
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Schedule of Major Properties

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z —FE - —4#+ - =+—HIFZF

Approx.
gross

floor area
ARE
AENEY
(square feet)
(FER)

Address Lot No.

o3t WREH

i)~ INVESTMENT PROPERTIES:
REME:

Located in Hong Kong
IR E#

1. Rooms 1305-06,13/F, Inland Lot. Commercial 1,632
Car Po Commercial Building, No. 2 HE
No.37-43 Pottinger Street, A&
Central 2%
MR
TR EE87-435%
REREAR
131£1305-06%

2. Rooms 1403-04,14/F, Inland Lot. Commercial 950
Car Po Commercial Building, No. 2 EES
No.37-43 Pottinger Street, A B
Central 2%
R
A ER/EH37-435;
REREAE
14181403-04%

Located in Mainland China
fiogilealifabicd

8 Unit 8E, Lan Yuan Mansion, N/A Residential 1,132
Beijing Jingdao Garden, TR =z
No. 1 Xibahe Nan Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing,
Hebei Province
AL RTEEE
[ bkt ek
TREBHERLEER

Located in the United States of America
fTREE

4, 17059 Green Drive, City of Industry, Tract Industrial
Los Angeles No. 26265 1%
Lot 7

63,500

206 SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED £ B3iE&EHER AR

Lease
expiry

Group’s
interest
b |
Frib#R
%

Main occupants

EREH TRERE

100 2842 Independent third parties
(ongterm) BUE=FH
(REH)
100 2842 Independent third parties
(ongterm) BUE=}
(REH)
100 2064 Independent third parties
BUE=H

100 Freehold
interest

pN i

Independent third parties
BUE=H



i)

Lot No.

B

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE:

Approx.

gross

floor area

agm

Bz ARNY
(square feet)

(F5%)

TRABELEZEE:

Located in Canada

RMEA

411-417 Dundas Street West, Toronto, ~ Part of lots 6 and  Commercial 23,000
Ontario 7PanD-116  @%

Group’s Lease
interest expiry  Main occupants
F%M
fricEs RRES FEARE
%

100 Freehold  Independent third parties
interest  BUE=}H
AR

Annual Report 2022 F£E R &

207



Five Year Financial Summary

EFHBEHME

A summary of the published results and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out below.

RESULTS

AREBBERAETREEZCTIRESLE LE - &
BEREEREREE - HHERAC TREEZTE
WERWTE o

ES |

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T—HLEE

2021 2020 2019
B —F ZE-FTF ZT—NF
HK$°000 HJK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue PN 815,008 834,788 825,747 1,261,779 1,431,704
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BB
gl (138,784)  (139,812) (80,909) (22,676) 24,243
Attributable to: LA AL -
Owners of the Company EAN/NGIEZ =N (138,784) (139,812) (80,909) (22,676) 24,243
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—8
2020 2019
—EFF ZE—NF
HK$’000 HJK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FAET FAET FAET FET
Total assets BEEHSE 2,054,643 2,154,031 2,301,707 2,390,763 2,554,999
Total liabilities BfEHEE (326,857)  (312,779)  (323,480)  (387,415)  (418,703)
1,727,786 1,841,252 1,978,227 2,003,348 2,136,296
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